Public Document Pack
You can view the agenda
online by using a smart
phone
camera
and
scanning the code below:

AGENDA
for a
MEETING OF THE CABINET
Tuesday, 9 February 2021 at 2.00 pm
Virtual Meeting
Contact Officer:

Linden Vernon Email: linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
or Tel: 01538 395613

Membership
Councillors:S. Ralphs MBE
M. Deaville
M. Bowen
T. Hall
J. Porter
S. Scalise
E. Wain

Leader of the Council (Chair)
Leisure and Sports (Deputy Leader)
Communities
Customer Services
Climate Change and Biodiversity
Environment
Planning, Development and Property

Reports enclosed unless noted otherwise.
1.

Apologies

2.

Minutes of the previous meeting (previously circulated) (Pages 3 - 8)

3.

Urgent items of Business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman)

4.

Declarations of Interest, if any
1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
2. Other Interests

5.

Matters referred by an Overview and Scrutiny Panel, if any
P.T.O.

www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek, Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ. Tel: 0345 605 3010

A G E N D A (Continued)

6.

Items requested by Cabinet and/or Non-Cabinet Members in accordance with
Cabinet Procedure Rules 8.5(b) and (e), if any

7.

Reports of Monitoring Officer and/or Chief Finance Officer, if any

8.

Leader

9.

8 .1

Forward Plan (Pages 9 - 14)

8 .2

Third Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 2020/21
(Pages 15 - 54)

8 .3

2021/22 Budget & Medium Term Financial Plan 2021/22 to 2024/25 (Pages
55 - 172)

Communities
9 .1

Disabled Facilities Grant Update - Including Proposals for the Expansion of
the Grant Offer (Pages 173 - 198)

9 .2

Public Spaces Protection Order (Pages 199 - 216)

Agenda Item 2
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET DECISIONS
TUESDAY, 1 DECEMBER 2020
PRESENT:

Councillor S E Ralphs MBE (Chair)
Councillors M Bowen, M A Deaville, T Hall, J Porter and E Wain

82

IN ATTEDNANCE:

Councillors J Aberley, G Bentley, B Cawley, E Fallows, M Gledhill,
K Hoptroff, K Jackson, L Malyon, K Martin, I Plant, P Roberts,
L Swindlehurst, P Wilkinson and N Yates.

APOLOGIES:

Councillors S Scalise

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (PREVIOUSLY CIRCULATED)
DECISION:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 6 October 2020 be approved
as a correct record.

83

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST, IF ANY
The following declarations were made:
Agenda Item
Agenda Item 8.4 Medium Term Financial
Plan 2021/22 - 2024/25
Update

Member Declaring
Interest
Cllr. M Deaville
Cllr. E Wain

Nature of Interest
Recipient of Covid-19
Business Grant

84

MATTERS REFERRED BY AN OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL, IF ANY

84.1

RECONSIDERATION OF CABINET REPORT - CHEADLE TOWN CENTRE
PROJECTS
On 6 October Cabinet considered a report which outlined proposals for the
establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre Delivery Board, supported by a
Stakeholder Panel, to oversee development and delivery of town centre projects
including options appraisal for the emerging Cheadle town centre Masterplan and
the High Streets Task Force programme of activity. The report also provided an
update on progress with regards to the Cheadle Town Centre Options Appraisal
Report and the High Streets Task Force and sought to agree next steps.
The decision was called-in by the required number of councillors and was reviewed
by the Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel on 18 November 2020.
Following considerable debate the Panel voted to refer the decision back to Cabinet
for reconsideration.
It was reported that there had been a great deal of speculation, misunderstanding
Page 3
and misinformation relating to the original report. The views of local people,

Cabinet - 1 December 2020
businesses and organisations in Cheadle were extraordinarily important to ensure
that the project led to improved facilities and visitor numbers for the town’s long term
future. The potential options provided so far could, after debate, be accepted,
amended or rejected. It was important that Cheadle received long-term investment
and there was inclusive consultation on all the options available.
Options considered:
As detailed in the report.
DECISION:
1. That the Cabinet Decision made on 6th October 2020 to approve the proposals
for establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre Delivery Board and Stakeholder
Panel be reaffirmed.
2. That a public consultation exercise and survey, overseen by the Stakeholder
Panel, to seek the views of local people, businesses and organisations of
Cheadle on all the regeneration issues & opportunities for the town centre, which
will inform the priorities for delivering regeneration projects be commissioned.
3. That a Cabinet Report on the results of the public consultation exercise and to
set out the next steps in delivering the regeneration of Cheadle Town Centre be
prepared.
85

FORWARD PLAN
DECISION:
That the Forward Plan be approved for publication.

86

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20
The purpose of the report was to present the Council’s Annual Report for 2019/20,
which compared Staffordshire Moorlands’ performance and costs with councils in the
West Midlands region and nationally; and highlighted further action where needed.
The report was considered by the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panel on 25
November 2020.
Options considered:
This report was for information with no decision required of the Cabinet.
DECISION:
That the findings of the benchmarking exercises and the small refocus of the
Corporate Plan suggested for the following 12 months be noted.

87

SECOND
QUARTER
2020/21
PERFORMANCE REVIEW

FINANCE,

PROCUREMENT

&

The purpose of the report was to inform members of the Council’s overall
performance and financial position Page
for the 4period ended 30th September (“Second

Cabinet - 1 December 2020
Quarter 2020/21”).The report was considered by the Resources Overview and
Scrutiny Panel on 25 November 2020. The position was summarised as follows:
Subject
Finance

Headline
The Finance headlines for the Second Quarter were:
Performance against Budget


Reference

Appendix
A

At the Second Quarter stage the General Fund projected outturn for
2020/21 was an overspend of £106,130.

Efficiency Programme


At Quarter Two £137,000 in savings had been taken against the
2020/21 general fund efficiency target of £519,000. It was
anticipated that there would be a £380,000 shortfall in the year.

Capital Programme


The revised Capital Programme budget for 2020/21 was 6.67 million
including the carry forward of capital underspends from 2019/20.
The projected outturn for the year was £2.91million; a variance of
£3.76 million – mostly in respect of programme slippage due to
Covid19.

Treasury Management




Cash investments held at 30 September 2020 totalled £16.3 million.
The Ascent loan and debenture stood at £19 million.
Council borrowing at 30 September 2020 was forecast to total £16
million by the year end (£14m relates to the Ascent loan)
The Council’s net interest income receipts was projected as a
£43,700 surplus above budget.

Revenue Collection




Procuremen
t

55.60% of Council Tax was collected by 30 September 2020
compared to 56.34% for the same period last year.
50.32% of Business Rates was collected by 30 September 2020
compared with 55.57% for the same period last year.
At the end of the Second Quarter debt that was over 60 days old
was £101,700 which compares with £67,310 at 30 September 2019

The Procurement headlines for the Second Quarter were:





Appendix
B

9 procurement activities were completed
The Procurement forward plan included 53 procurement
activities for completion in 2020/21 (either SMDC only or joint)
At the 30 September 2020, 76% of procurement activity
undertaken was on the forward plan and the Council paid 97%
of its invoices within 30 days during the year



Performanc
e

The Performance headlines for the Second Quarter were:

83% of the key performance indicators on track (40% of
which were better than the previous year)
Page 5
 The Council received 23 complaints, 70 comments and 53

Appendix C

Cabinet - 1 December 2020


compliments
Priority Actions - 7 green, 2 completed, 1 red rated, remainder
yet to commence

Options considered:
Detailed analysis was contained within the main body of the report.
DECISION:
That the Second Quarter 2020/21 financial, procurement and performance position
detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of the covering report be
noted.
88

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2021/22 - 2024/25 UPDATE
This report presented the Council’s updated Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) for
the period 2021/22 – 2024/25. The MTFP presents the Council’s priorities in the
context of the likely resources available, providing a financial context to future
decision-making. The report was considered by the Resources Overview and
Scrutiny Panel on 25 November 2020.
Options considered:
There were no options to consider at this stage.
DECISION:
That the Cabinet approves the updated Medium Term Financial Plan.

89

WILDFIRE PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER
The purpose of the report was to introduce measures to reduce the risk of wildfires in
high risk areas of the District. The report was considered by the Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Panel on 23 November 2020.
Options considered:
The Council could work with partners to raise awareness of the risks of wildfires and
to encourage people to behave responsibly without introducing new enforcement
powers.
DECISION:
1. That the necessary consultation, publication and notification in relation to the
draft Order appended to this report be agreed.
2. That the approval of the draft Order be made by way of a Delegated Cabinet
Decision unless the responses from the consultation necessitate material
changes to the draft Order.

Page 6

Cabinet - 1 December 2020
90

INFORMATION GOVERNANCE UPDATE
To provide an Information Governance update which details how the Council
continues to embed good information management practices through its ASSURED
framework. The report was considered by the Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Panel on 25 November 2020.
Options considered:
This report is for information only and no decision is required.
DECISION:
That the Cabinet notes the contents of this update.

91

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED:
That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the
public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential
information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public
in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section
100 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by
virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.

92

APPLICATION FOR WRITE OFF OF NON- RECOVERABLE DEBTS
The Cabinet approved the write off balances which were deemed non recoverable.

The meeting closed at 3.19 pm

_________________________________Chairman

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8.1

CABINET FORWARD PLAN
January – March 2021
The Forward Plan is a list of decisions the Council’s Cabinet intends to take
shortly. Some of these decisions are known as ‘Key Decisions.’ The Plan is
updated and published 28 days before each meeting of the Cabinet and is
available, together with all public reports referred to, from our website
www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk and offices, Moorlands House, Stockwell Street,
Leek, Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ. Should you have any questions
regarding these documents please contact the Council’s Member Services Team
via our website or by telephoning 01538 395613.
A key decision is one defined as:
"One likely to result in expenditure or savings which are significant having regard
to the Council's budget for the service or function to which the decision relates."
OR
"To be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an
area comprising two or more District Wards."

Documents relating to matters listed, and which are open to the public, will be
available five working days before the date of the meeting by visiting the
Council’s website www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk or by telephoning 01538 395551.
They are also available from our offices – Moorlands House, Stockwell Street,
Leek Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ. Other documents relevant to decisions
to be taken may be submitted to the decision maker.
Meetings of the Cabinet are held in public. However, occasionally, some
meetings, or part of meetings, may need to be held in private due to the content
of the reports to be discussed (e.g. commercially sensitive or personal
information). This document indicates which reports and dates of meetings
where this will apply and the reason for this.
Five days before a private meeting takes place the Council will publish a further
notice of its intention to hold a meeting in private. This will again state why this is
necessary and give the details of any representations received about why the
meeting should be open to the public. This will also include a statement of the
Council’s response to any such representations.

Page 9

1

INDEX
Date of decision
to be made

Page
No.

Proposals for expansion of DFG offer for Staffordshire Moorlands

9 February 2021

3

Public Spaces Protection Order

9 February 2021

4

Third Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review

9 February 2021

5

2021/22 Budget & Medium Term Financial Plan 2021/22 to 2024/25

9 February 2021

6

Matter to be decided
COMMUNITIES

LEADER

Page 10

2

Communities
Matter for decision

Disabled Facilities Grant Update - Including
Proposals for the Expansion of the Grant Offer

Key decision to be made on
behalf of the Council

Yes

Decision maker

Cabinet

Expected date of decision

9 February 2021

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Cllr Bowen

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny
Panel

Resources

Documents submitted to the
decision taker for
consideration

Executive Director (People)

Public/Private report

Public

Page 11

3

Communities
Matter for decision

Public Spaces Protection Order

Key decision to be made on
behalf of the Council

Yes

Decision maker

Cabinet

Expected date of decision

9 February 2021

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Cllr Bowen

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny
Panel

Community

Documents submitted to the
decision taker for
consideration

Executive Director (People)

Public/Private report

Public

Page 12

4

Leader
Matter for decision

Third Quarter Financial, Procurement &
Performance Review

Key decision to be made on
behalf of the Council

Yes

Decision maker

Cabinet

Expected date of decision

9 February 2021

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny
Panel

Resources

Documents submitted to the
decision taker for
consideration

Acting Executive Director (Finance and
Customer Services)

Public/Private report

Public

Page 13

5

Leader
Matter for decision

2021/22 Budget & Medium Term Financial Plan
2021/22 to 2024/25

Key decision to be made on
behalf of the Council

No

Decision maker

Cabinet

Expected date of decision

9 February 2021

Relevant Portfolio Holder

Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny
Panel

Resources

Documents submitted to the
decision taker for
consideration

Acting Executive Director (Finance and
Customer Services)

Public/Private report

Public

Page 14

6

Agenda Item 8.2
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Cabinet
9 February 2021





TITLE:

Third Quarter Financial, Procurement and
Performance Review 2020/21

PORTFOLIO HOLDER

Cllr Sybil Ralphs – Council Leader SMDC

CONTACT OFFICERS:

Keith Pointon – Interim Head of Finance
Vanessa Higgins – Information Business
Partner

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached
Appendix A (2020/21 – Third Quarter (Financial Report)
Appendix B (2020/21 – Third Quarter (Procurement Report)
Appendix C (2020/21 – Third Quarter (Performance Report)

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall
performance and financial position for the period ended 31st December (“Third
Quarter 2020/21”).

2.

Recommendations

2.1

It is recommended that the Cabinet:


Note the Third Quarter 2020/21 financial, procurement and performance
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this
covering report.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

This report essentially summarises the Council’s financial, procurement and
performance position after considering service activity up to the end of the Third
Quarter (i.e. 31st December 2020).

3.2

Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B (Procurement)
and Appendix C (Performance).

3.3

The position can be summarised as follows:

Page 15

Headline

Reference

Finance

The Finance headlines for the Third Quarter are:
Performance against Budget
 At the Third Quarter stage the General Fund projected outturn for
2020/21 is an underspend of £335,180 (includes £106,000 draw
from Covid earmarked reserve).
Efficiency Programme
 At Quarter Three £137,000 in savings have been taken against the
2020/21 general fund efficiency target of £519,000. It is anticipated
that there will be a £380,000 shortfall in the year.
Capital Programme
 The revised Capital Programme budget for 2020/21 is 6.67 million
including the carry forward of capital underspends from 2019/20.
The projected outturn for the year is £3.08million; a variance of £3.59
million – mostly in respect of programme slippage due to Covid19.
Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 31 December 2020 totalled £24 million.
The Ascent loan and debenture currently stands at £19 million.
 Council borrowing at 31 December 2020 is forecast to total £15
million by the year end (£14m relates to the Ascent loan)
 The Council’s net interest income receipts is projected as a £48,380
surplus above budget.
Revenue Collection
 83.03% of Council Tax was collected by 31 December 2020
compared to 83.92% for the same period last year.
 80.61% of Business Rates was collected by 31 December 2020
compared with 80.45% for the same period last year.
 At the end of the Third Quarter debt that was over 60 days old was
£71,620 which compares with £70,430 at 31 December 2019

Appendix A

Procurement

The Procurement headlines for the Third Quarter are:
 6 procurement activities were completed
 The Procurement forward plan included 49 procurement activities for
completion in 2020/21 (either SMDC only or joint)
 At the 31 December 2020, 68% of procurement activity undertaken
was on the forward plan and the Council paid 93% of its invoices
within 30 days during the year

Appendix B

Performance

The Performance headlines for the Third Quarter are:
 83% of the key performance indicators on track (47% of which are
better than the previous year)
 The Council received 34 complaints, 113 comments and 72
compliments
 Priority Actions - 13 green, 3 completed, 1 red rated, remainder yet to
commence

Appendix C

Subject

4.

How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the effective
management of performance and financial resources, which is the subject of this
report.

Page 16

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

Detailed Analysis is contained within the main body of the Report.

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2

Workforce
None.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality
and Diversity policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the
report.

6.5

Legal
None.

16.6
6.7
Risk
6.8 A

Climate Change
None.
External Consultation
None.
Risk Assessment
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are
identified and explained in the financial report attached at Appendix A.

CLAIRE HAZELDENE
Acting Director (Finance & Customer Services)
Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details

Report appendices A-C

Moorlands House

Keith Pointon
01538 395400 Ext. 4193
Vanessa Higgins
01538 395400 Ext. 4195

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A

2020/21
Third Quarter
Financial
Review

1

Page 19

1.

Background and Introduction

1.1.

In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and
recommended good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to
members. This is the third report for 2020/21.

1.2.

The report summarises overall financial performance for 2020/21 with
particular emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council.
Specific considerations are as follows:


General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary
performance on the General Account by looking at variations in income
and expenditure and the funding received by the Council.



Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 3) – considers
progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings forecast
for 2020/21.



Alliance Environmental Services (Section 4) – highlights the
performance of the Council’s Joint Venture Company providing Waste
and Fleet services.



Capital Programme (Section 5) – provides an update to Members on
progress against the Council’s capital plan



Treasury Management (Section 6) – sets out the key statistics in
terms of investments and borrowings;



Revenue Collection (Section 7) – considers progress-to-date in
collecting the Council Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debts.

2

Page 20

2. General Fund Revenue Account
2.1.

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the
General Fund Revenue Account against budget by setting out variations
in income and expenditure and funding received by the Council.

Service (with staff*)

Alliance Leadership Team
Audit
ICT
Human Resources
Member Services
Property Services
Benefits
Planning Applications
Building Control
Customer Services
Legal Services
Electoral Services
Licensing and Land Charges
Regeneration
Communities and Cultural
Housing Strategy
Transformation
Community Safety and Enforcement
Finance Income & Procurement
Corporate Finance*
Waste Collection
Street Scene
Leisure Services
Horticulture
Environmental Health
Net Total of Services
Net Interest
Funding
- external
- reserves contribution to/(from)
general contingency
use of carry forward from 19/20
earmarked

Expected
Outturn
2020/21

2020/21
Budget

Contribution
to / (Use of)
Earmarked
Reserves

£
38,370
7,080
719,760
49,690
259,800
1,067,940
(177,990)
(333,220)
9,190
60,350
34,520
41,450
(202,080)
73,750
154,950
(11,890)
3,970
127,550
53,460
5,727,610
1,946,230
378,860
921,960
676,850
50,520

£
(13,410)
(2,860)
25,000
(2,670)
(49,000)
522,640
40,620
9,240
(27,320)
(45,950)
(30,000)
(56,340)
8,880
73,120
(16,730)
(55,000)
(2,790)
(23,500)
226,170
(85,770)
135,910
(8,360)
740,750
(12,930)
75,190

10,253,790

11,678,680

1,424,890

(401,170)
9,852,620

(449,550)
11,229,130

(48,380)
1,376,510

487,000

(48,380)
1,863,510

(10,107,180)

(14,627,620)

(4,520,440)

4,521,710

1,270

276,010
(13,750)
(7,700)

276,010
(13,750)
487,000

494,700

(487,000)

7,700

(2,207,660)

(2,207,660)

(4,856,890)

(4,856,890)

-

* Staff budgets are currently budgeted within Corporate Finance

3

Page 21

£

Net
Variance

£
51,780
9,940
694,760
52,360
308,800
545,300
(218,610)
(342,460)
36,510
106,300
64,520
97,790
(210,960)
630
171,680
43,110
6,760
151,050
(172,710)
5,813,380
1,810,320
387,220
181,210
689,780
(24,670)

- covid19 support
Projected (Surplus)/Deficit

Variance

(25,000)
(27,500)
40,000
(40,000)
55,000
489,700
(5,200)
-

£
(13,410)
(2,860)
(2,670)
(49,000)
522,640
13,120
9,240
(27,320)
(45,950)
(30,000)
(16,340)
8,880
33,120
(16,730)
(2,790)
(23,500)
226,170
403,930
135,910
(8,360)
740,750
(18,130)
75,190
1,911,890

(2,207,660)
4,521,710

(335,180)

2.2.

A revenue budget of £9,838,870 was set for 2020/21. In accordance with
Financial Procedure Rules, the roll forward of £13,750 in unused budgets from
2019/20 has been authorised.
Horticulture (£13,750): in respect of the playground works to be completed in
2020/21
This brings the 2020/21 budget to £9,852,620

2.3.

The table above shows how this budget has been allocated to services.

2.4.

The Q3 projected outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for the year is
£9,517,440. This represents a projected surplus for the year of £335,180.

2.5.

There are no areas of significant underspend (>£50,000):

2.6.

There are six areas of significant overspend (>£50,000):


Property (£522,000 overspend); Covid-19 has impacted this service
significantly. Firstly car parking, where a significant reduction in income is
forecast to produce a net £312,000 shortfall and Public Conveniences with
additional cleaning costs resulting in a £57,000 overspend. Industrial Unit
vacancies are higher than anticipated, possibly an indirect effect of Covid
19, leading to a £21,000 shortfall in income. The protracted negotiation of a
replacement contract for property maintenance could potentially add
approximately £100,000 to in-year costs (discussions are still taking place
with Derbyshire County Council in respect of this).



Finance Income and Procurement (£226,170 overspend); Covid-19 has
significantly impacted the Recovery service with income generated from
summons activity predicted to be some £170,000 below original
expectations due to stalled recovery action. Further budget pressure in the
region of £70,000 is predicted in local taxation from the level of spending on
external services to support billing processes. This has been exacerbated
to a degree by the heavy involvement of staff in administering the Covid-19
business support grants – Government funding has been received to
partially offset this.



Corporate Finance (£403,930 overspend); The reported overspend is net
of two significant movements on earmarked reserves detailed in Section
2.8. Covid-19 has significantly impacted the level of savings achievable in
the current year Efficiency Programme, especially those savings premised
on growing fees and charges, and realising additional income streams. The
assumption at this stage is that there will be a shortfall in savings of
£380,000. A heightened risk remains surrounding the savings taken in
2019/20 arising out of the council’s Leisure Management contract. The
costs associated with delivering the Efficiency Programme and the
anticipated savings in the establishment is collectively estimated to be in the
region of £60,000. While Covid 19 related communication and mitigation
initiatives account for £46,000 of unbudgeted spend there is also an
anticipated cumulative £30,000 overspend against a number of existing
headings.

4

Page 22



Waste Collection (£135,910 overspend); Covid-19 has had both a
negative and positive impact on the service . Additional operating costs
have resulted from social distancing and cleansing requirements while
Trade Waste income has reduced during periods of lockdown. There has
however been an increase in recycling volumes during the pandemic
restrictions which has generated increased income to partially offset the
negative effects of Covid 19.



Leisure (£740,750 overspend); The pandemic has seen the closure and
curtailment of leisure facilities and activities significantly impacting the
council’s leisure contractor. At present, subject to the authority continuing
to support the contractor the additional cost consequence to the council is
anticipated in the region of £763,000.



Environmental Health (£75,190 overspend); This service area provides
the main resources for the Council’s Covid 19 track and trace
responsibilities. As such it is incurring additional staff and agency costs in
the region of £60,000. An additional £15,000 overspend is anticipated as
the net effect of budget pressures across a small number of other activities.

2.7.

The £48,380 underspend on net interest costs is detailed in section 6.

2.8.

The level of funding anticipated for the year is £1,711,690 above that budgeted
due to the following:
External Funding: (£4,520,440)


Business Rates Retention (£4,520,440 additional funding):
o The Council expects to receive £4,517,040 in additional S31 grants in
the year following the announcement and award of Extended Retail
Relief of 100% (33% was forecast in the budget based on the best
knowledge at the time); and Nursery Discount (which was not
anticipated in the budget). Both of these increases to relief were
announced by the government in response to the Covid-19 situation.
Accounting practice dictates that these grants are treated as general
fund revenue in the year. However, the extended reliefs impact the
Collection Fund by increasing the deficit in the year, which will need
to be distributed in future years, therefore this additional funding
needs to be earmarked to accommodate this and cannot be used to
support other services.
o Business Rates Retention Funding is forecast to be slightly increased
by a small reduction in net levy payable on growth to the Staffordshire
Business Rates Pool of £3,400 compared to the budgeted amount.

Contribution to Reserves: £5,016,410


Earmarked Reserves (£494,700 additional contribution):
o Earmarked reserves are created to match available funding with
future projects and activities. Often it is not possible to anticipate
when eligible spend will occur and so as the year progresses services
will identify projects and schemes where earmarked reserves can be
applied.
5

Page 23

At the beginning of the year a £7,700 use of reserves was anticipated
but this is now expected to be a net contribution of £494,700. This
change is primarily down to movement on two corporate earmarked
reserves;
- a £595,700 reserve being created to earmark a corporate
windfall for future use. Upon the winding-up of the
Staffordshire Business Rates Pool the council was eligible for
this amount as its share of the unused funds.
- The proposed use of an element of the £500,000 Covid 19
earmarked reserve set up at the end of 2019/20. At this time
£106,000 is anticipated as the amount necessary to offset the
shortfall accruing to the pandemic in 2020/21.
o Business Rates earmarked reserve of £4,521,710 created to match
S31 grant income received to the future needs of the Collection Fund.
Covid 19 funding (£2,207,660)
In response to the financial strain placed on local authorities by the pandemic the
Government is providing financial support in the form of grants towards
exceptional costs and compensation for loss of income. It is anticipated that this
support will amount to £2,207,660,this is made up of the amounts below:
Exceptional Costs Support: (£1,837,874)







General Support (£1,279,832 funding):
The Council has received these monies to support its general
activities as impacted by the pandemic.
Business Grants Administration (£188,500 funding):
This additional grant relates to the costs incurred administering the
allocation of grants to Covid impacted businesses in the District.
Enforcement Grant (£39,516 funding):
This funding relates to the costs incurred enforcing lock down
requirements in the District.
Isolation Grants Administration (£24,836 funding):
This funding relates to the costs incurred administering the allocation
of Self Isolation grants to Covid impacted individuals in the District.
Track and Trace (£125,190 funding):
This funding from the County Council is towards the Council’s
responsibilities for local track and trace.
National Leisure Recovery (£180,000)
This is the maximum amount that would currently be claimable under
this Government initiative to support recovery of the Leisure Sector
(award to be confirmed)

Compensation for loss of income: (£369,786)


Loss of Income (£369,786 funding):
Councils have been granted the facility to claim for up to 75% of net
losses against budget for income streams that satisfy set criteria.
Based on a prudent interpretation of the guidance, £369,786 is
currently anticipated in funding.
6

Page 24

3.

Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme

3.1.

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2020/21.

3.2.

The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (approved in February 2019)
included the four-year (2017/18 – 2020/21) Efficiency and Rationalisation
Strategy targeting savings of £3.14 million. This was required to balance the
forecast budget deficit position of £2.7m and also the carry forward of
unachieved efficiencies from 2016/17 of £0.4m.

3.3.

The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy is premised on the need to both
reduce expenditure and increase income. The need to grow income is now
more of a priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing.
The strategy has been developed with the underlying principles of protecting
frontline service delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable
the Council to ensure that its service spending is determined by the
established priorities set out in the Corporate Plan.

3.4.

The 2020/21 budget was set in February 2020 with the assumption of
£702,000 of savings in the year. This figure comprised £1,175,000 from the
original strategy reduced by an expected £473,000 over-achievement of
savings against the 2019/20 target. In the event a further £183,000 of savings
were realised in quarter 4 of 2019/20, reducing the amount to be achieved in
2020/21 to £519,000. The major focus of the savings programme in 2020/21
being on growth, income generation and major procurements.

3.5.

At the end of Quarter Three, £137,000 of savings have been taken against the
reduced 20/21 efficiency target.

3.6.

The current situation, regarding the on-going effect of the Covid-19 pandemic,
places into doubt some of the savings taken out of the budget during 2019/20;
particularly those relating to the Leisure Services contract. There is also a
significant risk that the current year savings will not be achieved in full,
particularly those relating to growing fees and charges and income generation.
At this stage it is assumed that there will be a shortfall in savings of £380,000.
This will continue to be monitored over the remaining months.

3.7.

The longer-term effect of this will feature as part of the updated 2021/22 –
2024/25 Medium Term Financial Plan.

3.8.

The Authority carries a longstanding reserve earmarked to support the
Efficiency Strategy, which can be drawn on to offset one-off costs of delivering
the efficiency programme, such as redundancy costs. The reserve currently
stands at £493,000. It has not been necessary to draw on this reserve in
previous years, so it remains intact to underwrite performance against future
savings targets in the Efficiency Programme.

7

Page 25

4.

Alliance Environmental Services

4.1.

Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) delivers waste, fleet, street
cleansing and grounds maintenance services to both Staffordshire Moorlands
District and High Peak Borough Councils. The Councils are shareholders of the
company along with ANSA, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire East
Council.

4.2.

AES’s financial performance and impact on this Council’s budget is summarised
below:
2020-21

£

AES Contract budget

4,473,920

Management fee
Allocation of AES efficiency
Contract pressures
Covid-19 costs
Total management fee payable
Allocation of Joint Operation profit
Net total

4,692,510
(125,460)
430
163,840
4,731,320
(93,130)
4,638,190

Variance to budget

164,270

4.3.

The AES business plan for all services delivered to the Council during 2020/21
includes a budgeted management fee of £4,692,510. The Council’s share of the
total AES revised efficiency target for 2020/21 of £125,460 is then repayable to
the Council and is allocated against the management fee costs.

4.4.

Only a small variance of £430 is forecast on contract pressures at quarter 3.
Additional costs of £163,840 are also anticipated as a result of the Covid-19
outbreak; these relate to provision of cleaning products, PPE and additional
agency costs.

4.5.

Under accounting standards, AES’s financial performance is incorporated in to
the Councils’ single entity statements as a ‘Joint Operation’ as opposed to
separate group accounts being reported. The profit is therefore apportioned
between the two Councils and the respective services in line with the input of
budgeted resources from each department. The Council’s share of the forecast
profit at the end of quarter 2 is £93,130 and is offset against the management
fee costs.

8

Page 26

5.

Capital Programme

5.1.

This section of the report provides an update to members on the Council’s
Capital Programme.

5.2.

The table below shows a high level (service) summary of the General Fund
Capital Programme position at 31st December 2020. Further detail – on a
scheme by scheme basis – is contained in Annex A:

Service

Housing Standards
Property Services
ICT
Leisure Services
Fleet Management
CCTV
Regeneration
Horticulture
Total

2020/21
Approved
Budget

Q3Changes

2020/21
Revised
Budget

Expected
Outturn
2020/21

Expected
Variance
2020/21

£

£

£

£

£

1,785,320
1,300,900
208,510
50,000
2,582,070
275,100
46,850
421,920
6,670,670

-

1,785,320
1,300,900
208,510
50,000
2,582,070
275,100
46,850
421,920
6,670,670

790,000
775,640
116,610
986,130
212,000
26,850
170,000
3,077,230

(995,320)
(525,260)
(91,900)
(50,000)
(1,595,940)
63,100)
(20,000)
(251,920)
(3,593,440)

1,767,710
93,000
214,900
220,850
4,374,210
6,670,670

-

1,767,710
93,000
214,900
220,850
4,374,210
6,670,670

795,000
110,000
557,000
220,850
1,394,380
3,077,230

(972,710)
17,000
342,100
(2,979,830)
(3,593,440)

Funding:External Contributions
Capital Receipts
Capital Reserves
Earmarked Reserves
Borrowing
Total

5.3.

The 2020/21 General Fund Capital Budget was approved by Members in
February 2020 as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan (£6,005,380); and
then updated in July (£596,840 – relating to carry forwards from 2019/20); a
new project was approval during the second quarter of £68,450 resulting in a
revised overall capital programme 2020-21 of £6,670,670

5.4

The changes made to the capital programme since approval in February
are as follows:


5.5

The carry forward of 2019-20 capital budget variances as a result of
projects which were either behind schedule or had progressed quicker
than expected in the year
ICT New Project £68,450 – approval was granted by Cabinet Delegated
Decision on 18th September for the purchase of the Civica Digital
Transformation Suite

The Covid-19 out-break has contributed to delays in delivery of the Capital
Programme. At this stage, a £3,593,440 underspend is projected. The slippage
has been re-profiled in the latest Medium Term Financial Plan Review to reflect
a more realistic timing of capital expenditure in the current circumstances.
9

Page 27

5.6

In addition to operational issues caused by the impact of Covid-19, the actual
demand for Disabled Facilities is forecast to be lower than Government support
received towards the grant programme; a total underspend of £965,320 is
anticipated, this surplus is ring-fenced and will be drawn down as required.

5.7

Overall capital funding which will be applied to the 2020/21 Capital Programme
is lower than forecast, reflecting the revised timing of capital spend, hence a
reduced borrowing requirement of £2,979,830 against the revised budget.

6.

Treasury Management

6.1.

This section of the report sets out the key treasury management statistics in
relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a
high level treasury management summary. The Audit and Accounts Committee
receives detailed operational updates on treasury management.
Investments

6.2.

Cash Investments held on the 31st December 2020 totalled £24million. Interest
earned on these investments during quarters 1, 2 & 3 totalled £37,920 and the
average level of funds available for investment was £18.8million.

6.3.

The Council budgeted to receive £88,510 in investment income in 2020/21. A
shortfall of £45,990 is anticipated against this budget is due to falling interest
rates following the Bank of England base rate reduction to 0.10% in March 2020.
Ascent Joint Venture

6.4.

The Council has a debenture of £5million paying 2% and loan of £14million
paying an average 3.61% with Ascent, the joint venture company established
to deliver affordable housing across the District.

6.5.

The investment income budget included £100,000 income from the debenture
and £546,910 from the loan. The debenture interest is on target, while a small
shortfall of £41,420 is forecast against the loan interest income budget due to
lower PWLB rates on the tranche roll dates that expected at budget setting
stage.
Borrowing

6.6.

External debt is forecast to be £15million by the end of the year, an increase of
£5million from the opening external debt balance of £10million. £14milion funds
the Ascent loan; and £1million other general fund capital expenditure. This
approach ensures that cash flow is available for liquidity as required due to the
uncertainty surrounding Covid expenditure and reduced revenue income. It also
takes advantage of the extremely cheap funding available in the current climate
from other local authorities. The Council budgeted to incur £332,730 in interest
charges in 2020/21. An underspend of £135,790 is anticipated against the
budget due to falling interest rates.

10

Page 28

7.

Revenue Collection

7.1.

This section of the report details progress to date in collecting the Council Tax,
Business Rates and Sundry Debt.

7.2.

The Q3 collection rate was as follows:

7.3



Council Tax – 83.03% of Council Tax was collected by 31st December 2020,
compared to 83.92% for the same period last year.
o The effects of Covid-19 on collection rates are being monitored.
The variance in the collection of Council Tax appears to be
largely due to the delay in the commencement of recovery action
and/or inability to pay as opposed to deferred payment plans;



Business Rates – 80.61% of Business Rates was collected by 31st
December 2020, compared to 80.45% for the same period last year.
o The effect of deferred payment plans continues to be monitored.

At the end of Quarter Three the value of sundry debt that was over 60 days old
was £71,620 which compares with £70,430 at 31st December 2019.

11

Page 29

ANNEX A
Capital Programme Update 30th December 2020

Capital Schemes

2020/21
Approved
Budget

Q3 Changes

2020/21
Revised
Budget

Expected
Outturn
2020/21

Expected
Variance
2020/21

£

£

£

£

£

Housing Standards

1,755,320
30,000
1,785,320

-

1,755,320
30,000
1,785,320

790,000
790,000

(965,320)
(30,000)
(995,320)

1,300,900
1,300,900
208,510
208,510

-

1,300,900
1,300,900
208,510
208,510

775,640
775,640
116,610
116,610

(525,260)
(525,260)
(91,900)
(91,900)

50,000
50,000

-

50,000
50,000

-

(50,000)
(50,000)

CCTV

2,582,070
2,582,070
275,100
275,100

-

2,582,070
2,582,070
275,100
275,100

986,130
986,130
212,000
212,000

(1,595,940)
(1,595,940)
(63,100)
(63,100)

Moorlands Partnership Grants
Total Regeneration

46,850
46,850

-

46,850
46,850

26,850
26,850

(20,000)
(20,000)

Brough Park Improvements
Total Horticulture

421,920
421,920

-

421,920
421,920

170,000
170,000

(251,920)
(251,920)

Total Programme

6,670,670

-

6,670,670

3,077,230

(3,593,440)

Private Sector Grants
Landlord Accreditation Scheme
Total Environmental Health
Property Services
Asset Management Plan
Total Property
ICT
Total ICT
Leisure Services
Sports - Small Schemes
Total Leisure Services
Vehicle & Plant Purchase
Fleet Management
CCTV - Upgrade
Regeneration

Horticulture

12

Page 30

APPENDIX B

2020/21
Third Quarter
Procurement
Review

Page 31

1.

Introduction

1.1 A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency &
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from Procurement activity which was agreed
by Full Council in February 2017.
1.2 The current Procurement Strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives linked
closely with the Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives. The key
actions included, delivery of cashable savings, development of a professional
Procurement unit, updated Procurement Rules to support transparency and the
implementation of electronic tendering processes and procurement systems.
1.3 The Procurement Strategy is now due for updating and is scheduled for presentation
during 2021 initially as an Information Digest report to obtain Member feedback prior
to final approval (this was anticipated during 2020, but delayed due to Covid-19
workload). The revised strategy will focus on the following key objectives to support
the aims of the Council’s Corporate plan:
 Delivering Value for Money
 Commercial focus and effective Contract Management
 Maintaining Transparency and Ethical practices through effective leadership
 Promoting Responsible and Sustainable Procurement
 Supporting the Local Economy and Business Growth
 Delivering Social Value (CSR) through our Contracts
2.

Third Quarter Completed Procurements

2.1 The activity supported by the procurement function during the Third quarter October
– December 2020 is summarised below:
Third Quarter
SMDC Only
JOINT (SM/HP)
TOTAL

High Value
(> £181,000)
0
1
1

Low Value
(< £181,000)
3
2
5

Total
3
3
6

2.2 Annex A provides details of the 6 procurements exercises reviewed and completed
during Quarter three.
3.

2020/21 Procurement Forward Plan

3.1 The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or high
value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for completion or starting in
2020/21.
2020/21
Activity
SMDC
JOINT (SM/HP)
TOTAL

High Value
(> £181,000k)
3
3
6

Low Value
(< £181,000k)
25
18
43

Page 32

Total
28
21
49

In addition to the above, there are 222 listed entries brought forward from previous
years (for review and completion for both HPBC and SMDC combined). It should be
noted that the items listed are a combination of recurring contracts coming up to
expiry, one offs, new items off contract and aggregate spend opportunities.
3.2 Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is scheduled for
delivery in 2020/21 includes:




4.

IT Managed Service Support Contract
Facilities Management and Building Condition Surveys
Supporting delivery of the Fleet Replacement Strategy
Car Parks Strategy
Brough Park Play and Recreational improvements

Procurement Performance

4.1 This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement activity and
the payment of suppliers.
4.2 Performance for the third quarter is highlighted below:Performance Indicator

Target

Performance at
31st December
2020

65%

68%

89%

91%

96%

93%

% of Alliance Procurement
Activity on Forward Plan
Annual contract spend as %
of gross expenditure budget
% Of invoices paid within 30
days

4.3 Invoice payments made within 30 days for the third quarter did not achieve target, the
additional duties in relation to administering the business grant payments and
reduced resources in the team over the summer due to long term sick absence has
affected the performance on invoice payments. Although the position is recovered in
terms of backlog, the impact of quarter two has affected the cumulative position over
the year.
4.4 For 2020/2021 additional new performance indicators have been introduced, these
are currently being measured to establish targets to implement for 2021/2022.
Target TBC for 21/22
Performance Indicator
(baseline to be established 20/21)

Supplier (Creditor) spend within the local
area as a % of total spend
% of Contracts awarded to local suppliers
following submission of EOI* (over £5,000)
% of EOI* that come from businesses within
the local area (over £5,000)
*EOI – Expression of Interest

Page 33

In progress: baseline being
monitored
In progress: Method review of
source data extraction
In progress: Method review of
source data extraction

ANNEX A
Third Quarter Procurement Activity Completed - SMDC
Contract Title

Brief contract
description

Brough Park Play Area
improvements,
creation of
MUGA & new
PLAY areas

Recreation project at
Brough park Play areas

Biddulph Valley
Leisure Centre Boundary Wall
repairs

Purchase of
Fruit Trees
(Env project)

Recurring
or One Off

Service Area

Procedure

Award Detail

Term
(years)

Total
Contract
Value £

One Off

Service
Commissioning

Framework
Further
competition

Kompan Ltd

n/a

170,174

Works Contract at
Biddulph Valley LC

One Off

Service
Commissioning

Open
Tender

Alliance
Contracting
Solutions

n/a

91,579

Supply of Various Fruit
trees

One Off

Service
Commissioning

RFQ

Proctors
Nursery

n/a

2,274

Supply and installation

Third Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – JOINT (HPBC & SMDC)
Contract Title

Brief contract
description

Recurring
or One Off

Service Area

AES Fleet
replacements
Street Sweepers

Purchase of 2 new Street
Sweepers

One Off

Service
Commissioning

Covid-19
Marshalls –
Agency workers

Temporary additional
resources Supporting the
Environmental health
teams in response to
Covid-19

One Off

Pollution Team
Agency Support

Temporary additional
resources supporting
Pollution team

One Off

Procedure

Award Detail

Term /
Duration

Total
Contract
Value £

Framework
Direct
Award

Stock
Sweepers Ltd

12 – 16
wks

335,586

Regulatory –
Environmental
Health

Single
Source

Red Snapper
Group

6months

40,000

Regulatory –
Environmental
Health

Single
Source

Page 34

(initially)

Vivid

2-3
months

10,800

Page 35

Staffs Moorlands Performance & Customer Feedback Report: 2020/21 (Q3)

Staffordshire Moorlands Q3 Summary
The following report provides Councillors with an overview of performance at Staffs Moorlands for the period April to December 2020 in
relation to the Council’s corporate plan priorities and the associated performance targets and projects. The report also provides an overview of
the results from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of how we handle and learn from complaints and the level of comments and
compliments.
Performance Overview

Page 36

There are 131 ‘monthly’, ‘quarterly’, and ‘annual only’ reported performance measures at Staffs Moorlands (27 more than last year). The chart
below shows the results for the period April to December 2020 against the monthly and quarterly measures only and reflects the revised
targets agreed in response to the pandemic. The Q3 results show that 83% of all measures are currently ‘on track’ to meet target by the end of
the year (unchanged from Q2) and 60% of measures are performing equal to or better than last year’s Q3 result. The actions being taken to
address the ‘off track’ measures are detailed at the end of this report.
The report also provides an update on the progress of key projects that contribute to the priority actions outlined in the 2019-2023 Corporate
Plan. The table below right explains the colour coding used to describe the status of these projects / actions.
100%
80%

100%

83%

80%

60%

60%

40%

40%
17%

20%
0%

On Track

Off Track

Off Track

In danger of going off Track
47%

On Track
40%

20%
0%

13%

Not yet started / Decision
awaited
Complete / Closed

Better

Weaker

No Change

Customer Feedback Overview
There has been a reduction in complaints during Q3 compared to last year and there have been no repeat complaints. Performance in handling
complaints within target times is on track. Further information about any lessons learned is included in the report.

Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live and work
SM Aim 1: Dec Trends 2020/21

SM Aim 1: Dec Results 2020/21
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%
On Track

Off Track

Better

Weaker

No Change

Page 37

Performance against the objectives under aim one is particularly strong with all measures performing better than last year. The number of
temporary accommodation placements over 6 weeks has decreased as at the end of December, down from 13 to 10 at Staffs Moorlands, with
no families included in this snapshot figure.

Celebrating Success:
At the end of Quarter 3, the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets:
 settled accommodation outcomes from homelessness prevention and relief duties
 processing benefit new claims and change of circs
 external sports funding secured

2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights
Priority Actions

Develop a strategy for further
development of affordable and specialist
housing
Complete the review of the CCTV system
and implement the agreed
recommendations
Develop and implement an indoor leisure
facilities improvement plan focused on
improving the health and well- being of
residents

Status Commentary – December

This project is similar to the Ascent project, we will look at the options to supply affordable
housing: Homes England has a new funding opportunity.
The upgrade of the control room has started. A progress meeting was arranged with the
contractor at the end of September. Should start replacing the cameras this month.
Consultancy tenders have been reviewed; interviews were held in November in order to aid
the selection of the consultants. Interviews were successful for consultant; meetings are
ongoing.

Page 38

Develop and implement an outdoor
leisure facilities improvement plan
focused around the 'sports village'
concept
Develop a Private Sector Housing
Strategy to improve conditions for
homeowners and private tenants

Several potential projects have been identified; all would require funding to be provided by
SMDC to support capital investment in third party facilities. Projects therefore can only
progress as quickly as the facility owner/operator wants it to. Committee reports will be
drafted for each project as they come to fruition.
Kick off meeting to be held in January. Project group identified, existing housing strategies to
be reviewed to incorporate Private Sector Housing and incorporate links with the Climate
Change Agenda.

Refresh the Council’s Communication
Strategy in order to ensure that there is a
more effective dialogue with residents

A paper has been submitted to information digest; no further feedback received. We are
continuing with the timeline for the delivery of the strategy

Review the Council's community safety
arrangements in order to maintain
strong partnerships with community
groups
Review the Sport and Physical Activity
Strategy in order to integrate
communities and sports clubs into the
delivery of its objectives

Review of CSS at both Councils to be completed by April 2021 along with proposals for the
future.
Next steps:
•
Undertake scoping work including review of current data/statistics, review of Sport
England, Active Derbyshire and SASSOT’s strategy position, engage stakeholders/partners
•
Formulate draft strategy for circulation/comments
•
Member review/approvals
Individual project updates within the action:

COVID-19 Recovery - Community
Recovery Plan

Influencing actions
Page 39

Ensuring effective health provision
particularly for the elderly

Combating illegal money lenders such as
loan sharks
Reducing crime, the fear of crime and
ASB

-Active Communities Plan - This plan was ready to be launched in March 2020 but put on hold
due to the closure of leisure centres. Parkwood's outreach staff not due to be brought back
until the end of October so at present it is unclear when this will recommence and whether
the focus of the plan is still appropriate/realistic.
-Refresh sports & physical activity strategy-No Update
-Review Community Sport Grants-Will form part of wider S & PA review work in order to
assess funding already available and recommendations for future enhancement.
We have issued press releases about the ‘Eat out to help out' scheme encouraging people to
support local businesses and continue to raise awareness via social media. Nearer the time,
we will be promoting the dates that our local leisure facilities (pools, racquet sports etc) are
due to re-open. A specific release about the work to the pool area in Brough Park Leisure
Centre is being drafted
Staffordshire Moorlands:
On 14th October 2020 representatives from the Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust and the
North Staffordshire CCG were in attendance to provide an update on Covid-19 and Community
Hospitals. At the request of a councillor, the Panel also considered an item on Public Health Initiatives
(Drugs and Alcohol Overview) from Tony Bullock, Staffordshire County Council.
The last meeting of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel took place on 22nd December 2020, at
which Dr Richard Harling, Director of Health & Care SCC and County Councillors Mark Deaville and
Johnny McMahon were present to provide an update on Covid-19 and responded to questions from
councillors. This Panel has now taken the lead on the scrutiny of the temporary closure of the Leek
Minor Injuries Unit so representatives from the Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust attended
the meeting to listen to members’ concerns, reply to questions and provide the latest information on
the temporary closure of this facility.
Review the Community Safety Strategy:
Review of CSS at both Councils to be completed by April 2021 along with proposals for the future.
Review the Community Safety Strategy:
Review of CSS at both Councils to be completed by April 2021 along with proposals for the future. A
discussion is underway to split High Peak from Derbyshire Dales, the recommendation to move away
from the partnership.

Managing our strategic risks
The Council has identified, assessed, and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim One:
•
•
•
•

Meeting the increased and changing demands on council services caused by demographic changes in the local population (including an
aging population)
The ability to effectively engage with our communities
Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults (meeting the legal duty)
Influencing strategic relationships at county and regional level in support of local area objectives

Page 40

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money
SM Aim 2 : Dec Trends 2020/21

SM Aim 2 : Dec Results 2020/21
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%
On Track

Off Track

Better

Weaker

No Change

Page 41

Staffs Moorlands has improved its profile against these objectives to 82% on track at the end of December. The improvement is due to the
reduction in sundry debt as at the close of Q3 which now stands at approx. £72k (down from over £100k) and is close to the 2019/20 position.
The council remains off track for invoice payments, audit recommendation implementation and FOI response times, which have been
impacted by COVID-19 restrictions and the increased workload from business grant administration.

Celebrating Success:
At the end of Quarter 3, the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets:







sickness absence
IT systems and network availability
repeat complaints
social media followers
procurement activity on the forward plan
customer interactions and portal accounts

2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights
Priority Actions

Develop and implement a plan to
identify new and innovative ways of
generating income

Page 42

Continue to embed good
information management practices
through the ASSURED framework
Refresh and implement the Asset
Management Plan, including a
review of public estate, and ensure
adequate facilities management
arrangements are in place

Develop an Access to Services
Strategy to ensure that Council
services are accessible to all
Implement the Council’s Efficiency
and Rationalisation Programme
(This will focus on several projects

Status Commentary – December

Individual project updates within the action:
- Advertising/Sponsorship- On hold.
- Fees & Charges- To be included in MTFP update
- Empty properties- EPIC presented to SMDC Resource Committee on 25th Nov. Officer
working group to be re-established to focus on EPS to progress actions, prior to meeting
with Members on how they can support the development of this with their knowledge.
Councillors to meet in the New Year.
- Building Control- Aiming for February transfer. A meeting with Derbyshire Consortium was
scheduled for December.
- Trade Waste- Trade waste need to determine an approach with AES. No further progress
made, will be linked with fees and charges.
COMPLETED. Information Governance Update Report produced for both Corporate Select
and Resources Panel in November 2020. This completes this action as the report shows how
both councils continue to embed good information management practices through the
ASSURED framework
Individual project updates within the plan:
- Asset Management Plan- Further training being undertaken with CIPFA to deliver AMP.
Report to be created for corporate select (Incl. Asset management working group. Once the
database is complete, a policy / strategy will be created.
- Capital program- New R/A/G status programme in place to aid quick reporting
- Land Disposal Strategy reprofile to take place.
- Norse Contract Options FMA – Norse to provide business case and have requested the
scope be identified. To meet the April deadline, reports need to be going to committee
December. Proposal coming in Dec. The scope issue is a priority, and another discussion is
required, no contract signed with Vertas.
- Facilities Management Arrangements- Awaiting budget review from Vertas. DCC still
undertaking works.
Process for the Access to Services Strategy completed and released to Information Digest.
Working group to be set up.
To be reviewed in light of COVID-19 as part of the review of the MTFP – Will be reviewed
every year. Individual project updates within the action:
- Parish Grants- Briefing note presented to Executive ALT - consultation to commence via

Priority Actions

including procurement, income
generation, trading, advertising, and
sponsorship, etc.)
Develop a new Organisational
Development Strategy to ensure
effective workforce development
Develop a new procurement
strategy with a focus on spending
money locally
Develop a new ICT strategy to
enhance and support the delivery of
services

Status Commentary – December

Parish Assembly
- Refresh Efficiency & Rationalisation programme- An early review will be undertaken as
part of the MTFP update.
- Hybrid mail- To be expanded to Environmental Health & Licensing. Savings to be analysed.
Information Digest has been completed and circulated to members. The strategy will
identify a number of projects for delivery. Camburg have met with AMT and we are aiming
to get this finalised for the next committee cycle.
Information Digest report to be released in December.

Page 43

A report is going to ALT/Exec/Cabinet. Also, an information digest report will be sent to
members. Socitm has been completed and a meeting set to review the outcome. This will
help progress work on the strategy. Individual project updates within the strategy:
- Housing management -delayed due to Covid19 and will be picked up as soon as possible.
Feedback required around IT and Norse.
- Meetings AV equipment-no update. On hold due to Covid.
- ILAP/Assure- reached testing stage. Software is not ready, on hold until fit for purpose
- Civica Pay- Proposed implementation start date May/June, aiming for Feb 2022 to go live
2021. Project teams meeting to be held in December.
- Civica Open Revenues- Civica portal loaded into the live environment in Oct to process self
-isolation payments. Other elements have been tested but there are issues preventing it
from going live. Until the API connection from OneVU to the Civica Portal has been
completed and a single sign on for customers is established the connection for customers
will remain via OneVu with links to the Civica Portal.
- Env Health/Licencing- no roadmap for flare implementation, collective needs to be
completed first.
- Asset Management-Concerto: PC pilot study has been done. Training planned for the full
team and is on track. Go live date is planned for 1st Jan 2021.
- Collective- Project resource has been affected by COVID-19 19. Work is underway with the
developers re the intuitive web forms and our web provider have developed a solution for
displaying the calendars online. Further work required on the trade collections; this has
been agreed. A new timeline has been created and we await a response from Bartec. Staffs
Moorlands are due to go live in March/April 2021.
- Committee Management- looking at production of the forward plan and the quality of
reports. Training to be implemented.

Priority Actions

COVID-19 Recovery - Reinstating
Services Plan

Page 44

COVID-19 Recovery- Financial
Recovery Plan
COVID-19 Recovery - Positive Legacy
Plan

Managing our strategic risks

Status Commentary – December

- ICT upgrade- M365 is ongoing, IT requirements are being evaluated to enable a more agile
approach between home/office working. The intention is to evaluate our IT requirement
needs using the outcomes of the staff IT / homeworking survey and the deliverables from
PLA1 Reinstating Services work & Positive Legacy workstreams, where new ways of working
are being considered, (e.g., laptops/docking stations etc). When Northgate have a clear idea
what route we want to take with hardware, they will cost that solution for us.
- Procurement Workflow and intranet upgrade- Best option to be identified when all the 3
quotes have been received. Stage 2 project paperwork completed.
We are continuing with strong, clear messaging encouraging people to comply with the
guidelines around social distancing, hand hygiene and wearing face coverings – these
measures feature heavily in all our communications via all channels.
We have received feedback on free parking in Moorlands which led to a change in focus for
the messages, where the importance of displaying a ticket is being made clearer.
Parkwood update required – Need to assess contract obligations
Back on recovery stage due to 2nd lockdown
The Council has undertaken a review of the positive impact on all service areas to ensure
that we retain and build on the improved working practices. The retention of agile working
and access to flexible working arrangements, is currently being reviewed and new policies
are currently being developed, along with identifying the benefits of reduced mileage,
virtual access to meetings and training and the overall reduction in sickness

The Council has identified, assessed, and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Two:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Delivery of MTFP through the Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy
Staff resources and retention
Effective contract management
Effective Information Governance arrangements (breach of data protection regulations)
Maintenance of Council's portfolio of public buildings assets
Investment into council assets and long-term planning
Financial and Legislative impacts from world events
Cyber risk and IT Security

Aim 3: Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns and villages
SM Aim 3: Dec Results 2020/21

Page 45

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

SM Aim 3: Dec Trends 2020/21
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

On Track

Off Track

Better

Weaker

No Change

The Council continues to have a perfect record under Aim Three with all targets currently ‘on track’ as at the end of December. 100% of ‘major’
applications have been determined on time but the ‘minor’ and ‘other’ planning applications processing times have been decreasing and are
now just 1% above target.

Celebrating Success:
At the end of Quarter 3, the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets:
 major, minor, and other planning applications processed on time
 major and minor developments allowed on appeal

2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights
Priority Actions

Support the development of Cornhill
and improved rail links

Page 46

Support the development of the
former Churnet Works site, Leek
Develop and implement plans to
extend the public market operations
Adopt a new Local Plan
Develop a master plan for bringing
redundant mills back into use
Implement the Council’s growth
strategy to bring about the
regeneration of towns and rural
communities

Develop a Tourism Strategy to
maximise the positive impact to our
communities

Status Commentary – December

- Cornhill development (East): We are on the reserve list
- Cornhill development (West): Full planning approval for site already granted. Highlight report
to be submitted on this issue once outcome of business case known. We are awaiting a
response regarding the reserve list.
- Rail projects- Feasibility study to be completed including a report on why we want to bring
back to life. The information has been provided and a new return is being drafted
No update

Tender specification issued for Leek Market Hall improvements - Appointed and moved ahead
with Quarter Bridge.
Action Completed. The Staffordshire Moorlands Local Plan was adopted by full council in
September 2020.
Additional budget support is required if this is to be considered a priority. Work has been
conducted in this area previously and a review of this work will take place initially. We also
need to identify what has been empty long term and understand the reasons. Mill owners to
be identified
- Biddulph Wharf Rd masterplan- No update
- Investment & Acquisition strategy- To be reviewed.
- Cheadle town centre masterplan -Cabinet report agreed to establish a Cheadle Town Centre
Delivery Board to be supported by a Stakeholder Panel. Stakeholder Panel to review issues and
options for Cheadle and to be invited to put forward any additional options.
Partner priorities for Cheadle town centre to be developed into a draft work programme to be
considered by the Project Board. A priority is the delivery of a multi-agency health and
wellbeing centre, ideally on the High Street. A draft specification is to be drawn up for
consultancy support to help prepare an outline business case for the centre. Support for the
development of a health and wellbeing centre is also the subject of a draft bid to the OPE
programme. The bid successfully passed a Dragons’ Den event, and an updated bid was to be
submitted in early November to take on the Dragons’ comments. Board meeting to be
rescheduled to new year. Stakeholder group to be worked through individually.
Not yet commenced.

COVID-19 Recovery - Economic
Recovery Plan

Influencing Actions

We have issued press releases about the ‘Eat out to help out' scheme encouraging people to
support local businesses and continue to raise awareness via social media. Nearer the time, we
will be promoting the dates that our local leisure facilities (pools, racquet sports etc) are due
to re-open. A specific release about the work to the pool area in Brough Park Leisure Centre is
being drafted.
Business newsletters complete, addition to a new newsletter to be developed in light of new
funding.

Page 47

Expand the Growth Deal Partnership - Investment & Acquisition strategy- To be reviewed.
to provide inward investment
- Cheadle town centre masterplan -Cabinet report agreed to establish a Cheadle Town Centre Delivery
Board to be supported by a Stakeholder Panel. Stakeholder Panel to review issues and options for Cheadle
and to be invited to put forward any additional options. Partner priorities for Cheadle town centre to be
developed into a draft work programme to be considered by the Project Board. A priority is the delivery of
a multi-agency health and wellbeing centre, ideally on the High Street. A draft specification is to be drawn
up for consultancy support to help prepare an outline business case for the centre. Support for the
development of a health and wellbeing centre is also the subject of a draft bid to the OPE programme. The
bid successfully passed a Dragons’ Den event, and an updated bid was to be submitted in early November
to take on the Dragons’ comments.
Support the Churnet Valley Railway Support Improved Rail Links:
with their plans to bring trains back -Rail projects- Feasibility study to be completed including a report on why we want to bring back to life.
The information has been provided and a new return is being drafted
to Leek
Provide bus services which connect SCC’s transport team have made a successful stage 1 bid to the Rural Mobility Fund for £1m and have
our villages with our three market
contacted the District Council for assistance in working up the stage 2 business case. If successful the
towns for services, shopping, and
funding would cover the Moorlands Connect area, bringing in additional locations and using a demand
leisure
responsive transport service.
Improve access and traffic flows to
Continued liaison with Development Services and SCC regarding new development sites & key projects
our town centre
including Cheadle Town Centre masterplan and Blythe Vale. 'Long list' of projects identified as part of
Green Infrastructure plan. Bid submitted with support from Stoke-on-Trent City Council, to the
Department of Transport’s ‘Restoring Your Railway - Ideas Fund’ for a feasibility study for a Stoke-Leek
Railway.

Managing our strategic risks

The Council has identified, assessed, and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Three:
•

External funding for growth / regeneration schemes

Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

SM Aim 4: Dec Results 2020/21

Page 48

On Track

Off Track

SM Aim 4 : Dec Trends 2020/21
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Better

Weaker

No Change

There has been no change in the target profile under aim four, with strong performance at 83% on track. There is just one ‘off track’ measure
at the end of December: the kg of residual waste. We measure this quarterly using estimates until the tonnages are confirmed but the
amounts collected during 2020/21 are significantly higher than the previous year. Fly tipping is now a contextual measure, but the 2020/21
data reveals significant increases compared to last year. This is believed to be a national issue and is being addressed through a comms
strategy in addition to ongoing enforcement activity.

Celebrating Success:
At the end of Quarter 3, the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets:
 missed bins
 paper consumption
 estimated recycling rates

2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights
Priority Actions

Page 49

Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the
transfer of services to Alliance
Environmental Services Ltd, to deliver
waste, streets, and ground
maintenance services on behalf of the
Council in order to achieve improved
performance and value for money
outcomes.
Identify and implement an approach
to reduce the cost of country parks
Develop a plan to improve Brough
Park and John Hall Gardens

Develop a climate change strategy &
an action plan of response to a
declared climate emergency
Review the Council's waste and
recycling arrangements to increase
recycling and to respond to the
emerging national strategy
Review the Environmental
Enforcement Policy in order to take

Status Commentary – December

COMPLETED
Phase 3 (streets and ground maintenance) transfer completed 1st April 2020.
Awaiting return of IT equipment. Closure/lessons learnt report has been provided. Project
completed.

No progress has been made in the last month. Relevant Officers have been contacted at
SOTCC, but we have received no response, CEO contacted.
Stage 1 documents received – Next steps:
•
Finalise draft strategy and management plans for agreed parks
•
Plan and undertake consultation with stakeholders/community/friends groups/AES
•
Finalise ready to obtain Member approval
Individual project updates within the plan:
- Play Strategy- This will form part of the wider Parks Strategy; a review of existing play
areas will be undertaken.
- Brough Park Improvement plan- IED report for contract award for play and MUGA at
Brough Park is pending, awaiting Portfolio Holder sign off. Works are expected to start in
Jan 2021. – Due to delays for equipment expected a later start- Feb 2021.
- Tean Road, Cheadle Improvement plan- Awaiting update from Cheadle Town Council as
to their aspirations. No progress can be made until this is received. A meeting has been
held and we await the feedback.
Plans to be produced by the end of the year. Ongoing projects will come out of this piece
of work. We are joining Apse’s energy networking group and drafting plans for 2021.
On hold- Await consultation and communications from the Government. TEEP has not
started.
Policies to be reviewed and updated in the next 12 months. Working group to be set up to
discuss to agree the approach.

Priority Actions

steps to further reduce
environmental crime
Develop a new Parking Strategy to
ensure that our car parks meet the
needs of residents and visitors

Influencing Actions

Provide waste and recycling centres
across the district

Page 50

The provision of accessible on street
parking

Status Commentary – December
Individual project updates within the strategy:
15.1 Parking strategy -Specification of requirement has been issued and fee proposal
received. Contract being prepared. Meeting to be arranged with Cabinet.
15.3 Pay & Display machines - Scorecard Complete, PID now being completed. Initial
scoping meeting held with procurement to recap where we are and put into context for
the new project manager. The Pros and Cons of proceeding in advance of the SMDC
strategy work are to be considered.
Await consultation and communications from the Government.
- Improvements in recycling performance & New Waste & Recycling Strategy; Covid has delayed
central Gov't progress, expectations not expected to be known until 2021
- TEEP has not started
Parking strategy: Specification of requirement has been issued and fee proposal received. Contract
being prepared. Meeting to be arranged with Cabinet.

Managing our strategic risks
The Council has identified, assessed, and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Four:
•

Meeting the environmental regulatory framework (e.g. air quality and waste regs)

• Energy supply (inc., fuel)

Page 51

Page 52

Areas for Improvement: December 2020
Measure of Success (PI)

Aim / Objective

Service Lead

% of initial homelessness
applications opened at the
prevention and relief duty
stages

Aim 1: Increased supply of
good quality affordable
homes

Head of Housing

Number of TA placements
(including B&B made for
families) placed over 6
weeks

Page 53

% invoices paid in line with
terms of contract

Aim 2: Effective use of
financial and other
resources to ensure value
for money

Head of Finance

Target
2020/21
60%
prevention

Result
December
2020
45%
prevention
55% relief

5

10 (no
families)

96%

93%

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)
Current restrictions are impacting this result and
cases are presenting at relief stage due to family
relationships breaking down.

Current lockdown restrictions and increased duty
to accommodate is impacting on this although the
position is improved on last month.
Operational output has been directly affected by
additional activities that have been absorbed by
the Creditors function to facilitate Covid-19
Business and Self Isolation support payments from
April 2020. This has been an increased demand on
capacity within the team which was already
working on reduced resources due to a full-time
member on long term sick leave throughout
quarter two.
In addition there has been a noticeable increase in
supplier invoices over recent weeks as front-line
services step up recovery of business operations
which we are currently working through to
facilitate payments under the 30 day target. We
are making use of all available options, including
external and internal communication channels to
ensure that payments are not delayed, to which
we aim to make a noticeable improvement on the
current position going forward.

Measure of Success (PI)

Aim / Objective

% of Internal Audit
recommendations
implemented within
timescale (snapshot at end
of each quarter)

Service Lead

Target
2020/21

Head of Internal
Audit

92%

Result
December
2020
77.87%

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)
The usual audit recommendation follow-up
process was suspended during April to June but
was reintroduced from July with performance
gradually improving. It should be noted that it is
the responsibility of relevant Heads of Service to
implement agreed recommendations.

Page 54

FOI requests: % responded
to within statutory time
frame (include numbers in
commentary)

Aim 2: Ensure our services
are easily available to all
our residents in the
appropriate channels and
provided 'right first time

Head of Legal and
Elections

95%

75.10%
377/502

Response timescales have been affected by the
impact of COVID-19.

KG's of residual waste per
household.

Aim 4: Effective recycling
and waste management

Head of Service
Commissioning

385kg

328.69kg

Results are estimated as tonnage data is not yet
available from the SCC for quarter 3. Results at
this time last year were 276kg. We have seen a
growth of c. 12% in waste tonnages collected
during 2020-21 most likely due to COVID-19
restrictions.

For a full list of all performance measures and the Q3 results please visit the Performance Management page on the Intranet or click on this link.

Agenda Item 8.3
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Cabinet
9 February 2021
TITLE:

2021/22 Budget & Medium Term Financial
Plan 2021/22 to 2024/25

PORTFOLIO HOLDER

Cllr Sybil Ralphs – Leader

CONTACT OFFICERS:

Keith Pointon – Interim Head of Finance

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendix Attached
 Appendix A (Medium Term Financial Plan 2021/22 to 2024/25)
 Appendix B (Capital Strategy 2021/22)
 Appendix C (Fees & Charges 2021/22)
 Appendix D (Procurement Forward Plan 2021/22)
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of the report is to present the proposed Budget for 2021/22,
updated Medium-Term Financial Plan 2021/22 – 2024/25, Capital Strategy
2021/22, proposed Fees and Charges for 2021/22 and Procurement Forward
Plan 2021/22.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That members support the following recommendations to Council:


Approves the General Fund Budget for 2021/22 as detailed in Appendix A
(section 9)



Approves the revised Medium-Term Financial Plan (2021/22 to 2024/25) as
detailed in Appendix A, including the revised Capital Programme (attached
at Annex A)



Approves the Capital Strategy 2021/22 as set out in Appendix B



Approves the proposed Fees and Charges for 2021/22 as detailed in
Appendix C

Page 55



Approves the proposed Procurement Forward Plan for 2021/22, providing
the authority to procure based on procurement activity detailed in Appendix
D



Approves a Band D Council Tax of £158.40 for 2021/22 (an increase of £5
or 3.26% from 2021/22)



Approves a Band D Council Tax of £52.92 for Leek and £10.64 for Biddulph
for 2020/21 (no increase from 2020/21) in respect of Special District
Expenses



Notes the Chief Finance Officer's view that the level of reserves are
adequate for the Council based on this budget and the circumstances in
place at the time of preparing it (Appendix A Annex D)

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

This report makes recommendations to Council for the budget and the level of
Council Tax for 2021/22. The report also provides an update on the Council’s
medium-term financial position through to 2024/25. Additionally, it establishes
an overarching Capital Strategy, sets out the fees and charges that are
proposed for 2021/22, and details the Procurement Forward Plan 2021/22.

3.2

The budget setting and medium term financial planning process provides the
Council with the opportunity to plan its delivery of public services in accordance
with local priorities.

3.3

The 2020/21 – 2023/24 MTFP was approved by the Council in February 2020.
This resulted in a small surplus position of £17,840 on the General Fund by the
end of 2023/24, with an overall contribution of £35,950 into reserves over the 4
year life of the plan.

3.4

This position was dependent on the continued delivery of a the Efficiency &
Rationalisation Programme which was commenced in April 2017. The report
also flagged the risks around the outcomes of national funding reviews (i.e. fair
funding; business rates retention; and new homes bonus) which may have a
detrimental impact on the future financial position.

3.5

However, since the MTFP was approved, the Coronavirus pandemic has had,
and is likely to continue having an adverse impact on the Council’s financial
position. The financial impact is arising from additional expenditure in dealing
with the crisis both externally and organisationally, lost income and savings
targets that may not be met within the same timeframe due to resources being
diverted elsewhere.

3.6

The current four year MTFP was updated in September to reflect Covid-19
related pressures and updated economic forecasts in order to begin to
understand the medium term financial impact. It was subsequently updated
again in November, this time adding an additional year - 2024/25 - to the MTFP
period.

Page 56

3.7

The September / November MTFP updates highlighted a forecast use of
reserves would now be required over the 4 years in order to balance the MTFP
position (as opposed to a contribution which was originally forecast in February
2020) :MTFP Version
Feb 2020
Sept 2020
Nov 2020

Use of / (Contribution
to) Reserves
(£35,950)
£1,833,220
£1,793,780

3.8

This version of the MTFP updates the forecasts included in November based on
the provisional settlement information released in December, latest economic
forecasts, assumptions around the timing and level of capital and revenue
expenditure and income and impact of the recovery from Covid-19.

3.9

Having completed the annual budget exercise, a balanced budget for 2021/22
has been achieved by drawing £256,080 from reserves. The final General Fund
budget proposal for 2021/22 provides for a net budget of £10,881,060 and a
Council Tax increase of £5 on a Band D equivalent property (3.26%).
Consequently, the Band D equivalent Council Tax increases to £158.40, with
the Special District Expenses remaining at £52.92 (Leek) and £10.64 (Biddulph)
respectively

3.10

A new financial year (2024/25) has been added to the MTFP and the overall
financial assumptions have been updated for the four years. This has resulted
in a very small deficit position of £5,970 by the end of 2024/25. An overall use
of £756,410 in reserves is forecast during the 4 year life of the plan.

3.11

The changed position from February 2020 is largely as a result of Covid-19
related assumptions, for example, the continued financial support provided to
the Council’s leisure centre operator and forecasts in regard to income streams
(Council Tax, Business Rates, Fees & Charges, New Homes Bonus).
Government has made grants available to Local Authorities in 2021/22 towards
Covid-19 related pressures, but these grants are not assumed to continue into
2022/23.

3.12

In must be stressed that there is a great deal of uncertainty in regard to this
position which is dependent on the continued response to the coronavirus
pandemic and the recovery phase. It is also necessary to remain cautious as
the outcomes of national funding reviews (i.e. fair funding; business rates
retention; and new homes bonus) are unknown at this stage.

3.13

However, this position is improved compared to the November 2020 position
and the forecasts result in general fund contingency reserves of £2.7m by the
end of 2024/25, which allows some flexibility if the assumptions are incorrect
and the position worsens. The forecast also predicts a virtually balanced budget
position by 2024/25 – on the basis the Country has fully recovered from the
Coronavirus pandemic at that point and the Council can once again become
self-sustainable (without reliance on reserves) – albeit it with the risks identified
above.

Page 57

3.14 The Capital Strategy and the Capital Programme have been updated and allow
for additional investment in priority areas. The Medium Term Financial Plan
includes an updated Capital Programme of £16,311,600 over the period
2020/21 – 2024/25.
3.15

The Procurement Forward Plan sets out details of the expected activity during
2021/22. The new Procurement Strategy will be presented during 2021 (having
been delayed due to Covid pressures) . This strategy will include a response to
key commitments such as the response to climate change and the
encouragement of local suppliers.

4.

How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the effective
management of financial resources, which is the subject of this report.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

There are no options to consider at this stage.

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2

Workforce
None.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and
Diversity policies.
An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken on the
Corporate Plan, which feeds into budget plans.

6.4

Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the
report.

6.5

Legal
None.

16.6

Sustainability
An earmarked reserve has been established to support with climate change
related activities. Climate Change considerations are indirectly included in
many aspects of the MTFP – including capital programme projects focused
on Council buildings and vehicle purchases. As well as being a consideration
in procurement activity as per the Forward Plan.

Page 58

6.7

External Consultation
The Council’s budget plans have been subject to a consultation exercise –
utilising the business newsletter. Consultation has been more low key for this
budget exercise as a result of all the uncertainty around coronavirus response
and recovery.

Risk A Risk Assessment
6.8
A full risk analysis has been undertaken which is contained within the plan

CLAIRE HAZELDENE
Active Executive Director (Finance & Customer Services) & Chief Finance
Officer
Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details

Various background working papers

Moorlands House

Keith Pointon
Interim Finance & Procurement
Manager
01538 395400 Ext. 4193

Page 59

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN
2021/22 to 2024/25

February 2021

Page 61

INDEX
1

Introduction

2

Strategic Priorities

3

Current Spending Levels

4

Coronavirus Pandemic

5

Transformation Programme
5.1
Introduction
5.2
Capital Strategy
5.3
Capital Programme
5.4
Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy
5.5
Major Contracts
5.6
Member Priority Projects

6

Financial Forecasts
6.1
Introduction
6.2
Interest Rates
6.3
Inflationary Projections
6.4
Budgetary Demand
6.5
Budget Growth
6.6
Pensions

7

Funding & Income Generation
7.1
Introduction
7.2
Council Tax
7.3
Business Rates Retention
7.4
Collection Fund
7.5
Income from Government Grants
7.6
Fees & Charges

8

Risks, Contingencies & Use of Reserves

9

Budget 2020/21

10

General Fund Revenue Financial Position

11

Consultation

Annex A
Annex B
Annex C
Annex D
Annex E

Proposed Capital Programme
Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy
MTFP Principal Risks
Chief Finance Officer Review of Contingencies / Reserves
Proposed Revenue Budget

Page 62

1.

Introduction

1.1.

The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is a key element of the Council’s budget
and policy framework. It aims to ensure resources are directed effectively and
efficiently towards delivery of the Corporate Plan. It describes the financial
direction of the Council for planning purposes and outlines the financial pressures
the Council is likely to experience over the next 4 years.

1.2.

The medium term financial planning process establishes how available resources
will be allocated to services in line with Council priorities which have been
determined following consultation with residents, councillors and other
stakeholders. The process facilitates the Council in planning the prudent
management of its finances, in building resilience and in providing for the needs of
residents over the long term.

1.3.

The MTFP is updated regularly to fit in with the budget cycle. This review of the
MTFP builds on the existing strategy and updates assumptions to reflect known
changes to income, costs and funding. The plan incorporates revenue and capital
financial projections over the four years 2021/22 to 2024/25. It also includes an
assessment of key risks and a presentation of longer term financial issues which
have the potential to impact on the Council.

1.4.

The Coronavirus pandemic has had an unprecedented impact on the world and as
a result, a significant impact on the Council’s financial performance during
2020/21. The direct and indirect impact of this is likely to continue into 2021/22
and potentially beyond. More information on this is provided in section 4 and
throughout the report.

2.

Strategic Priorities

2.1.

The Medium Term Financial Plan is driven by local priorities. The Council’s
spending strategy is set out in the Corporate Plan formally adopted by members of
the Council.

2.2.

Following the elections in May 2019, there was a fundamental review of the
Corporate Plan focussing on the period 2019-2023 (up to the end of the current
political administration). The Corporate Plan was agreed by Council on 16th
October 2019 with 2020/21 representing the first full year of the new Corporate
Plan - albeit a very challenging year with the pandemic pressures to deal with.

2.3.

The Council’s 4-year Corporate Plan (2019-2023) establishes the Council’s vision,
corporate objectives and key priorities for the medium term. It in effect establishes
the Council’s commitment in the delivery of service and community leadership to
the residents of the Staffordshire Moorlands.

2.4.

The delivery of the Corporate Plan will be measured through the Performance
Framework. A set of local performance indicators and targets will be established
in preparation for the start of the financial year 2021/22 via the Resources
Overview & Scrutiny Committee. The 2020/21 performance framework was
reviewed in year to account for the impact of Covid 19 on the Council’s
performance.

Page 63

2.5.

The Council’s Corporate Plan is a document that needs to be owned by the whole
Council. As a consequence the Council held a members priority setting day held
in July 2019 – the views have been taken into account in the development of the
new plan and will also be important in developing the supporting performance
framework.

2.6.

The Medium Term Financial Plan has been updated to reflect the contents of the
plan and to ensure that resources are directed towards key priorities.

2.7.

The Council’s vision is restated as:
“Achieving Excellence in the delivery of high quality services that meet the needs
and aspirations of our communities”
This vision is articulated further by four aims:-:





2.8.

Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live
and work
Effective use of resources and provide value for money
Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns
and villages
Protect and improve the environment and respond to the climate
emergency

These aims are supported by a number of objectives which also provide the
framework for the delivery of service plans. The Council’s objectives are
summarised below:
Aim

1

2

3

4

Help create a safer
and healthier
environment for our
communities to live
and work
Effective use of
resources and
provide value for
money

Help create a strong
economy by
supporting further
regeneration of
towns and villages
Protect and improve
the environment and
respond to the
climate emergency






















Objectives
Increased supply of good quality affordable homes
Develop a positive relationship with communities
Effective relationship with strategic partners
Effective support of community safety arrangements including CCTV
Provision of sports facilities and leisure opportunities focused upon
improving health
Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for
money
Ensure services are easily available to all our residents in the
appropriate channels and provided “right first time”
A high performing and well motivated workforce
More effective use of Council assets
Effective procurement with a focus on local business
Effective use of ICT
Encourage business start-ups and enterprises
Flourishing town centres that support the local economy
Encourage and develop tourism
High quality development and building control with an “open for
business” approach
Effective recycling and waste management
Meeting the challenge of climate change
Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets and
environmental health
Provision of quality parks and open spaces
Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of residents,
businesses and visitors

Page 64

2.9.

The Council is committed to playing the lead role in championing the local area. In
so doing the Council recognises its community leadership role. Fulfilling this role
effectively means influencing partners in a number of key areas in order to ensure
that services are shaped and delivered around the needs and aspirations of
citizens.

2.10. The Council’s influencing role is focused in the following areas:

Support the police and other partners to reduce crime, the fear of crime and
anti social behaviour

Ensure there is effective health provision particularly for the elderly

Ensure that there an effective provision of waste and recycling centres
across the district

Work with Staffordshire County Council to provide accessible on-street
parking

We will work with partners to improve the provision of bus services which
connect our villages with our three market towns for services, shopping and
leisure.

Expand the Growth Deal partnership with Staffordshire County Council on
the will be expanded to provide inward investment

Work to combat illegal money lenders such as loan sharks

Continue to support the Churnet Valley Railway with their plans to bring
trains back to Leek

Work with Staffordshire County Council
2.11. The Plan identifies key priority outcomes, which will be the highest priority in the
development of performance targets and key actions. A significant proportion of
the Council’s resources will be directed towards achieving them:Aim

Objectives

Help create a safer and healthier
environment for our communities
to live and work





Increased supply of quality affordable homes
Improved health
Improved community safety

Effective use of resources and
provide value for money




Help create a strong economy by
supporting further regeneration of
towns and villages







Council services provide value for money
High level of resident and customer
satisfaction
Sustainable towns and rural communities
Increased economic growth
Increased tourism
High recycling rates
Reduction in carbon emissions

Protect and improve the
environment and respond to the
climate emergency

2.12. The Council maintains a Strategic Alliance with High Peak Borough Council,
formed around the principle of shared services in the pursuit of efficiency and
realisation of savings. The Strategic Alliance has enabled the implementation and
transformation of a joint management structure and services, consequently
realising significant efficiency savings.
2.13. The Council intends to continue to drive savings and service improvements
through collaboration with its Alliance partner.

Page 65

3.

Current Spending Levels

3.1.

The starting point for the development of the MTFP is the current level of spending
and the approved capital expenditure commitments.

3.2.

The Council’s current year (2020/21) General Fund budget can be summarised as
follows:
Income and Expenditure

2020/21
Budget
£

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies & Services
Benefits
Borrowing
Financing Costs

6,125,260
2,174,930
141,260
7,318,100
5,010
332,730
231,380
16,328,670

Total Expenditure
Fees and Charges / Other Income
Interest Receipts

3.3.

(5,755,900)
(88,510)

Ascent LLP Income

(645,390)

Net Expenditure

9,838,870

The net expenditure is financed as follows:
2020/21
Budget
£

Financing

Council Tax
New Homes Bonus
Business Rates Retention
Collection Fund Surplus
Contribution to Balances

(5,507,650)
(194,890)
(4,025,430)
(379,210)
268,310

Total Financing

(9,838,870)

Page 66

3.4.

The medium-term projection for capital commitments approved by Members in
February 2020 is detailed below: Service Area

Asset Management Plan
Housing Grants
ICT Strategy
Fleet Management
Other Schemes
Total Programme
Financed by:External Contributions
Capital Receipts
General Fund Balances
Capital Reserve
S106 Planning
Borrowing
Total Financing

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

Total

£

£

£

£

£

£

483,750
1,161,650
1,346,300
600,000
3,591,700

1,467,080
1,256,000
255,800
1,325,750
480,620
4,785,250

1,085,220
1,226,000
2,468,290
50,000
4,829,510

1,036,300
1,211,000
129,250
50,000
2,426,550

1,627,450
1,211,000
30,000
2,868,450

5,699,800
6,065,650
255,800
5,299,590
1,180,620
18,501,460

1,211,000
953,730
392,570
135,690
898,710
3,591,700

1,238,390
40,000
1,620,430
1,886,430
4,785,250

1,211,000
3,618,510
4,829,510

1,211,000
140,000
1,075,550
2,426,550

1,211,000
1,657,450
2,868,450

6,082,390
180,000
953,730
2,013,000
135,690
9,136,650
18,501,460

3.5.

The MTFP presented in February 2020 did flag the risks around the outcomes of
national funding reviews (i.e. fair funding; business rates retention; and new
homes bonus) which may have a detrimental impact on the future financial
position.

3.6.

The forecast general fund reserves position over the life of the current approved
MTFP was estimated to be::Contingency
2019/20
2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
Reserves
(£)
(£)
(£)
(£)
(£)
Balance at Year End
2,153,280 2,429,290 2,365,840 2,171,390 2,189,230
Minimum Requirement 1,052,000 1,107,000 1,107,000 1,107,000 1,107,000
Headroom
1,101,280 1,322,290 1,258,840 1,064,390 1,082,230

4.

Coronavirus Pandemic

4.1.

The Coronavirus pandemic has had, and is likely to continue having, an adverse
impact on the Council’s financial position. The financial impact is arising from
additional expenditure in dealing with the crisis both externally and
organisationally, lost income and savings targets that may not be met within the
same timeframe due to resources being diverted elsewhere.

4.2.

There is concern about the longer-term financial impact this will have on the
delivery of corporate plan objectives. Therefore, to attempt to understand and
forecast this and to allow more time to effectively plan the longer term response,
an early review of the MTFP was undertaken and this was presented to Members
in September 2020.

Page 67

4.3.

The September update focused on updating the MTFP as approved in February
2020 - therefore no additional financial years were added and no additional budget
demand items were included. The review simply updated the current MTFP in
light of the estimated financial impact of Covid-19.

4.4.

A second update was then presented in November, which moved the MTFP on,
adding an additional year, focusing on the 4 year period 2021/22 – 2024/25. The
September / November MTFP updates highlighted a forecast use of reserves
would now be required over the 4 years in order to balance the MTFP position (as
opposed to a contribution which was originally forecast in February 2020) :MTFP Version
Feb 2020
Sept 2020
Nov 2020

4.5.

Use of / (Contribution to)
Reserves
(£35,950)
£1,833,220
£1,793,780

This version of the MTFP updates the forecasts included in November based on
the provisional settlement information released in December, latest economic
forecasts, assumptions around the timing and level of capital and revenue
expenditure and income and impact of the Covid-19 response and recovery.
Quarter 3 Financial Update

4.6.

The 2020/21 forecast has been updated as part of the Quarter 3 Financial Update.

4.7.

In summary, the Quarter 3 Financial Update forecasts a £229,180 surplus for
2020/21 after taking into account Covid-19 related funding. The surplus is mainly
due to the indirect impact of the pandemic on the council’s underlying level of
activity with demand for services reduced and initiatives delayed or curtailed.
These savings mask a £106,000 predicted shortfall between the direct impact of
Covid 19 and the level of Government support received.

4.8.

When establishing the 2020/21 budget, it included a contribution into general fund
contingency reserves of £0.28million. Therefore, the forecast surplus position
results in a variance to this assumption of £0.23million – with an overall
£0.51million contribution to contingency reserves.

4.9.

At the end of 2019/20, the Council established a Covid-19 earmarked reserve
specifically to support with the financial impact of Covid-19 totalling £500,000 utilising part of the 2019/20 underspend generated.

4.10. Based on the quarter 3 projection, £106,000 could be drawn from the earmarked
reserve, leaving £394,000 for future years. This would effectively remove the
impact of Covid 19 on the 2020/21 outturn increasing the surplus to £335,180 and
the contribution to contingency reserves to £0.62million
4.11. The 2020/21 financial position will be monitored through the remainder of the year
taking into account the actual recovery of income levels and services and any
further updates on Government funding.

Page 68

Government Covid-19 Funding
4.12. The Secretary of State for the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government (MHCLG) announced a package of financial support for local
government, providing three central pillars of support:
COVID-19 related expenditure
- An overall £4.3 billion non ring-fenced allocation. The allocations reflect the
factors from which the MHCLG monthly data returns (as completed by each
Local Authority) correlate most closely with expenditure. The allocations also
take account of population, deprivation and the way that service costs vary
across the country.
Irrecoverable income loss
- Recognises that Councils have lost a great deal of income from sales, fees
and charges (SFC) since the start of the pandemic.
- Reimbursements of lost income where these losses are more than 5% of
planned income - Government will fund 75p in every pound. The income
scheme will cover transactional income from the delivery of services which is
unavoidably irrecoverable – this will be the net loss. The 5% deductible will be
based on total SFC’s budgets - it is not a line by line analysis. No forms of
commercial income will be covered by this scheme.
Losses in tax revenue
- Tax deficits can be repaid over three years rather than the usual one
- There is uncertainty at this point how much tax loss will materialise, so the
government have agreed an apportionment of irrecoverable council tax and
business rates losses, between central and local government, for 2020 to
2021.
4.13. In addition, Government has provided financial support to Councils to:
 administer the business grants and self-isolation payment process
 support homelessness activity
 support the reopening of high streets
 support with the cost of compliance and enforcement of Covid restrictions
 support the recovery of the Leisure sector (subject to claim)
4.14. The Council has also received funding from Staffordshire County Council to
support track and trace compliance and enforcement duties.
4.15. The table below provides a summary of Government and County funding
(confirmed and estimated)
Covid Grant Support
Covid 19 General Support- Phases 1-4
Covid 19 Grants Admin Support
Covid 19 Income Loss Support (est)
Covid 19 Leisure Recovery Fund (est)
General Support
Covid 19 Track & Trace (via County)
Covid 19 Compliance Enforcement
Service Specific Support
Total

SMDC
£
1,279,830
213,336
369,790
180,000
2,042,956
125,190
39,516
164,706
2,207,662

Page 69

Tier Classifications / Second National Lockdown
4.16. In an attempt to contain localised increases in Covid-19 cases, the Government
introduced a tiered system at the end of September 2020. The tiers (originally
three) – medium, high and very high – represented various restrictions dependent
on the classification.
4.17. Staffordshire had been placed in the ‘tier 2 – high’ category from 31st October
2020 – which introduced restrictions on household mixing indoors.
4.18. However, on 31st October, the Prime Minister announced a second national
lockdown in England from 5th November to 2nd December. Similar to the first
national lockdown, all non-essential shops, leisure and hospitality businesses are
required to close, but education facilities will this time remain open.
4.19. The District was then placed in Tier 3 from 2nd December, with some businesses
then allowed to reopen (hospitality, accommodation and some leisure businesses
still closed) and has subsequently been placed in the new ‘Tier 4 – Stay at Home’
from 31st December – which effectively replicates the second lockdown position
with non-essential shops / personal care businesses closing again.
4.20. As of 5th January 2021, England has been placed into a full national lockdown with
schools also closing.
4.21. There will no doubt be an impact on the provision of Council services and
consequential increased costs / reduced income. This impact will be estimated
within the report and assumptions made in respect of further Government funding
as a result of the national lockdown.
5.

Transformation Programme

5.1.

Introduction

5.1.1. The Council’s ‘transformation programme’ incorporates all major projects which
meet the strategic priorities of the authority and have significant financial
implications, including: The Capital Programme
 Treasury management implications of capital programme and economic
changes
 The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy
 The Council’s major contracts
 Member Priority Projects
5.1.2. The delivery of transformation programme projects is monitored by the
Transformation Board made up of Directors, along with key Heads of Service and
officers. A Director is allocated as ‘project executive’ and a full business case
appraisal is completed for each project.
5.1.3. The progress and current financial projections of the transformation programme is
explored below along with any potential revenue and capital consequences. Any
further work required to identify the financial implications of the programme are
discussed and will feed into future MTFP updates.

Page 70

5.2.

Capital Strategy

5.2.1. In accordance with the requirements of the 2017 edition of the Chartered Institute
of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code for Capital Finance
in Local Authorities, the Capital Strategy has been updated for 2021/22.
5.2.2. The Strategy, which is being presented to members along side this report, explains
how capital expenditure and investment decisions are taken in line with the
Council’s Corporate Plan and service objectives, taking account of stewardship,
value for money, prudence, risk management, sustainability and affordability.
5.2.3. The Capital Strategy is detailed in APPENDIX B.
5.3.

Capital Programme

5.3.1. The Capital Programme presented to Members in February 2020 has been
reviewed, re-profiled and updated to reflect the latest position in terms of capital
projections to 31st March 2025. The review also estimates the impact Covid-19
has had on delivery of the approved programme. Some projects have inevitably
been delayed due to the lockdown periods, social distancing measures and
contractor availability.
5.3.2. Consequently, the five-year capital programme (including 2020/21) is forecast at
£16,311,600. The latest capital projections, specifically identifying the major
schemes, are summarised in the table below. Full detail is attached in ANNEX A.
Service Area

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£
775,640
790,000
116,610
986,130
408,850

£
663,160
1,515,650
141,900
1,716,940
651,920

£
1,404,360
1,500,000
50,000
100,000

£
915,490
1,500,000
50,000
301,640
41,920

£
1,081,390
1,500,000
50,000
50,000

£
4,840,040
6,805,650
408,510
3,004,710
1,252,690

Total Revised Programme
Financed by:External Contributions
Capital Receipts
Capital Reserve
Earmarked Reserves
Borrowing

3,077,230

4,689,570

3,054,360

2,809,050

2,681,390

16,311,600

795,000
110,000
557,000
220,850
1,394,380

1,512,390
25,000
3,152,180

1,500,000
77,500
1,476,860

1,500,000
1,309,050

1,500,000
1,181,390

6,807,390
212,500
557,000
220,850
8,513,860

Total Revised Financing

3,077,230

4,689,570

3,054,360

2,809,050

2,681,390

16,311,600

Asset Management Plan
Housing Grants
ICT Strategy
Fleet Management
Other Schemes

2020/21

Total

5.3.3. The capital projections above include the carry forward of £596,840 capital
budgets from 2019/20. Further detail on the capital schemes are provided below.

Page 71

Asset Management Plan (AMP)
5.3.4. It is essential that the Council maintains an asset base, which delivers the
ambitions of the Corporate Plan – however, this needs to be affordable. The
Capital Strategy sets out the outcomes and actions emerging from a report
presented to Cabinet on 20th September 2016 – which was based on the result of
asset condition surveys completed on the Council’s property portfolio.
5.3.5. This included the potential capital and revenue financial implications of
maintaining the Council’s current property assets over a 30 year period, as
summarised below:SMDC AMP Capital Investment & Revenue
Consequence
(AS AT SEPT 2016)

2016-17 –
2019-20
£

Public Buildings
Car Parks
Public Conveniences
Waterways & Infrastructure Assets
Leisure Centres
Depots and Parks Buildings
Industrial Units
TOTAL
Revenue Consequences (cost of borrowing)

2020-21 –
2045-46
(26 years)
£

TOTAL
£

1,010,850
754,000
181,400
479,361
310,000
97,070
80,380
2,913,061

2,761,600
4,293,431
415,800
448,761
10,005,995
2,355,714
392,050
20,673,351

3,772,450
5,047,431
597,200
928,122
10,315,995
2,452,784
472,430
23,586,412

115,959

943,653

1,059,612

5.3.6. This position has been reviewed and updated annually to take account of any
changes and updates to stock information since September 2016, and has
subsequently been reviewed again for the purposes of this report.
5.3.7. The table below reflects the updated capital investment requirements as at
February 2021, adjusted for 2019/20 actual outturn, any in-year re-profiling that
has taken place in 2020/21 and changes to spending plans – which reduces the
forecast capital spend by £996,607 over the 30 years from the original position;
reported in September 2016.
SMDC AMP Capital
Investment

Public Buildings
Car Parks
Public Conveniences
Waterways & Infrastructure
Leisure Centres
Depots and Parks Buildings
Industrial Units
Total
Revenue Consequences

2025-26
to 2046-47

MTFP

TOTAL

2016-17
(Actuals)

2017-18
(Actuals)

2018-19
(Actuals)

2019-20
(Actuals)

2020-21
to 2023-24

2024-25

(21 Years)

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

70,020
5,270
1,700
76,990

410,000
1,290
3,280
261,090
95,170
770,830

387,460
4,660
1,790
5,090
1,650
3,810
404,460

12,120
394,620
31,310
84,640
2,410
3,920
58,580
587,600

641,560
399,890
169,050
232,080
1,280,700
956,660
78,710
3,758,650

418,220
371,950
172,400
56,820
62,000
1,081,390

2,153,770
3,809,554
361,900
343,761
7,512,818
1,488,882
269,200
15,939,885

4,093,150
4,981,964
565,540
928,631
9,070,288
2,507,932
472,300
22,619,805

-

11,250

30,700

22,300

183,040

48,880

680,260

976,430

Page 72

5.3.8.

The Council will be developing an Asset Management Strategy over the next 12
months to ensure the future delivery of efficient asset management. This work
will be progressed once the condition surveys have been undertaken and the
updated 30 year costs of maintaining the general fund asset stock are known.
The above will then be reset.

5.3.9.

Any positive revenue implications of the asset management strategy, for
example, reduced annual maintenance and utility costs due to fewer and/or more
efficient buildings and income receipts from shared accommodation partners will
be taken towards the efficiency programme.
Affordable Housing Project

5.3.10. The Council has a joint venture housing company established in partnership with
Your Housing. The company developed some 290 affordable homes up until
2016. Since then further developments have not been feasible. Ascent now only
trades as a registered provider with a portfolio of some 211 rented properties.
5.3.11. A £5million debenture facility was fully drawn in 2014/15, and is generating
annual income of £100,000 for the remainder of the 25 year period (subject to
early repayments by Ascent).
5.3.12. In addition, £14million of a £20million loan facility has been drawn to date, it is
assumed for the purposes of this report that the remaining £6million loan facility
will not be drawn during the 4 year period (which is subject to review as per
paragraph 5.3.14)
5.3.13. The first tranche of the loan facility of £7m matured from the initial five year loan
period in October 2017 and since then has been refinanced by Ascent with the
Council for short-term periods of up to 1 year on a rolling basis. The second
tranche of the loan facility matured from the initial five year loan period in
November 2019; this has similarly been refinanced for a short-term period of up
to 1 year. At each point of refinancing, the rate is reset at the PWLB rate on the
day plus the margin of 1.25%.
5.3.14. Short-term refinancing has been utilised whilst the dissolution of Ascent
progresses (as per the report approved by Cabinet on 18th June 2019) and wider
funding arrangements are explored between Your Housing and the Council.
There are no assumptions of the potential financial impact of the outcome of this
review included at this stage. Further updates will provided in future MTFP
updates once a new funding agreement has been confirmed.
Housing Grants
5.3.15. The District Council is the duty holder under the Housing Grants, Construction
and Regeneration Act 1996 for mandatory Disabled Facilities Grant (DFGs) and
this status remains despite changes to funding arrangements. All eligible
applicants are entitled to receive mandatory funding for certain major
adaptations to their properties.

Page 73

5.3.16. The funding for these adaptations had previously been given directly to the
council but from 2015/16, the funding has been incorporated into the Better Care
Fund and paid to the County Council.
5.3.17. The Better Care Fund is a single pooled fund for all health and social care
provision and covers the whole range of services including public health, social
care services and clinical commissioning groups
5.3.18. Government funding has increased each year since 2015/16. Based on current
information (as at Quarter Three), the allocation for 2020/21 will not be fully
utilised to support the current year’s grants programme; this will bring the
Disabled Facility reserve up to £3.9m at year end.
5.3.19. There is currently no waiting list for DFG assessments and so if there is to be
any significant spend against the new increased budget, there is a pressing
need to find new areas to invest as well as embarking on a robust campaign to
promote the traditional DFG scheme to local residents. There is scope to do this
as part of the funding agreement as long as any proactive scheme outside the
mandatory DFG programme is agreed with the County Council and is restricted
to capital expenditure. A new dedicated DFG promotion/project Officer post has
now been recruited, and the role aims to ensure that both the mandatory and
discretionary grant schemes are promoted across all areas of Staffordshire
Moorlands. The Officer will work with our DFG Service Provider to explore
creative mechanisms for making sure the grant offer reaches the widest possible
client base.
5.3.20. Examples of initiatives which are being explored are; investment in local
schools, catering for persons with disability needs; work with local social housing
providers to look at dementia friendly adaptations or improvements to existing
housing schemes with a significant number of elderly residents. There are also
opportunities to work with local community groups to help them develop
schemes in their areas that benefit the disabled community.
ICT Strategy
5.3.21. The framework for the existing ICT Strategy was established in 2014/15. The
key drivers of which were to support delivery of the Efficiency and Rationalisation
Plan, provide the infrastructure to support joint working, support new ways of
working and improve access to services for our customers.
5.3.22. Following on from this, a refreshed, updated IT Strategy is currently being
developed. The aim of which is to drive a change in culture and deliver the
systems, processes and skills required in an environment where information is
shared seamlessly though connected systems. This will reduce costs of services
through optimisation, improving online services and enabling customers to selfserve more transactions. This will also reduce manual administrative tasks,
removing paper processes and allowing Officers to focus on high-value tasks.
5.3.23. Consequently, estimated requirements of £246,410 are included within the
MTFP, which primarily relate to the implementation of a system to aid waste
collection processes and the migration and compliance requirements of the
cash receipting system.

Page 74

5.3.24. There are other projects currently at initial business case or procurement stage,
such as; the migration of the current licensing system, replacement procurement
workflow system and review of the customer portal and integration into back
office systems. Therefore, at this stage and additional £50,000 per annum has
also been added to the capital programme to reflect this. More accurate
costings will be developed as business cases
5.3.25. There is also £100,000 set aside in an earmarked reserve which was established
specifically to support with the implementation of the ICT Strategy.
Fleet Management
5.3.26. The Council’s Fleet management arrangements have been subject to a funding
review. Responsibility for maintaining the Council’s fleet has now transferred to
Alliance Environment Service (AES), however, the responsibility for funding fleet
acquisitions remains with the Council. The fleet review aims to deliver savings
to be realised against the efficiency programme by ensuring the most cost
effective funding options are selected for the various types of vehicles.
5.3.27. The former contract hire agreements terminated on 30th June 2018, and the
majority of vehicles under the agreement were directly purchased. An options
appraisal undertaken on the funding of refuse freighters highlighted direct
purchase (via the capital programme funded by borrowing or capital
reserves/capital receipts) as the most cost effective method of funding.
5.3.28. A Fleet Strategy is currently being drafted which will set out the fleet renewal
programme and process, incorporating financial, procurement and operational
considerations.
5.3.29. For the purposes of this report, it has been assumed that all replacement vehicle
requirements over the next four years will be funded via direct capital purchase –
but this will be subject to further funding options appraisals prior to purchase.
Therefore, at this stage, the capital programme includes an allocation of
£3,004,710 in order to replace vehicles as they reach the end of their useful
lives.
5.3.30. Where possible, funds are set aside and held within an earmarked reserve for
the purpose of funding short-life capital purchase such as fleet. This further
reduces the overall cost of financing the vehicle fleet by reducing borrowing
costs.
New/Other Capital Commitments
5.3.31. The below provides details and estimated costs of new capital schemes which
the Council is aiming to progress during the 4 year MTFP period, as well as any
other potential schemes currently being developed where further work is required
to estimate costings:
- Forsbrook Community Project - £200,000
Partnership contribution & loan towards development of a community
facility & improvements to car parking services

Page 75

-

Leek Town Football Club – contribution towards a 3G pitch - £100,000
Representing a contribution towards the installation of a 3G pitch

-

Investment in ICT Digital Transformation & ICT Investment - £68,450
Includes the migration to a new payments system.

-

Outdoor Sports Facilities - £100,000
Allocation available to support requests for funding of improvements to
small outdoor sports facilities.

-

Moorlands Partnership grant funding - £50,000
Moorlands partnership annual contribution; to support the board’s work in
awarding grants to improve historic buildings and structures.

In addition, there is £140,000 set aside as the remaining committed contribution
to support the refurbishment and upgrade of Cheadle Town Council facilities (first
tranche was allocated to play facilities), the Council is currently awaiting detailed
proposals of these plans.
Financing the Capital Programme
5.3.32. The capital programme can be funded from a number of options which include
external grants and contributions from third parties comprising of Government
and lottery funding; capital receipts from asset sales as part of the asset
management plan; earmarked revenue reserves and borrowing.
5.3.33. The main area of spending within the current programme which is expected to be
funded from external resources is support towards Disabled Facilities Grants.
Estimated capital receipts of £0.21m will be available over the next five years
(subject to a review of surplus assets). Revenue and capital reserves of £0.78m
are forecast (at this stage) to be applied over the period.
5.3.34. Where no other resources can be applied, borrowing becomes the funding option
for the programme. The Council’s estimated borrowing requirement over the 4
years is shown below:Borrowing Requirement
Total

2021/22
£
224,580

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£
323,870

£
379,190

£
438,350

5.3.35. The Treasury Management Strategy then considers whether this is funded
externally or internally - both options have a consequence on revenue either
through reduced investment income or increased external interest liability as
highlighted in the table in 5.3.36.
5.3.36. It is proposed to utilise reserves allocated for capital spend (where possible)
where an options appraisal on the acquisition of short-life assets such as
vehicles, plant and equipment has been carried out and suggests that the most
financially viable option is to outright purchase.

Page 76

Revenue Consequences of the Capital Programme
5.3.37. The capital investment proposals above will result in estimated revenue
consequences as follows:
Revenue Consequence
(changes year-on-year)

5.4.

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£

£

Ascent Loan Income
Debenture Income
Investment Income
Borrowing Costs

£
122,510
0
(1,150)
41,140

£
37,960
0
0
88,570

0
0
(2,620)
45,780

0
0
(60)
43,850

Total

162,500

126,530

43,160

43,790

Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy

5.4.1. The current Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy was approved by Members in
February 2017, which identified a programme of £3.1 million (including £443,600
in unachieved efficiencies from the previous efficiency programme) in savings to
be made over the period 2017/18 – 2020/21.
5.4.2. The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy has the effect of both reducing
expenditure and increasing income. The need to grow income is now more of a
priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing i.e. not reliant on
direct government funding such as revenue support grant.
5.4.3. The strategy was developed with the underlying principles of protecting frontline
service delivery. It was also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable the
Council to ensure that its service spending is determined by the established
priorities set out in the Corporate Plan.
5.4.4. There are five areas of focus:






Major Procurements - There is the opportunity to focus attention on a
number of large service functions which are currently provided by an external
contractor / supplier. A number of significant contracts are coming to an end.
This will also allow a fundamental review of these services with proper
consideration of the current financial constraints. The contract commitments
have sometimes restricted the opportunity to align services across the
alliance with High Peak. The individual projects will focus on Waste
Collection & Environment Services, Leisure Management and Facilities
Management
Asset Management Plan – continuation of the existing priority of rationalising
the Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities in order to allow for the
necessary capital investment
Growth – development of a clear focus upon housing and economic growth
based upon the established Local Plan.
Income Generation – focus on increasing the yield from existing sources on
income and a drive towards identifying new sources of income
Rationalisation – a commitment to reducing expenditure on non-priority
areas of spend e.g. management arrangements, channel shift, non-statutory
services

Page 77

5.4.5. The below table summarises the finanical savings requirements and original
profile for achievement (ANNEX B provides more detail of the savings plan):General Fund Efficiency
Strategy
Major Procurements
Asset Management
Growth
Income Generation
Rationalisation
TOTAL

2017/18

2018/19

£
100,000
50,000
65,000
305,000
141,000
661,000

2019/20

£
275,000
50,000
150,000
355,000
830,000

2020/21

£
£
100,000
600,000
25,000
25,000
250,000
300,000
100,000
250,000
475,000 1,175,000

TOTAL
£
1,075,000
150,000
765,000
1,010,000
141,000
3,141,000

5.4.6. Subsequently, a review was undertaken in February 2019 to assess the timing
and estimated value of future savings based on the current programme. When
setting the MTFP in February, there remained a £1.150 million savings target to
be achieved in 2020/21 and 2021/22. Following additional savings that were
realised in quarter 4 of 2019/20, the overall target remaining has been reduced
to £967,000.
5.4.7. The table below shows the projected reprofiled Efficiency Programme (taking
into account the actual 2019/20 efficiency target achieved):2017/18
£
Original Programme
Amended Programme
Variance
Achieved Q4 2019/20
Revised Target

661,000
661,000
661,000

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

TOTAL

£

£

£

£

£

830,000
488,000
(342,000)

475,000
842,000
367,000
183,000
1,025,000

1,175,000
702,000
(473,000)
(183,000)
519,000

488,000

3,141,000
448,000 3,141,000
448,000
448,000 3,141,000

5.4.8. The Efficiency Programme continues to progress, however, with the coronavirus
pandemic, progression has stalled during 2020/21, with £136,600 in savings
realised at the Quarter Three stage in 2020/21 (against an updated target of
£519,000).
5.4.9. The Covid-19 recovery phase and impact on the Council’s financial position is
forecast at this stage to continue into 2021/22 (if not longer). Therefore, it is
recognised that delivering the 2021/22 savings requirement of £448,000
(together with any shortfall from 2020/21) may prove to be extremely difficult.
However, there are significant savings planned for realisation in the next 12
months in regard to fleet procurement. In addition, the Council has an
earmarked reserve established to support with any reprofiling requirements of
the efficiency programme with £493,000 currently set aside. Therefore, if there
was a shortfall in achieving savings in 2021/22, this reserve could be used.
5.4.10.No assumptions in respect of any ‘new’ efficiency programme have been
incorporated into this iteration of the plan.

Page 78

5.5.

Major Contracts

5.5.1. One of the major cost pressures as a result of Covid-19 has been the impact on
some of the Council’s major contracts. However, there are also other potential
pressures, as well as potential savings that need to be reflected in the MTFP
forecast.
Alliance Environmental Services
5.5.2. Alliance Environmental Services (AES) is a company created with a vision to
deliver waste, street cleansing and grounds maintenance services in the High
Peak and Staffordshire Moorlands areas. The company has three shareholders:
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council, High Peak Borough Council and Ansa,
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire East Council.
5.5.3. The company has experienced additional cost pressures as a result of the Covid19 pandemic in regard to additional agency and overtime costs to enable social
distancing and additional cleaning and personal protective equipment – the
amount apportioned to SMDC is forecast at £163,840 in 2020/21.
5.5.4. The contract fee for 2021/22 has been established following discussions between
the Council and AES. The contract fee has been calculated based on the base
2020/21 contract fee plus 2021/22 inflation/growth items less forecast savings
achieved.
5.5.5. Change demand items flagged by AES which will affect the management fee
from 2021/22 include: Increased waste tonnage costs (ongoing covid effect);
Recycling contracts decline in market, impact on income, offset partially by an
increase in recycling credits from increased tonnage (covid effect).
5.5.6. Savings of £500,000 were originally forecast in the Efficiency & Rationalisation
Programme – which are split between AES and savings to be achieved from
Council retained budgets.
Leisure Centres
5.5.7. Financial support has been provided in respect of the Council’s leisure centre
operation during the various lockdown and recovery periods – which is being
rolled on a monthly basis. The leisure centre operation has seen income receipts
wiped out during the period the leisure centres were closed and is forecasting
slow recovery phase as footfall is reduced in the early stages of recovery to
maintain social distancing and facilities are opened on a phased basis. The
second lockdown means that the facilities will once again close during this
period.
5.5.8. An estimated £763,230 spend pressure is currently assumed in 2020/21 which is
largely covered by Government COVID-19 support grants and the assumption
that the Council will be allocated funding via the Leisure recovery fund.

Page 79

5.5.9. Recognising that leisure centre recovery may be prolonged and income levels
may not reach pre-COVID-19 levels in the near future, a £452,000 growth item
has been built into the MTFP in 2021/22 based on latest forecasts of Leisure
Centre recovery, which is offset by an assumed £180,000 in grant funding from
the Leisure recovery Fund – this is reversed back out from 2022/23 on the
working assumption of a return to pre COVID-19 levels.
5.5.10. It has not been confirmed at this stage if the Leisure Recovery fund will
continue into 2021/22, which places a risk on the assumptions included in the
MTFP.
Facilities Management
5.5.11. In 2020/21 the Cleaning & Caretaking Contract was taken over by Vertas
(having been outsourced by Derbyshire County Council), the Council are
currently working with Vertas to mitigate any overspend in 2020/21 and arrive at
a balanced budget in 2021/22.
5.5.12. The Council are currently exploring an alternative delivery model for the
operation of Facilities Management via establishing a trading company in
partnership with High Peak B.C. and Norse Commercial Services (wholly
owned by Norfolk County Council) This is subject to conclusion and approval of
the business case. No financial consequences of this arrangement have been
built into the MTFP at this stage.

Page 80

5.6.

Member Priority Actions / Projects

5.6.1.

During the development of the Corporate Plan a number of priority actions have
been identified and prioritised by members. These are as follows:
Financial Implications
Member Priority Actions / Projects

(y/n)

Leader
Develop and implement a plan to identify new and innovative ways of
generating income

Firm - in
plans

Costs
understood not in plans

Costs
not yet
known

Y



Support the development of Cornhill and improved rail links

Y



Develop a masterplan for bringing redundant mills back into use

Y



Support the development of Cornhill and improved rail links

Y



Refresh the Council’s Communications Strategy in order to ensure that
there is a more effective dialogue with residents

N

Implement the Council’s Growth Strategy to bring about the
regeneration of towns and rural communities

N

Develop a new Organisational Development Strategy to ensure that our
workforce is developed effectively
Leisure and Sports

Y

Identify and implement an approach to reduce the cost of country parks

Y

Review the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy in order to integrate the
communities and sports clubs into the delivery of its objectives

N

Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the transfer of services to Alliance
Environmental Services Ltd, to deliver ground maintenance services on
behalf of the Council in order to achieve improved performance and
value for money outcomes

Y

Develop a plan to improve Brough Park and John Hall Gardens

Y



Y



Y



Develop and implement an ongoing indoor leisure facilities
improvement plan focussed on improving the health and wellbeing of
residents
Develop and implement an outdoor leisure facilities improvement plan
focussed around the “sports village” concept
Customer Services
Continue to embed good information management practices through
the ASSURED framework

N

Develop a new ICT Strategy to enhance and support the delivery of
services

Y

Develop a new Procurement Strategy with a focus on spending money
locally

N

Develop an Access to Services to ensure that Council services are
accessible to all

Page 81

Y











Financial Implications
Member Priority Actions / Projects

(y/n)

Firm in
plans

Costs
understood not in plans

Costs
not yet
known

Environment
Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the transfer of services to Alliance
Environmental Services Ltd to deliver street cleansing services on behalf of the
Council in order to achieve improved performance and value for money
outcomes

Y

Review the Council’s waste & recycling arrangements to increase recycling
and to respond to the emerging new national strategy

Y

Review the Environmental Enforcement Policy in order to take steps to further
environmental crime





N

Climate Change
Develop a Climate Change Strategy and an action plan of response to a
declared climate emergency



Y

Communities
Complete the review of the CCTV system and implement the agreed
recommendations

Y

Develop a strategy for further development of affordable and specialist housing

Y

Develop a Private Sector Housing Strategy to improve conditions for
homeowners and private tenants

N

Develop a Tourism Strategy to maximise the positive impact to our
communities

N

Review the Council’s community support arrangements in order to maintain
strong partnerships with community groups
Planning & Property

N

Refresh and implement the Asset Management Plan, including a review of
public estate, and ensure adequate facilities management arrangements are in
place

Y



Develop and implement plans to improve the public market operations

Y



Adopt a new Local Plan

Y



Develop a new Parking Strategy to ensure that our car parks meet the needs
of residents and visitors

Y






5.6.2. Any costs or revenue associated with these actions will need to be included in
the MTFP. The impact of a number of them is already included in this iteration
of the plan but additional work will need to be undertaken to develop a number
of the actions further and at the same time identify any financial implications.

Page 82

6.

Financial Forecasts

6.1.

Introduction

6.1.1. A review of financial forecasts includes: Updated interest rate forecasts
 Updated inflationary projections
 Any pensions impact relating to economic changes
 Estimation of any budget demand or growth items that have been
incorporated into the MTFP, including additional medium term costs of
COVID recovery (in accordance with work streams Reinstating Services,
Economic recovery and Community recovery)
 Potential financial savings from new ways of working (in accordance with
recovery plan stream Taking advantage of the positive legacy)
6.2.

Interest Rates

6.2.1. Following the decrease in the Bank of England base rate to 0.10% in March 2020,
and the context of the impact of the coronavirus pandemic, the expectation is that
interest rates will continue at current low levels throughout the period of the
MTFP, with only a small potential increase in the 4th year.
6.2.2. The Council’s advisors Link do not include negative interest rates in their forecast,
but their average earning forecast shows an expectation of near 0% return.
6.2.3. The PWLB consultation was released at the end of November 2020 and, as was
widely anticipated, rates were reduced by 1%, a reversal of the overnight 1%
increase that was imposed in October 2019, along with a restriction that Councils
cannot borrow from the PWLB if they have purchase any assets which are
primarily debt for yield.
6.2.4. This has not directly impacted the forecast of borrowing interest rates as
borrowing from other Local Authorities was assumed as these are currently at
extremely low levels. However, the reintroduction of the PWLB for borrowing as
result of this interest rate reduction provides more options for the Council to
borrow particular for longer periods.
6.2.5. Based on the current forecasts, changes in investment income and borrowing
costs (based on interest rate changes) are highlighted below:Changes to treasury estimates
based on interest rate changes

Changes in Investment Income
Changes in Borrowing costs

2021/22
£
68,950
(149,290)

2022/23
£
(1,360)
10,720

2023/24
£
60
9,540

2024/25
£
(14,510)
15,310

6.2.6. The forecast budget for borrowing costs and investment income are shown
below:-

Page 83

Treasury Budgets – Borrowing
costs and investment Income

Borrowing Costs
Investment Income

6.3.

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£
224,580
(543,590)

£
323,870
(506,990)

£
379,190
(509,550)

£
438,350
(524,120)

Inflationary Projections

6.3.1. The Retail Price Index (RPI) and Consumer Price Index (CPI) 12 month rate, as at
December 2019, stood at 1.2 % and 0.6% respectively. Inflation forecasts are
made reflecting the composition of the Council’s expenditure, resulting in an
inflation rate specific to the Council.
6.3.2. This includes the impact on staff pay, supplies and services, premises related
costs an transport. The inflationary effects of Covid-safe working arrangements
will feed through the system as increased supplies and service costs as contracts
are renewed and uplifted.
6.3.3. The MTFP has been updated to reflect the latest forecasts on inflation and to roll
forward a further 12 months to include the 2024/25 financial year. The full costs to
the Council arising from inflation are forecast in the table below.
Expenditure/Income

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£

£

£

£

Employee Costs

195,060

142,790

65,000

65,560

Premises Costs

27,190

27,530

27,870

28,220

-

-

1,410

1,430

Supplies and Services

135,880

113,760

108,870

110,010

In-Year Inflation Pressure

358,130

284,080

203,150

205,220

Transport

6.4.

2021/22

Budgetary Demand

6.4.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan presented to Council in February 2020 analysed
and projected forward both income and expenditure. This has been revised to
reflect known changes in budgetary demand.
6.4.2. The current changes in budgetary demand, included in this iteration of MTFP, are
highlighted below:-

Page 84

Increased / (Reduced) Budget Demand

Uniforms – Customer Services

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£

£

£

£

(2,500)

2,500

(2,500)

2,500

120,200

-

-

-

81,000

(81,000)

-

-

AES Waste tonnage increase - Covid effect

107,500

9,800

10,400

11,000

AES Recycling contracts decline in market

56,200

20,200

19,400

18,600

Recycling credits - Covid effect - increased tonnage

(45,000)

-

-

-

Leisure Centre Support

272,000 (272,000)

-

-

- (109,500) (60,000)

-

Contract Hire Adjustment
Car Park income loss - Covid effect

AES contract sum planned reduction
Staffs Wildlife Trust SLA - Planning Ecological support

24,500

Assets - Asbestos & Legionella surveys

10,000

(10,000)

Assets - H&S Path Maintenance

10,000

(7,500)

Assets - Bus shelter maintenance

15,000

Regeneration - Market Stalls AES

53,000

Development Control - design support

6,500

Local Plan - Base budget realignment

(51,500)

(53,000)

(20,000)

8,000

ICT Costs – Mid call upgrade
Homelessness - Funding contributions

(43,000)

Total

621,900 (520,500) (32,700)

6.4.3. In the table above the following items merit further explanation:

Leisure centres – one year support of £452,000 has been included with an
assumption that further Government assistance will be available in 2021/22;
the net provision for this purpose is £272,000.

Car parks - income loss due to Covid has been included to the sum of
£81,000 for one year only. This is in part offset by Government Income
Loss Compensation Grant assumed at £20,000

Waste Collection - Recycling cost pressures of £163,700 have been
included due to increased tonnages – offset by increased credits income.

Market stalls – increased setting up costs in 2021/22 following withdrawal of
former contractor. Alternative arrangements to be reviewed for 2022/23.

Local Plan – Following recent adoption of the Local Plan the budget
requirements are reduced now for a number of years.

Page 85

32,100

6.4.4. In addition to the above, there may be a requirement to include upfront increased
budget demand in relation to climate change related projects in future years.
Some of these costs may already be included with the MTFP forecast – for
example, schemes within the asset management plan and fleet purchase
programme where environmental impact will be a significant consideration.
However, any additional costs will be assessed and included within future MTFP
iterations once known and the business case has been developed.
6.4.5. It may also be necessary to include increased budget provision as a result of the
completion of service plans and in accordance with the Organisational Strategy –
which is scheduled to be reviewed in line with Corporate Plan objectives.
Additional staff resource or expertise may be necessary to deliver specific
projects. This will be reviewed by the Transformation Board as part of the
business case process for each project.
6.4.6. Any financial savings realised as a result of work practices changed due to Covid
will be offset against the remaining efficiency programme targets. Relevant areas
of potential saving include printing, travel costs, postage and utilities.
6.5.

Budget Growth

6.5.1. In previous years, very few additions in respect of budget growth have been
included in the MTFP. It is assumed in light of the financial pressures faced by the
Council, that any local issues that necessitate budget growth will be financed by
internal spending reductions elsewhere. Occasionally, however, it is necessary to
include budget growth to meet spending commitments. No such items are
included in this iteration of the MTFP.
6.6.

Pensions

6.6.1. The Pension Fund triennial valuation, which took place in 2019, fixed the Council’s
contributions for the first 2 years of this plan. A further valuation is to take place in
2022, which will set the contributions payable up until 2025/26.
6.6.2. At this stage the plan assumes no further increase in contributions will be
necessary arising out of the 2022 valuation. At the 2019 valuation the Staffordshire
Moorlands portion of the Pension Fund had a funding level of 84%.
6.6.3. The impacts of Covid19 are not expected to have an effect on pension contribution
rates at this stage. The long term nature of Pension Fund forecasting means the
impacts of short term financial shocks are mitigated. This situation will continue to
be monitored following the outcome of this next valuation.
6.6.4. The Council carries an earmarked reserve for Pension purposes, which was
originally set up to meet extraordinary pension costs outside if the actuarial
valuation process. It has become obsolete having never been used for this
purpose and it is proposed that this reserve is re-designated and transferred to
General Fund contingency.

Page 86

7.

Funding & Income Generation

7.1.

Introduction

7.1.1. The key areas of funding and income generation include:

Council Tax and Business Rates collection

Income from Government Grants

Longer term impact on fees and charges income
7.2.

Council Tax

7.2.1. The Council has the capacity to vary Council Tax levels, following the abolition of
capping. However the Council’s ability to increase Council Tax by more than a
certain percentage is subject to referendum. For 2021/22, this percentage has
been confirmed as 2%, but alternatively, lower tier Authorities have the option to
increase the Band D equivalent by a set £5 – and so can apply either the 2% or
£5 – whichever is higher.
7.2.2. In line with current guidance, this iteration of the MTFP assumes that a £5
increase is applied in 2021/22 with 1.9% assumed from 2022/23 onwards (as
Government consultation is currently ongoing regarding future years).
7.2.3. Provision has been included within the Plan to reflect anticipated growth in Council
Tax base over the next 4 years. Having seen the growth in tax base slow during
the pandemic as house-building and employment levels were affected; it is
assumed that this will recover in 2022/23 boosted by an upturn in the economy.
The figures included are shown in the table below:
Increased Council Tax Income

Council Tax increase
Revenue from tax base growth
TOTAL
Council Tax Income Budget

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£

£

£

£

(165,520)
(5,980)
(171,500)

(107,900)
(59,790)
(167,690)

(111,090)
(45,820)
(156,910)

(114,070)
(46,690)
(160,760)

(5,679,150)

(5,846,840)

(6,003,750)

(6,164,510)

7.2.4. There is an increased risk associated with non-payment as a result of the impact
of Covid-19, with some households potentially struggling to meet instalments.
Collection Rates for 2020/21 are behind what they normally are, although this is
currently largely distorted by deferred payments plans and stalled recovery.
Having said that, it is recognised that there will be an impact on collection rates in
2021/22. However, the financial impact will only be realised if outstanding debts
are not collected in the medium term and are subsequently written off.

Page 87

7.3.

Business Rates Retention

7.3.1. Under the 50% Business Rates Retention system, the Authority retains 40% of
Business Rates less a tariff that is payable into a pool maintained by a number of
Staffordshire Authorities. This amount is then compared to a Funding Baseline
(estimated at £2,622,420 for 2021/22); any amount in excess of this Baseline is
subject to levy, or conversely if the amount of retained Business Rates is below
this Baseline, the loss is capped by a safety net payment. The MTFP does not
anticipate the Council falling below the Baseline.
7.3.2. As part of the Staffordshire Pool, the levy or the safety net payment is made to or
from the Pool instead of Central Government. If the Council was not in the
Staffordshire Pool it would have to pay 50p in the £1 to the Government as a levy,
effectively limiting the income the Council can gain from business rates growth.
However, as part of the Pool, the Council retains 40% of this levy plus 20% or
£215,000, whichever is the larger; meaning that for every £1 achieved above the
baseline at least 60% is retained by the Council with the remainder going to the
Pool to be distributed within Staffordshire. The benefit to the Council of being part
of the Pool arrangement is estimated to be £451,730 in 2021/22.
7.3.3. In October 2015, the Government announced a forthcoming package of reforms to
the Business Rates Retention System including a move to local government
retaining 100% of the rates that they received (subsequently being revised to a
75% scheme, although a 100% is once again under consideration) with an end to
Revenue Support Grant. The new scheme will now not be introduced until
2022/23 at the earliest.
7.3.4. The MTFP anticipates that Business Rates retention will be above the baseline.
Net income is somewhat suppressed due to the award of reliefs including
increased small business rate relief, caps on inflation to the multiplier, extended
rural relief, and the increase in the provision for RV reductions on successful
appeals. To compensate for the loss of business rates income resulting from the
reliefs, funding has to date been made available to Councils under Section 31 of
the Local Government Act 2003. The MTFP assumes equivalent Section 31
grants will continue on any extension to reliefs announced by the Government.
7.3.5. Extended Retail Relief was announced by Government in March 2020 which
awarded full Business Rates relief to all retail, hospitality and leisure related
businesses (with Councils reimbursed via s31 grants from Government). The
council will ring-fence the additional grant received during 2020/21 relating to
these reliefs, in order to fund the distribution of the additional collection fund deficit
in 2021/22. It is unknown at this stage if the extended Retail Relief will continue
into 2021/22. Either way, the Council would either be reimbursed via Government
grant or the amount would be collectable from businesses.
7.3.6. However, as a result of Covid-19 and the impact recession and social distancing
measures are having on businesses, there is a risk that the District may see a
reduction in the business tax base and therefore business rates retention. A
reduction of 0.5% has been included in this version of the MTFP.

Page 88

7.3.7. There is also a risk associated with non-payment, with businesses potentially
struggling to meet instalments. Collection Rates for 2020/21 are holding up, but
this is dependent on businesses meeting deferred / changed payments plans. A
financial impact of lower collection rates will only be realised if outstanding debts
are not collected in the near term and are subsequently written off. Prior to the
Covid-19 climate an annual provision for bad debts of 0.6% was usually included
in the budget. This has been increased to 1% for 2021/22; 0.8% in 2022/23;
returning to 0.6% in 2023/24 and 2024/25.
7.3.8. Changes in the level of the Council’s business rates will be impacted by a range of
factors, as discussed above, including the Staffordshire Pool’s success in
generating new and retaining existing business within its area. At this stage,
predicted levels of business rates income are based on known and expected
changes to the business rates listing.
Business Rates Retention
In year:
Baseline Funding
Achievement against Baseline
Section 31 Grant
Total

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£

£

£

£

(2,622,420)

(2,665,170)

(2,708,610)

(2,752,760)

165,150

116,580

34,510

(38,810)

(1,344,030)

(1,379,780)

(1,424,940)

(1,470,590)

(3,801,300)

(3,928,370)

(4,099,040)

(4,262,160)

44,790

(91,320)

(125,510)

(117,470)

179,340

(35,750)

(45,160)

(45,650)

224,130

(127,070)

(170,670)

(163,120)

Change between years:
Business Rates retained
Section 31 Grant
Total

7.3.9. The original Staffordshire Business Rates pool was disbanded at the end of
2018/19, with a new pool created from 2019/20. As at 31st March 2019, there
remained a significant balance in the ‘Central Investment Fund’ which had
accumulated over previous years from business rates retention contributions.
Therefore, the Council is due a share of the fund to represent the contributions
made due to participation in the pool – this share amounts to £595,000. This will
be placed into an earmarked reserve and used to support the Council’s future
projects around economic regeneration, business support and improving town
centres as well as supporting economic recovery post Covid-19.
7.4.

Collection Fund

7.4.1. The Council maintains a Collection Fund to record the receipt of Council Tax and
Business Rates and their distribution to precepting authorities. Any surplus or
deficit generated is distributed or recovered from the preceptors in subsequent
years.
7.4.2. The Government announced that it will extend the period over which Councils
must manage exceptional deficits on the collection fund relating to 2020/21 owing
to the Covid-19 situation, from the usual one year to three years. This is intended
to ease immediate pressures on Councils when budget setting for 2021/22,
protecting their ability to deliver essential local services.

Page 89

7.4.3. The hardship element of the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme; and the
Extended Retail Relief and Nursery Discount on Business Rates are all funded by
grants, therefore do not impact on the exceptional deficit.
7.4.4. The Staffordshire Moorlands’ share of a deficit, in respect of Council Tax, to be
distributed in 2021/22 is £72,450. This leaves a small exceptional deficit to be
distributed in 2022/23 and 2023/24 in accordance with the Government’s
allowance that deficits occurring during 2021/22 as a result of the Covid crisis can
be distributed over the next three years as opposed to the normal one.
Staffordshire Moorlands share of this exceptional balance distribution will be
£12,580 in each year.
7.4.5. The government’s Local Taxation Income Guarantee Scheme to compensate local
authorities for 75% of irrecoverable losses on Council Tax is currently forecast as
£13,670 for 2020/21. The indicative allocation for the Local Council Tax Support
Grant in 2021/22 is £91,840.
7.4.6. The Staffordshire Moorlands’ share of the business rates deficit to be distributed in
2021/22 is £3,989,340. The vast majority of this relates to the award of Extended
Retail Relief announced by the Government in response to the Covid crisis.
Therefore the Council has ringfenced s31 grant funding received in 2020/21 to
offset this deficit distribution in 2021/22. This leaves a small exceptional deficit to
be distributed in 2022/23 and 2023/24 in accordance with the Government’s
allowance that deficits occurring during 2021/22 as a result of the Covid crisis can
be distributed over the next three years as opposed to the normal one.
Staffordshire Moorlands share of this exceptional balance distribution will be
£44,300 in each year.
7.4.7. These and future year movements are set out in the table below:
Changes in Collection
Fund Income
Council Tax

7.5.

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£

£

£

£

106,890

(99,420)

8,430

(13,770)

Business Rates

4,334,110

(3,945,040)

0

(44,300)

Total

4,441,000

(4,044,460)

8,430

(58,070)

Income from Government Grants
New Homes Bonus (NHB)

7.5.1. In the provisional Local Government financial settlement released in December,
the Government confirmed that during 2021/22, it would be consulting on a
replacement for the New Homes Bonus scheme (originally planned for 2020/21,
but delayed due to Covid-19). The new housing incentive scheme will reflect a
more targeted approach that rewards local government where they are ‘ambitious’
in delivering housing growth. At this stage, there is no further detail on what form
the new scheme will take.

Page 90

7.5.2. The allocation of New Homes Bonus is secure for 2021/22 albeit reduced
compared to assumption made within the MTFP - the Council will receive
£121,880 in funding next year; beyond that no commitment is made for future
years.
7.5.3. The 2021/22 bonus is made up of £4,480 in new award and £117,400 in legacy
payments relating to previous years’ awards. The low level of new award for
2021/22 reflects the disruption to the house building sector caused by the onset of
the Covid-19 pandemic. As with 2020/21 this new award is for one year only and
does not create legacy payments in future years.
7.5.4. The MTFP presented in November assumed total NHB receipts of £584,670 for
years 2 – 4 of the Plan (2022/23 to 2024/25). This assumption has been reduced
to £450,000 due to the delay in implementation of a new scheme and the low
award in 2021/22. This amount remains at risk if the new scheme is less generous
to Staffordshire Moorlands than the old scheme was.
7.5.5. The recent tendency towards one-off annual awards with no associated legacy
payments, has further eroded the base income received by the Council from this
funding source.
7.5.6. In the absence of any further information, this iteration of the MTFP assumes that
the Council will continue to receive funding at a base level of £150,000 pa; but
does so with the recognition of the major risk this represents to the viability of the
Plan beyond 2021/22.
Local Council Tax Support Grant
7.5.7. The Council operated a scheme whereby funding received from Central
Government in respect of Local Council Tax Support was passed on to the
Parishes by means of an annual grant. The allocation of this grant was based on
the eligibility of parish residents for Council Tax discounts.
7.5.8. The level of resources made available for this grant has been reduced each year
in line with the reduction in overall Government funding suffered by the Authority.
The final year of Local Council Tax Support grant funding was 2018/19. No further
funding is included for this purpose in the Plan.
7.5.9. The basis of the model underlying the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme is
currently being reviewed (but the current scheme will remain unchanged in
2021/22 subject to any changes required by the DWP), primarily as a
consequence of the introduction of Universal Credit. The result of this review,
including any budgetary consequences, will be built into future iterations of the
MTFP.
Covid-19 Related Grant Support
7.5.10. The Council has received Government funding towards Covid-19 pressures during
2020/21. This has included non-ringfenced grants, specific grants (for additional
services provided such as the administration of the grants process and
compliance and enforcement of restrictions) and partial reimbursement of
irrecoverable fees and charges income.

Page 91

7.5.11. As part of the spending review announcement in December 2020, it was
confirmed that Government support would be provided into 2021/22, including the
following grant awards:



Covid-19 Relative Needs Grant (£435,880)
Lower Tier Services Grant (£111,680)
Local Council Tax Support Grant (£91,840)

7.5.12. At this stage, it is assumed that this funding will not continue into future years.
Summary of Income from Government Grants
7.5.13. The table below summarises the movement in Government funding over the
MTFP period:
Government Grant (gain)
/ loss of funding

New Homes Bonus
Covid-19 Funding
Change in Govt Funding

7.6.

2020/21
(Budget)

2021/22
(forecast)

2022/23
(forecast)

2023/24
(forecast)

2024/25
(forecast)

£
(194,890)
(194,890)

£
(121,880)
(659,400)
(781,280)

£
(150,000)
(150,000)

£
(150,000)
(150,000)

£
(150,000)
(150,000)

-

(586,390)

631,280

-

-

Fees and Charges

7.6.1. Charging for local services makes a significant contribution to the Council’s
finances. The Council also uses charging to influence individual choices and
behaviour, and to bring other benefits to local communities. The Council’s
Charging Policy sets out the following principles for establishing the level of fees
and charges:
 The cost of providing services should be fully met by income
 There is a standard approach to concessions for those on low incomes
 Where a subsidy is agreed, this should be used to support the development of
Council services in accordance with priorities
 Subsidies should be reconfirmed annually
7.6.2. Charges are set in line with the categories below
Charging Policy

Policy Objective

Full commercial

Service is promoted to maximise revenue within an overall objective of generating a
surplus from the service

Page 92

Fair charging

Service is promoted to maximise income but subject to defined policy constraints
including commitments made to potential customers on an appropriate fee structure

Cost recovery

Service generally available to all but without a subsidy

Subsidised

Service is widely accessible, but users of the service should make some contribution
from their own resources

Nominal

Service to be fully available and a charge is made to discourage frivolous usage

Free

Service fully available at no cost

Statutory

Charges are set in line with legal obligations

7.6.3.

The proposed fees and charges for 2020/21 are presented in APPENDIX C to this
report.

7.6.4.

The MTFP assumes that income losses suffered in 2020/21 arising out of the
Covid19 outbreak have substantially recovered by 2021/22 except for in the area
of car parking, which is expected to fully recover by 2022/23.

7.6.5.

The Medium Term Financial Plan would normally project that the Council will
increase fees and charges (and other income) broadly in line with inflation. Whilst
recognising that certain income streams (such as car parking, planning receipts)
may not increase each year and that other income streams (such as grants and
rental income) are fixed or subject to periodic review.

7.6.6.

However, the assumed annual increase in base income has been suspended for
years 1 and 2 of the plan, whilst fees and charges income levels recover from the
Covid19 shock. The underlying annual total expected from inflationary increases
to fees and charges from year 3 onwards has been set at £25,000, recognising the
potential overlap with income generation themes included in the Efficiency
Programme.

7.6.7.

In 2021/22, additional revenue had been included arising out of an increase in car
park charges deferred from 2020/21 subject to a review of the Parking Strategy.
This review is underway and so, for now, this assumption has been pushed back
to 2022/23 subject to the outcomes of this. A further increase is factored in for
2023/24 – again subject to the review.

7.6.8.

The projected revenue from increased fees and charges (and other income) is
summarised in the table below:

Page 93

Increased Fees and Changes

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£

£

£

£

Revenue from increased Fees and Charges
Revenue from Car Park charge increase*

-

(85,000)

(25,000)
-

(25,000)
(100,000)

Total

-

(85,000)

(25,000)

(125,000)

(5,679,740)

(5,885,900)

(6,004,370)

(6,035,900)

Total budgeted Income from Fees & Charges
*subject to the outcomes of the Parking Strategy review

8.

Risks, Contingencies & Use of Reserves

8.1.

Contingencies

8.1.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan is underpinned by a number of assumptions.
These assumptions have been made in the light of currently available information.
New information, when it emerges, may require the Council to alter its
assumptions with a consequential effect on the Council’s financial position.
8.1.2. Key risk areas will be closely monitored and reviewed on an ongoing basis and
remedial action taken. Members will receive quarterly updates on performance
against the budget.
8.1.3. The Council carries reserves as a contingency for situations where risks cannot be
fully mitigated. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief
Finance Officer (CFO) to report on the robustness of the estimates included in the
budget and the adequacy of the reserves that the budget provides.
8.1.4. While there is no detailed guidance on calculating the level of general reserves the
Council is encouraged to take into account the strategic, operational and financial
risks facing the Council. These amounts are then moderated to acknowledge the
likelihood of all risk events occurring together. The table below presents analysis
undertaken by the Council in calculating the minimum level of general reserve
required.
Risk Item

Calculation Factor

Page 94

Value

Reserve
Requirement

£’m

£

Expenditure Items (gross) – Employee Related

3% of value

6.33

190,000

Expenditure Items (gross) – Other

3% of value

10.39

312,000

Housing Benefits

0.25% of value

11.50

29,000

Fees and Charges

5.5% of value

5.10

281,000

Interest Receipts/Payments

50% fall in average rate

0.02

10,000

Efficiency Provisions

50% of value

0.70

352,000

Council Tax Collection

2.5% of value

5.68

142,000

Business Rates Retention

6% of value

3..80

228,000

Development Services Income

6% of value

0.50

30,000

Local Land Charges

6% income fall

0.14

8,000

New Homes Bonus

50% income fall

0.12

61,000

Total Requirement all events
Moderation

1,643,000
10% reduction

Total Requirement

(164,300)
1,478,700

8.1.5.

It is proposed that the minimum general reserve contingency balance should
increase by £373,000 to £1,480,000 to meet unforeseen expenditure and/or
shortfalls in income. The increase represents the uncertainty within the MTFP in
respect of the coronavirus pandemic and the impact the recovery phase may
have. [The Council anticipates that at 1st April 2021, it will be holding a
contingency reserve of approximately £3.5m]

8.1.6.

The level and utilisation of reserves is determined formally by the Council, having
received the advice and judgement of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO). The Chief
Financial Officer’s advice is:
“In the view of the Acting Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer (Section 151
Officer), the budget includes estimates which take into account circumstances
and events which are reasonably foreseeable at the time of preparing the budget.
The view is therefore held, that the level of reserves are adequate for the Council
based on this budget and the circumstances in place at the time of preparing it.”
[Note: A formal record of the Chief Finance Officer’s advice is recorded in the
minutes of the Council meeting. In the unusual event that a Chief Finance
Officer’s advice is not accepted by a Council, the rejection by a Council of the
Chief Finance Officer’s advice must be recorded in the minutes].

8.1.7.

Further detail of the CFO’s determination in regard to contingency balances and
reserves is detailed in ANNEX E.

8.2.

Use of Reserves and Balances

Page 95

8.2.1.

When setting the Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan in February 2020, the
general fund contingency reserves balance as at 31st March 2020 was estimated
to total £2.153 million.

8.2.2.

The 2019/20 provisional outturn position highlighted a £1.32 million surplus – of
which £500,000 was set aside specifically to fund COVID-19 recovery activities.
After other earmarked reserves movements, the general fund contingency balance
as at 31st March 2020 was £2.419million (£0.260 million higher than forecast in the
MTFP presented in February).

8.2.3.

In addition, a review of current earmarked reserves has been undertaken to
establish if the purpose for which the reserve was set up is still applicable and at
the correct value. The purpose of which – particularly in light of Covid-19 - is to
identify any cash resources that can be reallocated into contingency reserves to
support the MTFP over the next 4 years:
- The Council carries an earmarked reserve for Pension purposes, which was
originally set up to meet extraordinary pension costs outside if the actuarial
valuation process. It has become obsolete having never been used for this
purpose and has been identified for re-designation. This review increases the
contingency reserves by £450,000.

8.2.4.

The Quarter Three report forecasts that there will be a surplus against budget of
£335,180 (referred to in 4.10 above). This means there will be a net contribution
into contingency reserves of £611,190 in 2020/21.

8.2.5. The updated MTFP shows a forecast cumulative deficit position of £0.756 million
over the four years – which represents the required use of reserves in order to
balance the 4 year plan. The annual changes in the contingency reserve as well
as other earmarked reserves where it is planned to draw funding, are shown in the
table below.
8.2.6. With effect from 2021/22, the MTFP reflects a £756,410 use of Contingency
reserves over the next 4 years (2021/22 £256,080 usage; 2022/23 £307,650
usage; 2023/24 £186,710 usage; and 2024/25 £5,970 usage).
Reserve
Contingency Reserve
Section 106 Monies
Business Rates s31 Reserve
Total Contribution / (Usage)
Change in use of reserves

2020/21
(Budget)
£
276,010
(7,700)
0
268,310
-

2021/22
£
(256,080)
(7,700)
(3,989,340)
(4,253,120)
(4,521,430)

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£
(307,650)
(7,700)
(44,300)
(359,650)
3,893,470

£
(186,710)
(7,700)
(44,300)
(238,710)
120,940

£
(5,970)
(7,700)
0
(13,670)
225,040

8.2.7. The table below shows the revised forecast level of contingency reserves over the
life of the Medium Term Financial Plan:
Contingency reserve

2020/21
(Budget)
£

2021/22
£

Page 96

2022/23
£

2023/24
£

2024/25
£

As at February 2021:
Balance at year end

3,480,790

3,224,710

2,917,060

2,730,350 2,724,380

Minimum requirement (7.2)

1,107,000

1,480,000

1,480,000

1,480,000 1,480,000

Headroom

2,373,790

1,744,710

1,437,060

1,250,350 1,244,380

8.2.8.

At the end of year 4 of the plan (2024/25) there would be an estimated balance of
£2.724 million in General Fund Contingency reserves – which would be £1.244
million above the required £1.48 million minimum balance.

8.2.9.

The updated MTFP illustrates a requirement to draw from reserves in all four years
of the plan – however with an estimated marginal £5,970 required in year 4
(2024/25) representing a more or less balanced position by year 4.

8.2.10. All of the above is subject to the assumptions as detailed in the sections above
which is extremely difficult to forecast. These assumptions will be continually
monitored.

8.3.

Risk Identification and Management

8.3.1. The early identification and management of risks is critical to the Budget and
Medium Term Financial Planning process. Risks are assessed, mitigated and
actively managed to ensure that the Council delivers its services effectively within
the funding at its disposal. The principal risks to the Medium Term Financial Plan
are summarised in ANNEX D.
8.3.2. Risk areas will be closely monitored and reviewed on an on-going basis and
remedial action taken as appropriate. Risks associated with specific projects will
be identified within the project methodology documents and reviewed monthly by
the Transformation Board.
8.3.3. The table below highlights specific financial risks that are embedded within this
Medium Term Financial Plan:
Revenue Risks

Capital Risks

Page 97

 Inflationary assumptions
 Interest rates
 Revenue consequences of
capital
 Housing benefits
 Fees and charges
 Universal Credit
 Business Rates Retention
scheme
 Council Tax collection
 New Homes Bonus
 Financial benefits from
partnerships / shared services
 Pension costs
 Insurance costs
 Waste management costs
 Brexit implications














Interest rates
External funding
Capital receipts
Capacity to deliver capital
programme
Project overspend
Project overrun
External factors (e.g.
planning objections, judicial
reviews etc. leading to
project delay)
Housing Joint Venture
Suppliers / Contractors /
Contract Management
Weather
Brexit implications

8.3.4. In addition, there are a number of Covid-19 related financial risks to the MTFP to
be regularly reviewed and considered:






8.4.

The impact that a recession may have on Council Tax and Business Rates
collection and increased risk of non-payment which is not subsequently
collected
The period of recovery is prolonged which has further cost pressure
consequences for the Council – especially in regard to the operation of leisure
centres
Fees and Charges income levels do not return to pre-Covid levels as forecast
The economy is deflated post-recovery leading to ongoing economic problems
in town centres and the broader economy, as well as community safety issues,
which lead to increased cost pressures
Increased demand on certain services e.g. Benefits and economic support.
Further national lockdowns / tiered systems imposed which leads to further
pressures on businesses and households and additional costs to the Council
in providing support

Britain’s Exit from the European Union

8.4.1. The United Kingdom left the European Union on 31st January 2020, whereupon
the country entered into a transition period. A deal in regard to the UK’s future
relationship with the European Union was agreed in December 2021. While this
should hopefully mitigate against what were seen as potentially negative effects
on the economy at this stage it is not possible to predict the full impact of the
Brexit process on the Authority’s finances and financial planning.
8.4.2. As a result of Brexit, there is a risk that a number of local and national economic
drivers such as inflation, interest rates, the valuation of assets and liabilities and
the demand for and funding of services will be affected.
8.4.3. The direction and extent of Brexit’s influence on these areas is a matter of debate.
To give an idea of the potential financial consequences the table below quantifies

Page 98

the impact on the Authority’s current 2021/22 budget had there been a 1% change
in its key economic drivers.
Risk item
1 % change in inflation
1 % change in interest rates

Impact on 2021/22
98,000
(197,000)

9.

Budget 2021/22

9.1.

Budget preparation work has now been completed and an overall balanced
budget position has been reached with the inclusion of a £448,000 efficiency
target and a projected £256,080 use of contingency reserves.
Proposed Budget

9.2.

The proposed 2021/22 Budget is detailed below:Budget Heading
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies & Services
Benefits
Borrowing
Parish Grant re Council Tax Support
Financing Costs

2021/22
£
6,320,320
2,202,120
141,260
8,039,880
5,010
224,580
0
231,380

Page 99

Total Expenditure

17,164,550

Fees and Charges / Other Income
Interest Receipts
Ascent LLP Income
Net Expenditure

(5,739,900)
(20,710)
(522,880)
10,881,060

Council Tax
Business Rates Retention
Covid-19 Funding
New Homes Bonus
Earmarked Reserves / Balances
Collection Fund
Total Financing

(5,679,150)
(3,801,300)
(639,400)
(121,880)
(4,253,120)
4,061,790
(10,433,060)

Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus)

448,000

Efficiency Requirement

(448,000)

In Year Deficit / (Surplus)

0

Council Tax Requirement 2021/22
9.3.

The table below illustrates the Council Tax requirement for 2021/22:2021/22
£
10,881,060

Net Expenditure
Efficiency Target
New Homes Bonus
Rural Service Delivery Grant
Business Rates Retention
Use of Reserves
Collection Fund

(448,000)
(121,880)
(639,400)
(3,801,300)
(4,253,120)
4,061,790

Net Requirement from Council Tax

5,679,150

9.4.

Members will be aware that the Council has adopted the following items of
expenditure as Special District Expenses (SDEs) to be levied on specific parishes:
 Leek – Brough Park, Birch Gardens, Recreation Grounds and Leek Cemetery;
and
 Biddulph – Recreation Grounds.

9.5.

Estimated net expenditure for 2021/22 in respect of Special District Expense items
is set out in the table below:
Special District Expense

Net Cost
£

Leek
Brough Park
Recreation Grounds
Birch Gardens
Cemetery
Total

99,090
80,900
30,400
133,270
343,660

Page 100

Biddulph
Recreation Grounds
Total

67,110
67,110
410,770

TOTAL LEVY

9.6.

Members should note that overall Special District Expenses have been adjusted to
achieve a £5 increase, to accord with the Council’s strategy for District Council
Tax levels in 2021/22.

9.7.

The overall Council Tax requirement contained within these proposals is
summarised in the table below.
Budget
Requirement
£

Tax Base

Band D
Council Tax
£

5,096,720

33,260

158.40

3.26%

343,660
67,110

6,494
6,307

52.92
10.64

0%
0%

District Council Tax

Increase/
(Decrease)
%

Special District Expense
Leek
Biddulph

10.

MTFP General Fund Revenue Position

10.1. The medium term general fund revenue position is as set out in the table below,
which summaries the impact of the discussions in the previous sections of the
report:Summary Revenue Position

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£

£

£

£

Revenue Consequences of Capital Spend (section 5.3.36)

162,500

126,530

43,160

43,790

Interest Rate Changes (section 6.2.5)

(80,340)

9,360

9,600

800

Inflation Pressures (section 6.3.3)

358,130

284,080

203,150

205,220

Increased / (Reduced) Budget Demand (section 6.4.2)

621,900

(520,500)

(32,700)

32,100

0

0

0

0

(171,500)

(167,690)

Budget Growth (section 6.6.1)
Increased Council Tax Income (section 7.2.3)

Page 101

Business Rates Retention (section 7.3.8)

(156,910)

(160,760)

224,130

(127,070)

(170,670)

(163,120)

Changes in Collection Fund Surplus (section 7.4.7)

4,441,000

(4,044,460)

8,430

(58,070)

Reduction in Government Grant (section 7.5.13)

(586,390)

631,280

0

0

0

(85,000)

(25,000)

(125,000)

(4,521,430)

3,893,470

120,940

225,040

448,000

0

0

0

(448,000)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Additional Fees and Charges (section 7.6.8)
Contribution to / (Use of) Reserves (section 8.2.7)

In Year Change in Position
Efficiency & Rationalisation Plan (section 5.4.7)
Budget (Surplus) / Deficit

10.2. The table above table shows a balanced position over the life of the Medium Term
Financial Plan assuming the remaining Efficiency Programme savings of £448,000
are achieved.
10.3. The above position includes the use of £753,960 from contingency reserves
during the life of the plan.
10.4. ANNEX F shows the indicative detailed revenue budget for the period 2021/22 –
2024/25.

11.

Consultation

11.1. The Council is committed to consulting with residents and other stakeholders to
help inform the budget setting process and spending priorities/non-priorities. A
variety of techniques have been used and the approaches have been iterative,
building year on year on what has gone before. The Council already holds
comprehensive information gathered about residents’ spending priorities. Much of
this information was gathered in times of rising expenditure. The financial
challenges for the Council are now very different.
11.2. The consultation process for the 2021/22 Budget was undertaken via an online
communication included in the Council’s business newsletters.
With the
significant uncertainties and risk within this MTFP update, it is extremely difficult to
have any meaningful consultation at this stage with so many factors not fully
understood. This will be enhanced again for next years budget setting and MTFP
process.

Page 102

Page 103

ANNEX A
Proposed Capital Projections (2020/21 to 2024/25)
Capital Schemes

Asset Management Plan
Public Buildings
Car Parks
Public Conveniences
Infrastructure/Waterways
Leisure Centres
Depots/Parks/Cemeteries
Industrial Units

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Total

£

£

£

£

£

£

99,890
69,410
14,000
586,000
6,340
-

300,000
219,500
143,660
-

223,340
99,640
9,860
262,000
791,660
17,860

418,220
208,220
213,200
15,000
60,850

418,220
371,950
172,400
56,820
62,000

1,059,780
771,840
169,050
232,080
1,453,100
1,013,480
140,710

775,640

663,160

1,404,360

915,490

1,081,390

4,840,040

15,000

15,650

-

-

-

30,650

Disabled Facilities Grants

775,000

1,500,000

1,500,000

1,500,000

1,500,000

6,775,000

ICT Projects

116,610

141,900

50,000

50,000

50,000

408,510

Fleet Management

986,130

1,716,940

-

301,640

-

3,004,710

26,850
170,000
212,000
408,850

50,000
150,000
251,920
200,000
651,920

50,000
50,000
100,000

41,920
41,920

50,000
50,000

218,770
200,000
421,920
212,000
200,000
1,252,690

3,077,230

4,689,570

3,054,360

2,809,050

2,681,390

16,311,600

795,000

1,512,390

1,500,000

1,500,000

1,500,000

6,807,390

2,282,230

3,177,180

1,554,360

1,309,050

1,181,390

9,504,210

Private Housing Grants

Other Schemes
Conservation
Outdoor Sports Facilities
Public Parks/Play Facilities
CCTV
Community Facilities

TOTAL PROGRAMME
CONTRIBUTIONS
NET PROGRAMME

Page 104

ANNEX B
Summary of Approved Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy (February 2017)
Efficiency

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

TOTAL

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Major Procurements
Ansa Joint Venture
Leisure Centres
Facilities

100
100

200
75
275

100
100

100
500
600

500
500
75
1,075

50
50

50
50

25
25

25
25

150
150

50
15
65

50
50
50
150

150
50
50
250

150
150
300

400
265
100
765

125
100
30
50
305

175
100
30
50
355

100
100

250
250

650
200
60
50
50
1,010

100
41
141

-

-

-

100
41
141

661

830

475

1,175

3,141

Asset Management
Asset Rationalisation
Growth
Housing Growth
Business Growth
Industrial Units
Income Generation
Fees & Charges
Affordable Housing
Advertising / Sponsorship
Commercial Property
Enhanced Trading
Rationalisation
Management Staffing
Channel Shift
Service Rationalisation
TOTAL

The above programme has been reprofiled to take account of any changes to the expected
timing of savings:2017/18
£
Original Programme
Amended Programme
Variance
Achieved Q4 2019/20
Revised Target

661,000
661,000
661,000

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

TOTAL

£

£

£

£

£

830,000
488,000
(342,000)

475,000
842,000
367,000
183,000
1,025,000

1,175,000
702,000
(473,000)
(183,000)
519,000

488,000

Page 105

3,141,000
448,000 3,141,000
448,000
448,000 3,141,000

ANNEX C
Medium Term Financial Plan – Principal Risks
Risk Category

Risk

Mitigation and Controls

Financial
Implications

Robustness of financial
assumptions within Efficiency and
Rationalisation Strategy

Structured project management
arrangements have been put in place with
detailed business cases for each initiative –
these will be strengthened in the service
review process

Financial
Implications

Additional financial pressures
emerge – cost & income

The strategy is kept under constant review
and adjustments will be made where
necessary

Service Continuity

Interruptions to key services or
performance standards

Resource implications and impact are
identified as part of the business case
process. Service continuity and
maintenance of standards of service are
key requirements of any new proposals

Corporate
Governance

Maintaining stakeholder
confidence; lack of clarity on
accountability

Ongoing review of standards of internal
control (e.g. Financial Procedure Rules
reviewed and updated). Internal Audit Plan
will be reviewed to account for the new
approach proposed in the Efficiency &
Rationalisation Strategy

Management of
Change

Management of corporate and
local, cultural change;
behavioural risks; residual effects
of aggregation; proposed
changes to organisational
structure, roles & responsibilities

Progress with achievement of aims will be
monitored through an effective performance
management structure. Investment has
been made in a new approach to
Organisational Development.

People Risks

Impact of cultural changes;

Continuing communications process for the
delivery of transformation programme

assessment of skills; recruitment
& retention;
capacity issues
Key Projects &
Partnerships

Managing changes to shared
service delivery arrangements

The project management methodology
provides for an adequate transition where
there are changes in service delivery

Performance
Management

Adequacy of framework to
monitor transition

Risk management processes are
embedded

Page 106

Risk Category

Risk

Mitigation and Controls

Reputation and
Relationship Risks

Maintaining existing partner
confidence

Continuing communications process for the
delivery of transformation programme

Programme
Delivery

Delays in implementation of
efficiency savings

Effective governance arrangements in place
to monitor plans.
Executive Directors and Senior Managers
own delivery of efficiencies.

Programme
Delivery

A number of the efficiency /
rationalisation initiatives are not
achieved

Structured project management approach is
in place for delivery including effective
exception reporting
The strategy is kept under constant review
Identification of further efficiency /
rationalisation opportunities through
benchmarking / effective member working
groups

Political Support

Lack of Members support for
Plan.

Regular reporting and member briefings
including effective scrutiny arrangements

Page 107

ANNEX D
Chief Finance Officer’s Review of Contingencies / Reserves
Chief Finance Officer’s Section 25 Review

The purpose of this statement is to provide councillors with information on the robustness
of the estimates and the adequacy of reserves in the Medium Term Financial Plan
(MTFP).
Background
The Council sets in budget in February each year. In setting the budget the level of
Council Tax and other fees and charges are established. Decisions are based on a
budget that sets out estimates of what the Council plans to spend on each of its services
in the forthcoming year.
The decision on the level of the income is taken before the financial year begins and it
cannot be changed during the year, so allowance for risks and uncertainties that might
increase service expenditure above that planned, must be made by:



Making prudent allowance in the estimates for each of the services; and
Ensuring that there are adequate reserves to draw on if the service estimates turn out
to be insufficient.

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires that the Council’s Chief Finance
Officer reports to Full Council when it is considering its Budget for the forthcoming
financial year. The report must deal with the robustness of the estimates and the
adequacy of the reserves allowed for in the budget proposals, so that councillors have
professional, authoritative advice available to them when they make their decisions.
Section 25 also requires members to have regard to this report in making their decisions.
Robustness of Spending Forecasts
Heads of Service in conjunction with the Council’s Head of Finance monitor detailed
budgets throughout the year. This enables additional service pressures to be identified
on an on-going basis.
Reports are presented on a quarterly basis to the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel
and Cabinet. These reports highlight all variances between spending and budgets.
The proposal for the 2021/22 Budget and updated MTFP are based on analysis and
assurances from Heads of Service and their finance support staff. Cabinet portfolio
holders have worked with their respective Executive Directors throughout the process.
Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel members have been able to question the progress
of spending throughout the year and received a report on the draft MTFP in September
and November 2020. These reports started to outline the significant estimated impact
that the coronavirus pandemic has had on the MTFP
Extensive work has also been carried out to produce the MTFP. A range of broad
assumptions have been utilised and robustly challenged as part of the process.

Page 108

Forecasts take account of the financial commitments that emerge from the Council’s new
Corporate Plan approved in September 2019.
The Council has taken all reasonable and practical steps to identify and make provision
for the Council’s commitments in 2021/22 in order to achieve a balanced budget – whilst
taking into account the financial impact the pandemic has had and continues to have.
Robustness of Income Forecasts
The level of Council Tax has been established with reference to the maximum increase
allowed without requiring a referendum. A £5 (Band D equivalent) increase has been
provided for in 2021/22, followed by a 1.9% increase in years 2-4 of the MTFP.
The forecasts of the business rates that will be retained by the Council have been
calculated in line with the current Business Rates Retention Scheme. The forecasts
taken account of the following:







The baseline income set by government;
Prudent forecast of the financial benefits of being a member of the Staffordshire Pool
arrangements;
The award of reliefs and the receipt of Section 31 grants to compensate;
Adequate provision to meet the impact of successful appeals; and
Predicted levels of business rates income are based on known and expected changes
to the business rates listing.
Impact of Covid-19 on collection and debts

The level of fees and charges has been assessed in conjunction with Heads of Service.
The proposed levels for 2021/22 take account of the following factors in line with the
Council’s Charging Policy:






The cost of providing services should be fully met by income;
There is a standard approach to concessions for those on low incomes;
Where a subsidy is agreed, this should be used to support the development of
Council services in accordance with priorities; and
Subsidies should be reconfirmed annually.
Impact on demand for services in light of Covid-19

In the absence of any further information, this iteration of the MTFP assumes that the
Council will continue to receive New Homes Bonus funding at a base level of £150,000
pa; but does so with the recognition of the risk this represents to the viability of the Plan
beyond 2021/22.
Key Budget Risks
The forecasts in the MTFP include provisions for savings from the Council’s Efficiency
and Rationalisation Strategy. The Council has made significant progress with the
achievement of the required savings with the majority of the savings having being met.
However the Alliance Management Team (AMT) will need to continue to deliver the
remainder of the programme throughout the early years of the MTFP.

Page 109

The Government is expected to consult on a number of national reforms which will
impact of the Council’s finances. These include:




Fair funding review;
The Business Rates Retention Scheme including resetting the baseline income;
Replacement of the New Homes Bonus Scheme.

These changes will have a significant impact on the Council’s finances.
The national economic situation is currently unpredictable. The coronavirus pandemic
has and will continue to impact on the Council in terms of both the response phase and
subsequent recovery phase. In addition, it is impossible to predict the impact of the
Brexit process on the Council’s finances and financial planning. During this period, there
is a risk that a number of local and national economic drivers such as inflation, interest
rates, the valuation of assets and liabilities and the demand for and funding of services
will be affected.
Adequacy of Reserves
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Local Authority
Accounting Panel (LAAP) has a guidance note on Local Authority Reserves and
Balances (LAAP Bulletin 77) to assist local authorities in this process. This guidance is
not statutory, but compliance is recommended in CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the
Finance Director in Local Government. It is best practice to follow this guidance.
The guidance however states that no case has yet been made to set a statutory
minimum level of reserves, either as an absolute amount or a percentage of budget.
Each Local Authority should take advice from its Chief Finance Officer and base its
judgement on local circumstances.
Reserves should be held for three main purposes:




A working balance to help cushion the impact of uneven cash flows and avoid
unnecessary temporary borrowing – this forms part of general reserves;
A contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or emergencies – this also
forms part of general reserves;
A means of building up funds known as ‘earmarked reserves’, to meet known or
predicted funding requirements.

The CIPFA Guidance highlights a range of factors, in addition to cash flow requirements,
that Councils should consider including:






The treatment of inflation;
The treatment of demand led pressures;
Efficiency savings;
Partnerships; and
The general financial climate, including the impact on investment income.

The guidance also refers to reserves being deployed to fund recurring expenditure and
indicates that this is not a long-term option. If the Council chooses to use reserves as
recommended within the Budget, appropriate action will need to be factored into the
MTFP to ensure that this is addressed over time.

Page 110

The risk assessment process has identified a number of key risks which could impact on
the Council’s resources. The Council continues to face significant funding reductions and
on-going budget pressures. In addition there continue to be risks associated with the
Business Rate Retention Scheme as well as the continued impact of the pandemic.
With these risks in mind, it is recommended that the Council adopts a policy for reserves
as follows:
 Set aside sufficient sums in earmarked reserves that it considers prudent. These
reserves are established as are required and are reviewed regularly for both
adequacy and purpose and levels are reporting appropriately in line with the
established reporting processes; and
 General Reserves are maintained to be at least at the level of the contingency
requirement calculated with reference to LAAP Bulletin 77 and reported to Council as
part of the approved MTFP. This contingency level has been increased to reflect the
uncertainty within the MTFP
Earmarked reserves have been established to provide resources for specific purposes.
The proposals contained within this update require a £756,410 use of reserves over the
period 2021/22 to 2024/25.
CIPFA Resilience Indicators
In 2019 CIPFA produced a Financial Resilience Index. This is a comparative analytical
tool that may be used by Chief Finance Officers to support good financial management,
providing a common understanding within a council of their financial position.
The index shows a council’s position on a range of measures associated with financial
risk. The selection of indicators has been informed by the extensive financial resilience
work undertaken by CIPFA over the past four years, public consultation and technical
stakeholder engagement.
The index is made up of a set of indicators. These indicators take publicly available data
and compare similar authorities across a range of factors. There is no single overall
indicator of financial risk, so the index instead highlights areas where additional scrutiny
should take place in order to provide additional assurance.
The indicators that are produced for district councils are as follows:
 Reserves Sustainability Measure
 Level of Reserves
 Changes in Reserves
 Interest Payable / Net Revenue Expenditure
 Gross External Debt
 Fees and Charges to Service Expenditure Ratio
 Council Tax Requirement / Net Revenue Expenditure
 Growth Above Baseline
 Unallocated Reserves
 Earmarked Reserves
 Change in Unallocated Reserves
 Change in Earmarked Reserves

Page 111

The indicators where the Council is showing higher risk are associated with the use and
level of reserves.
The Sustainability Measure indicated the number of years that the Council’s 2018/19
reserves would last if they were used at the same average rate as over the last three
years. For the Council this is some 17 years. Despite this being comparatively low, this is
a considerably long timeframe and only significant if it is expected to use the reserves at
that rate.
CIPFA are looking to update the index in 2021 – however recognising that the reserves
position following the impact the Coronavirus has had on Local Authorities will have
significantly changed.
Opinion
In my professional view, if the Council were to accept the current MTFP then the level of
risks identified in the budget process, alongside the Council’s financial management
arrangements suggest that the level of reserves is adequate.
Claire Hazeldene
Acting Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer

Page 112

ANNEX F
Proposed Revenue Projections (2021/22 to 2024/25)

2021/22
Projection
£
6,320,320
2,202,120
141,260
8,039,880
5,010
224,580
231,380
17,164,550

2022/23
Projection
£
6,463,110
2,229,650
141,260
7,714,140
5,010
323,870
231,380
17,108,420

2023/24
Projection
£
6,528,110
2,257,520
142,670
7,790,310
5,010
379,190
231,380
17,334,190

2024/25
Projection
£
6,593,670
2,285,740
144,100
7,932,420
5,010
438,350
231,380
17,630,670

(5,739,900)

(5,885,900)

(5,910,900)

(6,035,900)

(20,710)

(21,990)

(24,550)

(39,120)

(522,880)

(485,000)

(485,000)

(485,000)

Recharges
Net Expenditure

0
10,881,060

0
10,715,530

0
10,913,740

0
11,070,650

Council Tax

(5,679,150)

(5,846,840)

(6,003,750)

(6,164,510)

(639,400)

0

0

0

(3,801,300)

(3,928,370)

(4,099,040)

(4,262,160)

(121,880)

(150,000)

(150,000)

(150,000)

(3,997,040)

(52,000)

(52,000)

(7,700)

Contingency Balances

(256,080)

(307,650)

(186,710)

(5,970)

Collection Fund

4,061,790

17,330

25,760

(32,310)

(10,433,060)

(10,267,530)

(10,465,740)

(10,622,650)

448,000

448,000

448,000

448,000

(448,000)

(448,000)

(448,000)

(448,000)

0

0

0

0

Budget Heading

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies & Services
Benefits
Borrowing
Financing Costs
Total Expenditure
Fees and Charges / Other Income
Interest Receipts
Ascent LLP Income

Covid-19 Grant Funding
Business Rates Retention
New Homes Bonus
Earmarked Reserves

Total Financing
Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus)
Efficiency Requirement (cumulative)
Deficit / (Surplus)

Page 113

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX B

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

CAPITAL STRATEGY
2021/22

Page 115

1

Introduction & Background

1.1

The 2017 edition of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA) Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities requires local
authorities to produce a ‘Capital Strategy’ from 2019/20. The purpose of the
Capital Strategy is to demonstrate that the Council’s capital expenditure and
investment decisions are taken in line with corporate priorities and properly take
account of the following:






Stewardship;
Value for money;
Prudence;
Sustainability; and
Affordability.

1.2

The Capital Strategy is intended to give a high level overview of how capital
expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity contribute to
the provision of services along with an overview of how associated risk is
managed and the implications for future sustainability. It allows authorities to
give greater weight to local circumstances and explain their approach to
borrowing and investment.

1.3

The Strategy forms part of the Council’s integrated revenue, capital financial
planning and sets out the long term context in which capital expenditure and
investment decisions are made. It is an integral component of the Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP) and is aligned with the Council’s:





Corporate Plan
Asset Management Strategy;
Growth Strategy; and
Treasury Management Strategy

1.4

The strategy will provide for a balanced, sustainable capital programme over
the medium term planning period ensuring that limited resources are applied in
the most effective, efficient and economical way to contribute to the
achievement of the Council’s Corporate Plan.

1.5

The strategy sets out how the Council will prioritise its capital spending plans
within the resources available and indicates the action to be taken to maximise
resources for capital spending. The strategy is strategic in nature and will focus
upon the process for determining capital investment priorities.

1.6

The strategy sets out the strategic approach to the management of debt and
borrowing. The detailed implications of this are contained within the Treasury
Management Strategy (TMS) which is updated annually. .

1.7

The Capital Strategy will be updated annually alongside the Council’s MTFP.
There will also be a fundamental review of the strategy alongside a revision of
the Corporate Plan.

Page 116

2.

Corporate Priorities

2.1

The Capital Strategy is driven by local priorities. The Council’s spending
strategy is set out in the Corporate Plan formally adopted by the Council.

2.2

Following the elections in May 2019, there was a fundamental review of the
Corporate Plan focussing on the period 2019-2023 (up to the end of the current
political administration). The Corporate Plan was agreed by Council on 16th
October 2019 with 2020/21 representing the first full year of the new Corporate
Plan.

2.3

The Council’s 4-year Corporate Plan (2019-2023) establishes the Council’s
vision, corporate objectives and key priorities for the medium term. It in effect
establishes the Council’s commitment in the delivery of service and community
leadership to the residents of the Staffordshire Moorlands.

2.3

The Council’s vision is restated as:
“Achieving Excellence in the delivery of high quality services that meet the
needs and aspirations of our communities”

2.4

This vision is articulated further by four aims:





2.5

Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live
and work
Effective use of resources and provide value for money
Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns
and villages
Protect and improve the environment and respond to the climate
emergency

These aims are supported by a number of objectives which also provide the
framework for the delivery of service plans. The Council’s objectives are
summarised below:
Aim

1

2

Help create a safer
and healthier
environment for our
communities to live
and work

Effective use of
resources and
provide value for
money

Objectives












Increased supply of good quality affordable homes
Develop a positive relationship with communities
Effective relationship with strategic partners
Effective support of community safety arrangements including
CCTV
Provision of sports facilities and leisure opportunities focused
upon improving health
Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for
money
Ensure services are easily available to all our residents in the
appropriate channels and provided “right first time”
A high performing and well motivated workforce
More effective use of Council assets
Effective procurement with a focus on local business
Effective use of ICT

Page 117

Aim

3

4

Objectives

Help create a strong
economy by
supporting further
regeneration of towns
and villages
Protect and improve
the environment and
respond to the climate
emergency






Encourage business start-ups and enterprises
Flourishing town centres that support the local economy
Encourage and develop tourism
High quality development and building control with an “open for
business” approach





Effective recycling and waste management
Meeting the challenge of climate change
Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets and
environmental health
Provision of quality parks and open spaces
Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of residents,
businesses and visitors




2.6

The Council is committed to playing the lead role in championing the local area.
In so doing the Council recognises its community leadership role. Fulfilling this
role effectively means influencing partners in a number of key areas in order to
ensure that services are shaped and delivered around the needs and
aspirations of citizens.

2.7

The Council’s influencing role is focused in the following areas:

Support the police and other partners to reduce crime, the fear of crime
and anti social behaviour

Ensure there is effective health provision particularly for the elderly

Ensure that there an effective provision of waste and recycling centres
across the district

Work with Staffordshire County Council to provide accessible on-street
parking

We will work with partners to improve the provision of bus services which
connect our villages with our three market towns for services, shopping
and leisure.

Expand the Growth Deal partnership with Staffordshire County Council
on the will be expanded to provide inward investment

Work to combat illegal money lenders such as loan sharks

Continue to support the Churnet Valley Railway with their plans to bring
trains back to Leek

Work with Staffordshire County Council

2.8

The Plan identifies key priority outcomes, which will be the highest priority in
the development of performance targets and key actions. A significant
proportion of the Council’s resources will be directed towards achieving them:
Aim

Objectives

Help create a safer and healthier
environment for our communities
to live and work





Increased supply of quality affordable homes
Improved health
Improved community safety

Effective use of resources and
provide value for money




Council services provide value for money
High level of resident and customer
satisfaction

Page 118

Aim

Objectives

Help create a strong economy by
supporting further regeneration of
towns and villages





Sustainable towns and rural communities
Increased economic growth
Increased tourism

Protect and improve the
environment and respond to the
climate emergency




High recycling rates
Reduction in carbon emissions

3.

Capital Spending Priorities

3.1

The Council’s capital investment priorities are determined by the corporate
priorities set out above. The key capital investment priorities for the Council are
therefore as follows:
Corporate Property – the Council will invest in maintaining the properties that
support the delivery of services direct to residents.
Other Corporate Assets – the Council will invest in other assets that support
the delivery of services e.g. transport fleet.
Affordable Housing & Private Sector Housing Renewal – the Council will
support the development of affordable housing and investment in the
improvement in housing conditions throughout the district
Enabling Growth – the Council will support the growth of business and
employment opportunities within the district in addition to housing development
in line with the commitments set out in the Local Plan
Service Transformation – the Council will invest in projects that improve
service performance or reduce service expenditure on an “invest to save” basis
the will include investment in ICT

4.

Asset Management Planning

4.1

The overriding objective of asset management is to ensure that the Council
maintains a portfolio of property assets that is appropriate, fit for purpose and
affordable.

4.2

The council’s property portfolio consists of the following:

4.3



Operational property i.e. assets that support core business and service
delivery



Investment properties held to support economic growth and / or to provide
a financial return to the Council e.g. industrial units



Community assets e.g. parks, playgrounds and open spaces.

Asset management is an important part of the council’s management
arrangements and is crucial to the delivery of value for money services. The
Council through production of its Asset Management Plan (AMP) is committed
to:

Page 119





Optimise the Council’s land and property portfolio through proactive estate
management and effective corporate arrangements for the acquisition and
disposal;
A regular review of the condition of retained properties including a long-term
(30-year) assessment of the necessary investment to maintain the assets fit
for purpose; and
Realise the value of any properties that have been declared surplus to
requirements in a timely manner, having regard to the market conditions.

5.

Commercial Activities

5.1

The Council currently undertakes and will continue consider commercial
activities. These are in two forms:
Alternative service delivery arrangements – where the Council has a stake
in a company which is established for the delivery of Council services
Commercial investments - investments taken for mainly financial reasons these may include:



5.2

Investments explicitly taken with the aim of making a financial surplus for
the Council.
Commercial investments also include fixed assets which are held primarily
for financial benefit or to support economic growth.

The reasons for commercial investments are:





Financial returns to fund services to residents;
Reductions in service spending;
Pursuing the Council’s Growth Strategy; and
Economic development and regeneration activity in the district

5.3

The Council will continue to invest prudently on a commercial basis and to take
advantage of opportunities as they present themselves, supported by our
robust governance process.

5.4

Such investments do not always give priority to security and liquidity over yield.
In these cases, such a decision will be explicit, with the additional risks set out
and the impact on financial sustainability identified and reported. Before
considering any such investments the Council will ensure:



5.5

That it has the appropriate legal powers to undertake such investments; and
That any investment is proportionate of all investments in order to avoid an
excessive level of risk.

The commercial investments may involve the acquisition of property. The
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) define
investment property as property held solely to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Historically, property has provided strong investment
returns in terms of stable income. Property investment is not without risk as
property values can fall as well as rise and changing economic conditions could
cause tenants to leave with properties remaining vacant. These risks will
continue to be identified and managed through the Council’s Risk Management
Framework.

Page 120

5.6

The council may fund commercial investments by borrowing. The revenue
returns should exceed the cost of repaying the borrowed money each year.

6.

Loans to Third Parties

6.1

The council has discretion to grant loans to third parties for a number of
reasons. These loans are treated as capital expenditure. In making loans the
Council is exposing itself to the risk that the borrower defaults on repayments.
The Council, in making these loans, will therefore ensure they are prudent and
that the risks have been identified and fully considered.

6.2

The Council will periodically review its loan portfolio in order to ensure that the
cumulative exposure of the Council is proportionate and prudent.

6.3

The Council will ensure that a full due diligence exercise is undertaken for each
individual loan and will ensure that adequate security is in place. The business
case for each loan will consider all of the benefits and the risks.

6.4

It will be necessary to assess the level of risk attached to the provision of each
individual loan and consequently build in a ‘risk premium’ into the interest rate
charges to account for this. The factors taken into account in determining this
premium:





6.5

the level of security;
financial position and credit rating;
the overall term of the loan; and
the value of the loan.

The step by step process undertaken is outlined below:-

STEP 1 – Assessing In assessing state aid implications and due diligence around risk,
State Aid Implications the starting point used is the EU reference rate: as it stands, this
is approximately 1%. Other considerations are then assessed
(based on STEP 2 – 4) which potentially increase this rate
between 1-10% - resulting in an overall rate chargeable between
2% and 11%.
STEP 2 – Assessing In liaison with the Council’s Advisors, the interest rate the third
available market rates party would be expected to pay if accessing funding from the
market (based on amount/loan term etc) is estimated. This is to
ensure the rate the Council is offering is competitive and not
undercutting the market.
STEP 3 – Assessing The next consideration is credit quality – which may then
credit quality
consequently reduce/increase the rate. Factors that are taken
into account include:- credit ratings (if applicable), the financial
position of the borrower, what security is available etc.
STEP 4 – Assessment Finally, there is an overall assessment of the purpose of the third
of Corporate Plan party loan and linking this to the Council’s Corporate Plan
objectives
objectives – local factors based on the outcomes of the loan may
have an influence on the rate charged.
6.6

All loans are agreed by full Council in line with the Council’s constitution. All
loans will also be subject to regular monitoring.

Page 121

7

Capital Expenditure

7.1

Capital spending decisions will appropriately reflect the aspirations and
priorities included within the Corporate Plan and its supporting strategies.

7.2

Any scheme / project to be added to the Capital Programme will be subject to
a ‘gateway’ process and prioritised according to availability of resources and
the longer-term impact on the council’s financial position. The ‘gateway’
process will be undertaken in line with the Council’s agreed project
management methodology with a robust business case being developed at the
critical stages of project approval and initiation. This process will be overseen
by the Council’s Transformation Board.

7.3

The business case will include the following considerations:



A clear assessment of the cost of financing the capital scheme, net of
revenue benefits, profiled over the lifetime of each scheme; and
Commissioning and procuring for capital schemes will comply with the
requirements set out in the Council’s Procurement Procedure Rules.

7.4

The Capital Strategy and the Capital Programme will be agreed by the Council
in February each year as part of the budget setting process. The Medium Term
Financial Plan, Asset Management Plan and Treasury Management Strategy
will be considered at the same time. In year variations of spend (subject to
budget tolerance levels) and the re-profiling of schemes will be considered and
approved by Cabinet.

7.5

The Cabinet and the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel receive capital
monitoring reports as part of the quarterly performance and financial monitoring
reports.

7.6

Cabinet considers and approves new bids for inclusion in the capital
programme. Approval to spend on individual capital schemes will only be given
once procedural this approval has been achieved.

7.7

Each approved scheme will be included in the Council’s Transformation
Programme and one of the Council’s Alliance Management Team (AMT) will be
assigned as Project Executive and will be responsible / accountable for the
delivery of the scheme.

7.8

Wherever possible the Council will take a long term view of plans in order to
assess affordability and the demand on future capital resources. It is essential
for example to consider the lifespan and fitness for purpose of assets. This will
be considered through asset management planning (condition surveys) and
wider service based exercises e.g. leisure centre provision evaluation.

7.9

There is a clear demand for long term planning for capital and treasury
management purposes. The council’s current debt portfolio contains loans that
mature up to 2023. The debt repayment profile needs to be managed alongside
the longer term expectations for capital expenditure and funding forecasts.

Page 122

7.10

Long-term forecasts are not easily predicted and the accuracy of all financial
estimates will be limited. However, long-term forecasting is valuable in
informing strategic plans taking account of the cumulative sustainability and
affordability of existing and planned investments which will need to be repaid
over future periods. For major projects and investment the funding and financial
implications need to be planned well in advance.

8

Resourcing Capital Expenditure

8.1

In order to fund its capital investment, the Council will have access to limited
sources of funding. The main sources of funding are as follows:


Capital Receipts

These will be yielded from the disposal of land and property. A programme of
disposal will be agreed by the Cabinet. This will be informed by the asset
management planning process. In considering disposals the Council will take
account of the following:
o Potential loss of income from investment properties
o Projected saving in running costs, and capital costs of major investment
required
o Assessment against fitness of premises for purpose and current patterns of
need
The Secretary of State has allowed the flexible use of capital receipts. It is
considered that individual local authorities will be best placed to decide which
projects will be most effective for their area. The key criteria to use when
deciding whether expenditure can be funded by the capital receipts flexibility is
that it is forecast to generate ongoing savings. If the Council plans to use this
funding option a proposal will be prepared setting out the planned use, listing
the projects and the expected savings and / or improvements in service
outcomes for each project, and the impact on the Council’s prudential
indicators.


Borrowing

Capital projects that cannot be funded from any other source can be funded
from borrowing. Local Authorities can borrow to fund schemes where it is
prudent to so. They need to consider their ability to pay for the borrowing. The
levels of borrowing are determined by using the indicators set out in the
Prudential Code. The borrowing repayment and interest charges on the loan
need to be met from existing revenue budgets or identify them as new growth
in the annual budget setting process and factor them into the MTFP.
The Chief Finance Officer will make an assessment of the overall prudence,
affordability and sustainability of the total borrowing requested and the impact
of the Council’s borrowing will be reported in the Treasury Management
Strategy alongside the Prudential Indicators required by CIPFA’s Prudential
Code for Capital Finance.

Page 123

The Chief Finance Officer will also determine whether the borrowing should be
from internal resources or whether to enter into external borrowing. This
decision making will be undertaken in line with the Council’s Treasury Strategy
and will be reported to the Audit & Accounts Committee as part of the monitoring
of treasury management activity.


Revenue Funding

The Council may use revenue budgets to fund capital expenditure. This may
be via a capital reserve which has been established to finance capital
expenditure as an alternative to external borrowing.
The Council will formally review such reserves and their application both as part
of the budget setting process and at finalisation of the annual accounts.


S106 contributions

The principal purpose of S106 agreements is to support individual planning
applications in line with the Council’s planning policies. Wider contributions are
constrained by legislation and have to be negotiated and justified.
The Council will ensure these are where possible focussed towards corporate
priorities subject to the legislative constraints.


External Grant Funding

The Council has a history of success in bidding for grants from a number of
sources. There is a risk of reacting to funding opportunities informed by external
priorities rather than chasing those that match the Council’s priorities / needs.
The Council will seek to ensure that bids are submitted to support investment
that is directed to the commitments made in the Corporate Plan.


Partnership Funding

There are a number of examples where the Council has attracted third party
funding from partners e.g. leisure centre investment from long-term contractor.
The Council is aware of the need to be innovative and to work closely with the
private, public and voluntary Sectors to deliver outcomes in line with the
Corporate Plan priorities at a time when there will be reduced levels of capital
resources.
Any such investments will be considered only if they are more cost effective
than the Council investing directly.

9

Forecast Expenditure and Resources

Page 124

9.1

The forecasted spend over the current financial planning period (2020/21 to
2024/25) is as follows:

Service Area
Asset Management Plan
Housing Grants
ICT Strategy
Fleet Management
Other Schemes
Total Programme

9.2

2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
Total
£
£
£
£
£
£
775,640
663,160 1,404,360
915,490 1,081,390
4,840,040
790,000 1,515,650 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
6,805,650
116,610
141,900
50,000
50,000
50,000
408,510
986,130 1,716,940
301,640
3,004,710
408,850
651,920
100,000
41,920
50,000
1,252,690
3,077,230 4,689,570 3,054,360 2,809,050 2,681,390 16,311,600

The individual projects that are included in the above include:


Asset Management Plan (AMP) – the costs identified in ensuring the
Council’s property portfolio remain fit for purpose. This includes: - Public Buildings
- Car Parks
- Public Conveniences
- Waterways & Infrastructure assets
- Leisure Centres
- Depots & Parks Buildings



Housing Grants – the District Council is the duty holder for the mandatory
Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG’s). All eligible applicants are entitled to
receive mandatory funding for certain major adaptations to their properties.
Funding for this scheme is provided through the Better Care Fund vi the
County Council



ICT Strategy – the key priorities of the ICT Strategy are to provide the
technological infrastructure to support joint working, new ways of workings
and improve access to services for the Council’s customers



Fleet Management – the estimated costs of the replacement fleet
programme are included within the capital programme. However, options
appraisals are undertaken prior to purchase to determine the most cost
effective method of financing. Therefore, other funding models, for
example, contract hire or leasing may be undertaken for some vehicles
categories



Other schemes – include schemes such as park and play facility
improvements, facility improvements, conservation grants, CCTV
equipment

9.3

Further detail of the above capital schemes is included within the main body of
the Medium Term Financial Plan.

9.4

The resources that are to be used to finance the Capital Programme are as
follows:
2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

Page 125

2023/24

2024/25

Total

External Contributions
Capital Receipts
Capital Reserve
Earmarked Reserves
Borrowing
Total Revised
Financing

9.5

6,807,390
212,500
557,000
220,850
8,513,860

3,077,230 4,689,570 3,054,360 2,809,050 2,681,390 16,311,600

The commercial investments held by the Council can be summarised as
follows:





9.6

795,000 1,512,390 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
110,000
25,000
77,500
557,000
220,850
1,394,380 3,152,180 1,476,860 1,309,050 1,181,390

Industrial units – commercial units available for small and medium sized
organisations to rent for the operation of their business
Property rentals – rental streams generated from sharing Council properties
with partners/external organisations
Ascent Housing – a joint venture with Your Housing Group Limited for the
provision of affordable housing across the District
Alliance Environment Services (AES) – company established in partnership
with ANSA (wholly owned company of Cheshire East Council) to deliver
waste, streets, fleet and grounds maintenance.

The following investments are currently being considered:





Investment in key strategic land to enable housing and business
development
The purchase of additional investment property
An alternative funding model working with Your Housing to further enhance
the provision of affordable housing
Alternative service delivery arrangements for the delivery of trading services

10

Long-term Considerations

10.1

There a number of functions where there are long term capital spending
liabilities have been identified.
Asset Management Plan

10.2

In line with the commitment made in this strategy, asset condition surveys were
last completed for the Council’s property portfolio in 2016. These ascertain the
overall condition of the properties and establish the necessary capital
investment required to ensure that they are maintained to an appropriate
standard.

10.3

The indicative capital investment required at that stage can be summarised as
follows:

SMDC - Capital Investment Required*

Public Buildings

2016-17 2019-20
(MTFP)
£
1,010,850

Page 126

2020-21 2045-46 (26
Years)
£
2,761,600

TOTAL
£
3,772,450

Car Parks
Public Conveniences
Waterways & Infrastructure Assets
Leisure Centres
Depots and Parks Buildings
Industrial Units
TOTAL

754,000
181,400
479,361
310,000
97,070
80,380

4,293,431
415,800
448,761
10,005,995
2,355,714
392,050

5,047,431
597,200
928,122
10,315,995
2,452,784
472,430

2,913,061

20,673,351

23,586,412

*The latest update of the 30year plan is presented in the Medium Term Financial Plan report Appendix A

10.4

The overall outcomes of the surveys can be summarised as follows:






A number of the Council’s operational assets are dated in appearance and
require investment;
The Council’s car parks require capital investment;
There are structural issues associated with a number of the Council’s
buildings which require resolution;
There are urgent works related to health and safety requirements that need
to be resolved; and
Investment is required to the electrical and mechanical infrastructure of a
number of buildings.

10.5

The results from these surveys have informed the development of the Council’s
four-year Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). Adjustments have been made
to exclude any major investment in the Council’s leisure centres and operational
depots where it is assumed that investment will be deferred pending the major
decisions that linked to changes in the service delivery arrangements which are
in progress.

10.6

The indicative investment for 30-years will have a significant impact on the
Council’s future revenue budgets and the analysis showed that the Council’s
property portfolio in its current form is unaffordable. The estimated impact of the
indicative capital projections for the 30-year investment requirements at the
point the surveys were completed is detailed below:

SMDC Estimated Revenue Consequences - Cumulative
Impact

Fit for Purpose Standard works - Cumulative Cost
Less Existing MTFP - Cumulative Cost
Potential Additional Budget Requirement

2016-17 2019-20
(MTFP)

2020-21 2045-46 (26
Years)

TOTAL

£
115,959
(111,403)

£
943,653
-

£
1,059,612
(111,403)

4,556

943,653

948,210

10.7

The above analysis showed that providing the investment in the longer term to
maintain the Council’s property portfolio in its current form is unaffordable.

10.8

In order to address this, the Council agreed to a number of actions to reduce
the impact of the necessary capital spending. It was agreed that the following
are considered before investment in each of the assets is made:

Page 127








Asset rationalisation
Shared use of assets
Reduction in specification and functionality
Generate additional capital receipts
Identify grants to support investment
Generate additional revenue from asset holdings

Review of Strategic Land Holdings
10.9

In order to address a number of the considerations above the Council agreed
to review the Council’s strategic land holdings with a view to developing options
to either generate additional capital receipts or opportunities to generate
ongoing financial returns. This review is currently in progress.
Leisure Centres

10.10 Given the age and condition of the leisure centres, significant capital investment
is required over the next 30 years in order that these assets remain fit for
purpose.
10.11 The Council commissioned a review of its leisure centre provision in the context
of its sports facility needs focusing on sports halls, swimming pools and other
indoor provision. The purpose of undertaking this review was to inform the
Council on options for future provision of council leisure centres and other
sports facility based services from 2018 and beyond.
10.12 The outcome from this review in effect set out a position statement on the
suggested facility hierarchy and approach, along with recommendations for the
phasing of future facility developments and rationalisation. The aim is to ensure
that the Council can develop a more sustainable solution in relation to meeting
customer needs, affordability and partner aspirations, whilst supporting the
overall vision of the Council’s newly adopted Physical Activity & Sports
Strategy.
10.13 The effectiveness of the current leisure centre provision was also assessed.
This assessment considered current income and expenditure benchmarks. The
conclusion of the review was that the Council should consider the following
investment requirements:






Replacement of South Moorlands Leisure Centre with smaller community
pool and fitness offer, ideally co-located with other public sector services
(health / children’s services / social care etc.);
Refurbishment and essential works at Biddulph Valley Leisure Centre;
Replacement pool at Brough Park Leisure Centre & 3G pitch development;
Increased access to school sites for sports hall provision / club use; and
Development of 3G pitch provision – potentially linked to school sites

10.14 The indicative capital cost for these investments would be in the region of
£19.25m. At this stage the investment costs are significantly in excess of
revenue savings, and consequently it will be necessary for the Council to
identify additional sources of capital investment to deliver these improvements.

Page 128

Operational Depot Provision
10.15 In 2017 established Alliance Environmental Services (AES) which was created
jointly with High Peak Borough Council and ANSA (a company owned by
Cheshire East Council) to deliver the Council’s waste collection, street
cleansing and grounds maintenance services. The Council’s waste collection
service was transferred to the company in July 2018 with the rest of functions
transferred in April 2019.
10.16 Major investments in the operational depot facilities which have been leased /
licensed to AES has been deferred until the opportunity has been taken to
review the requirements of the new company in light of widening of the base of
the services provided.
11

Debt, Borrowing & Treasury Management

11.1

Effective treasury management is critical to the safeguarding and management
of the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. Investment and borrowing
decisions are made in accordance with the Council’s formally adopted Treasury
Management Strategy. The Treasury Management Strategy is presented
annually and approved by Full Council.

11.2

There are key prudential indicators set in respect of the impact of capital
expenditure. The report details the forecast borrowing requirement over a four
year period, the consequential borrowing costs and the impact of the Council’s
capital financing requirement (CFR). The CFR is total outstanding capital
expenditure which has not yet been paid for either from revenue or capital
resources, essentially the Council’s underlying borrowing need.

11.3

The table below summarises the impact of the Council’s capital expenditure
plans on the CFR:-

Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR)

CFR – services

2019/20
Actual

2020/21
Estimate

2021/22
Estimate

2022/23
Estimate

2023/24
Estimate

2024/25
Estimate

£

£

£

£

£

£

16,769,490

18,163,180

21,128,190

22,540,990

24,631,300

24,609,620

Page 129

CFR – Commercial activities/
non-financial investments
Total CFR
Movement in CFR
Represented by:
Net financing need for the
year
Less Minimum Revenue
Provision*
Movement in CFR

58,580

0

100,000

17,860

60,850

62,000

16,828,070

18,163,180

21,228,190

22,558,850

24,692,150

24,671,620

598,340

1,335,110

3,065,010

1,330,660

1,133,310

979,470

644,720

1,394,380

3,152,180

1,476,860

1,309,050

1,181,390

(46,380)

(59,270)

(87,170)

(146,200)

(175,740)

(201,920)

598,340

1,335,110

3,065,010

1,330,660

1,133,310

979,470

11.4

Where a borrowing requirement is identified, an assessment takes place on the
most cost effective way to fund this. This could result in ‘external borrowing’
from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB), other Local Authorities, direct from
the market or by utilising lease arrangements.

11.5

Alternatively, ‘internal borrowing’ – the use of cash balances – could be used
temporarily, particularly in the current interest rate climate where investment
returns remain low. However, this needs to be carefully reviewed to avoid
incurring higher borrowing costs in the future when the Council may not be able
to avoid new borrowing to finance capital expenditure and/or the refinancing of
maturing debt.

11.6

The Council’s forward debt projections are shown in the table below in relation
to the CFR:March ’20
Actual £

External Borrowing

March ‘21
Estimate £

March ‘22
Estimate £

March ‘23
Estimate £

March ‘24
Estimate £

March ‘25
Estimate £

20,183,000

21,290,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

17,076,000

18,882,000

0

0

0

0

Gross Debt at 31st March

10,000,000

15,000,000

17,076,000

18,882,000

20,183,000

21,290,000

Change in Debt position

(1,000,000)

5,000,000

2,076,000

1,806,000

1,301,000

1,107,000

Capital Financing
Requirement

16,828,070

18,163,180

21,228,190

22,558,850

24,692,150

24,671,620

Other long-term liabilities*

0

0

(Under) / over borrowing
6,828,070
(3,163,180)
(4,152,190)
(3,676,850)
(4,509,150)
(3,381,620)
*Other long-term liabilities will include Right-of-Use assets under accounting standard IFRS16 to be adopted
from 2021/22. These are assets formerly known as operating leases which will be included on the balance sheet
and therefore increase the CFR, similar to the former treatment of Finance Leases. The impact is expected to
be immaterial therefore is not included at this stage. Should any changes be significant, the CFR limit and
forecast will be revised during the year.

12

Risk Management

12.1

There are a number of key risks that will impact upon the successful
implementation of the Council’s Capital Strategy

Page 130

12.2

The Council operates effective risk management through its Risk Management
Framework. Risk management is the process of identifying risks, evaluating
their potential consequences and determining the most effective methods of
managing them and/or responding to them. It is both a means of minimising the
costs and disruption to the Council caused by undesired events and of ensuring
that the element of risk in all activities is properly understood.

12.3

In order to manage risk effectively, the risks associated with each capital project
need to be systematically identified, analysed, influenced and monitored. It is
important to identify the appetite for risk by each scheme and for the capital
programme as a whole, especially when investing in capital assets held
primarily for financial returns.

12.4

An assessment of risk should therefore be built into each individual capital
project and the major risks that identified should be recorded in the Projects
Risk Register which is reported to the Council’s Audit & Accounts Committee.

12.5

The risks associated with the Capital Strategy are detailed below with the
mitigating actions:

Risk
Diminishing Resources

Mitigating Actions




Project Delivery





Commercial Investments



VAT Partial Exemption




The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) carefully monitored
and managed
New grant / funding opportunities explored
Partnership opportunities explored to share investment
Spending / Funding closely monitored
Projects managed through the Council’s project management
methodology
Major projects reported through the council’s performance
framework
Exposure to non-repayment carefully managed through the
contract management arrangements
Disinvestment potential will be regularly considered
Each capital investment will be closely reviewed to assess its
VAT implications.

Page 131

This page is intentionally left blank

Environmental Health

Animal Boarding Establishments (Kennels &
Cateries) including Domestic Day Care &
Over Night Licence (initial or renewal,
excluding vet fees). Vets fees are charged in
addition to these fees based on full cost
recovery:

% increase

Fair charging

Officer Time

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£300.00

£300.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£250.00

£250.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£400.00

£400.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£600.00

£600.00

0.00%

Price on
Request
£100.00
£100.00
£50.00

Price on
Request
£100.00
£100.00
£50.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

1-10 animals

Non Business VAT (-%)

25 Plus Animals

Approved Food Premises
Camping Site Registration
Caravan & Camping Site Registration
New application
Fee per additional
pitch
Licence amendment
Transfer of Licence
Annual fee
Deposit of site rules
(Initial Enquiry 2
Hours Minimum
Charge )
Each subsequent
hour or part thereof
Cooling Tower Notification
Dangerous Wild Animals Licence (initial or
renewal, excluding vet fees). Vets fees are
charged in addition to these fees based on full
cost recovery
Dog Breeding Establishments Licence (initial
or renewal, excluding vet fees). Vets fees are
charged in addition to these fees based on full
cost recovery:

2021/22
Charge

Charging
Category

Animal boarding (Crèche Facility) Commercial
Commercial Home Boarding (Host franchise)
upto 5 Households
Commercial Home Boarding (Host franchise)
upto 5 - 10 Households
Commercial Home Boarding (Host franchise)
upto 10 Plus
Re-Rate Inspection
Interim Inspection (Commercial)
Interim Inspection (Domestic)

Contaminated Land Enquiry:

2020/21
Current
Charge

VAT

11 + animals

Park Homes:

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

Unit

1-4 dogs

5 - 10 dogs
10 Plus

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory
Statutory

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Statutory

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£350.00

£350.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Fair charging

£180.00

£180.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£120.00

£120.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£190.00

£190.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£110.00

£110.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Statutory

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

Officer Time

£400.00

£400.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

Officer Time

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£300.00

£300.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£350.00

£350.00

0.00%

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

£20.00

£20.00

0%

Cost recovery Officer Time

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Re-Rate Inspection
Interim Inspection
Environmental Health Pre-Application advice
(minimum 2 hours)

(Initial Enquiry 2
Hours Minimum
Charge)
Each subsequent
hour or part thereof

Environmental Permit

Fees Set by DEFRA

Copy of Register of Authorisations (Permits):
Copying Charge Plus officer time charged for
photocopying per hour or part thereof.

per side of A4 (or
equivalent electronic
format)

Officer Time (EIR)
Export Health Certificate
Export Health Certificate Unlimited Yearly
(Max 25 Certificates)
Export Health Certificate Unlimited Yearly
(Max 50 Certificates)
Export Health Certificate Unlimited Yearly (50
Plus)
Export Health Certificate for Brewery/Artisan
Products

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Statutory

Fair charging

Officer Time

£130.00

£130.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£1,600.00

£1,600.00

0.00%

£3,000.00

£3,000.00

0.00%

Price on
Request

Price on
Request

£65.00

£65.00

Fair charging

Officer Time

Page 133

0.00%

Environmental Health

Unit

Export Health Certificate Unlimited Yearly
Brewery/Artisan Products (Max 25
Certificates)
Export Health Certificate (Samples/ Low Value
goods up to £500 per consignment)
Amendment to Health Certificate
Amendment to Health Certificate
(Artisan/Brewery Products)
Food Hygiene Rating Scheme - Re-Rate
within 3 Months of Inspection
Enhanced Food Registration & Advice Visit
with Safer Food Better Business Pack (upto 2
hours)

Price On Application
Officer Time hourly

Enhanced Food Registration & Advice Visit
with Safer Food Better Business Pack (upto 3
hours)
Safer Food Better Business Pack Incl 2 Year
Diary
Copy of Food Register (Full Copy of
database)

Full Register

One Copy of Any Entry in the Register
List of Food Premises In a Particular Category
Food Premises Registration
House in Multiple Occupation Licence:

First application

2021/22
Charge

% increase

Fair charging

Officer Time

£600.00

£600.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£65.00

£65.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£15.00

£15.00

0.00%

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

Officer Time

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

Officer Time

£125.00

£125.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£175.00

£175.00

0.00%

£20.00

£20.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£175.00

£175.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£15.00

£15.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£75.00

£75.00

0.00%

Statutory

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£385.00

£385.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£310.00

£310.00

0.00%

Change of ownership
application

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£310.00

£310.00

0.00%

Statutory

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

per application

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Statutory

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

£55.00

£55.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£180.00

£180.00

0.00%

£100.00
£100.00

£100.00
£100.00

0.00%
0.00%

Hypnotism Registration
Land Drainage/Culvert Maintenance for
Private Individuals or Companies

2020/21
Current
Charge

Charging
Category

Subsequent
Non Business VAT (-application/renewal by
%)
same landlord

Improvement Notice Fee
Immigration Housing Certificate

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

VAT

Full Price On
Application inc. Officer
Time hourly

Pet Shop Licence (initial or renewal)
(excluding vet fees. Vets fees are charged in
addition to these fees based on full cost
recovery):
Interim Inspection
Re-Rate Inspection
Pleasure Boats & Pleasure Vessels to be let
for hire or used for carrying passengers for
hire (Exemption for such boats on any inland
waterway owned or managed by the British
Waterways Board)

Officer Time

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

£120.00

£120.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£175.00

£175.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

Re-Rate Inspection

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Interim Inspection

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£3,100.00

£3,100.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1,700.00

£1,700.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£700.00

£700.00

0.00%

Statutory

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£105.00

£105.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Riding Establishments Licence (initial or
renewal, excluding vet fees). Vets fees are
charged in addition to these fees based on full
cost recovery: (Annual Vet Inspection
required)

1-10 animals

11-20 animals
21+ animals

Sex Shop & Cinema Licence (including Sexual
Entertainment Venues of any type):

New Application

Renewal
Transfer
Special Treatments Registration (Premises)
including: Massage; Manicure; Other Special
Treatments e.g. Vapour, Sauna or Other Bath
Treatments
Statement of Officers Opinion:

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Initial Enquiry 2 Hours
subsequent hour or
part thereof

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Page 134

Environmental Health

Home/Mobile Tattooing, Piercing,
Acupuncture Including 1 person
Tattooing, Piercing, Acupuncture, Electrolysis
Licence (initial or renewal):

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

Fair charging

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£90.00

£90.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

£1,250.00

£1,250.00

0.00%

Second & subsequent Non Business VAT (-(6 year licence)
%)

Statutory

£1,250.00

£1,250.00

0.00%

Interim periodical

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Vet fees as
applicable
only

Vet fees as
applicable
only

Renewal periodical

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Vet fees as
applicable
only

Vet fees as
applicable
only

Informal inspections

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Vet fees as
applicable
only

Vet fees as
applicable
only

Full commercial

£110.00

£110.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£110.00

£110.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£215.00

£215.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£315.00

£315.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

Free

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£65.00

£65.00

0.00%

£32.50

£32.50

0.00%

£65.00

£65.00

0.00%

£32.50

£32.50

0.00%

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

£62.50

£62.50

0.00%

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

£250.00

£250.00

0.00%

£125.00

£125.00

0.00%

£400.00

£400.00

0.00%

Unit

Premises/ Person
Premises
Person
Guest Tattooist

Ear Piercing Only:

Premises
Person
Amendment (e.g.
Change of address)

Zoo Licence (excluding vet fees). Vets fees
are charged in addition to these fees based on First (4 year licence)
full cost recovery:

Zoo Licence:

Charging
Category

VAT

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Pest Control
Contract Work (Commercial)
treatments in addition to contract agreement:

Officer Time/ Pesticides/ Transport
Per hour Per officer
Single treatment
up to 3 treatments
up to 5 treatments

Non Contract Work (Commercial)

Per hour Per officer

Rodents (Rats) (Domestic) - up to three visits
to treat:
Wasps Nest (Domestic Treatment):
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults
Rodents (Mice) (Domestic) - up to three visits
to treat:
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults
Bed Bugs:
2 bed house
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults
3 bed house
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults
4 bed house
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults
>4 bed house

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

50% reduction

50% reduction

50% reduction

50% reduction

50% reduction

Page 135

Environmental Health

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

50% reduction

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

£125.00

£125.00

0.00%

£62.50

£62.50

0.00%

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

£75.00

£75.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£250.00

£250.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£70.00

£70.00

0.00%

£35.00

£35.00

0.00%

£70.00

£70.00

0.00%

£35.00

£35.00

0.00%

Price on
Application

Price on
Application

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

£300.00

£300.00

0.00%

£400.00
£500.00
£500.00

£400.00
£500.00
£500.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£60.00

£60.00

0.00%
0.00%

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Fleas:
2 bed house
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults
3 bed house
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults
4 bed house
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

>4 bed house
Ants
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Other insect pests (domestic):
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults
Moles (Commercial Only)

Subsidised

50% reduction

50% reduction

50% reduction

50% reduction

Benchmark with other Derbyshire
Full commercial Districts where info. Available on
website

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

Appointment Missed/Cancelled (Site)

50% reduction

Private Water Supply Charges
Risk Assessment:

Upto 2 properties

Including Officer Time on Site

3-5 Properties
5 Plus Properties
Large Commercial
Officer Time per
Sample

Sampling
Investigation

Per investigation

Analysing a sample under regulation 10

Re-Charge

Analysing a check monitoring sample
Regulation 9

Re-Charge

Analysing an audit monitoring sample

Re-Charge

Request from Search Company for Data
relating to Private Water Supplies in a
particular area.

Hourly Rate

Stray Dogs

Statutory fee
Admin fee

Non Business VAT (-%)

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

Fair charging
Fair charging

£120.00

£120.00

Laboratory
Charge
Laboratory
Charge
Laboratory
Charge

Laboratory
Charge
Laboratory
Charge
Laboratory
Charge

Fair charging

£60.00

£60.00

0.00%

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging

Kennel fee per day or
part thereof

Fee set by
Fee set by
kennel owner kennel owner

Page 136

Licensing

Unit

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

Statutory

£2,500.00

£2,500.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,000.00

£1,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,500.00

£1,500.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£2,000.00

£2,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Statutory

£2,000.00

£2,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,000.00

£1,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,000.00

£1,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£2,000.00

£2,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,500.00

£1,500.00

0.00%

Statutory

£750.00

£750.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,000.00

£1,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£950.00

£950.00

0.00%

Statutory

£950.00

£950.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,600.00

£1,600.00

0.00%

Statutory

£950.00

£950.00

0.00%

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Statutory

£2,000.00

£2,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£600.00

£600.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,300.00

£1,300.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£2,000.00

£2,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Charging
Category

VAT

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

Gambling Act
Bingo - New Application
Annual Fee
Application to Vary
Application to Transfer
Application for Reinstatement
Application for Provisional Statement
Application in respect of Provisional Statement
Holder
Notification of Change
Copy of Licence

Adult Gaming Centre - New Application
Annual Fee
Application to Vary
Application to Transfer
Application for Reinstatement
Application for Provisional Statement
Application in respect of Provisional Statement
Holder
Notification of Change
Copy of Licence

Family Entertainment Centre - New Application
Annual Fee
Application to Vary
Application to Transfer
Application for Reinstatement
Application for Provisional Statement
Application in respect of Provisional Statement
Holder
Notification of Change
Copy of Licence

Betting Premises (excluding Tracks) - New
Application
Annual Fee
Application to Vary
Application to Transfer
Application for Reinstatement
Application for Provisional Statement
Application in respect of Provisional Statement
Holder
Notification of Change
Copy of Licence

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Page 137

Licensing

Unit

VAT

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Race Tracks - New Application
Annual Fee
Application to Vary
Application to Transfer
Application for Reinstatement
Application for Provisional Statement
Application in respect of Provisional Statement
Holder
Notification of Change
Copy of Licence

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

Statutory

£2,000.00

£2,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,000.00

£1,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,250.00

£1,250.00

0.00%

Statutory

£950.00

£950.00

0.00%

Statutory

£950.00

£950.00

0.00%

Statutory

£2,000.00

£2,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£950.00

£950.00

0.00%

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Charging
Category

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

Gambling Act Permit Fees set by the
Secretary of State
Licensed Premises Automatic Notification
Process: Payable on Notification

Up to 2
machines

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Small society Lotteries Application

Application

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£40.00

£40.00

0.00%

Small Society Lotteries Annual Renewal

Renewals

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£20.00

£20.00

0.00%

Street Trading Consent

Annual Rate

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£3,100.00

£3,100.00

0.00%

Street Trading Consent - Upto 2 Days

Annual Rate

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£1,600.00

£1,600.00

0.00%

Daily rate

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£40.00

£40.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Yearly

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

£180.00

£180.00

0.00%

Per
Plate/Badge

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

£10.00

£10.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Annual

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

£75.00

£75.00

0.00%

3 years

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

1 Year

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

£105.00

£105.00

0.00%

5 years

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

£315.00

£315.00

0.00%

Statutory

Price on
Application

Price on
Application

Price on
Application

Price on
Application

Charges for Annual Licences (unless
stated)

Daily Street Trading consent
Street Trading Change of Name & Address
Taxi Licences - Hackney Carriage & Private
Hire Vehicles
Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Licence (new &
renewal) Including Brackets & Plates/Decals
(The fee includes 10% for enforcement duties)
Replacement Driver Badge or Vehicle Plate
Hackney Carriage Decals - Provided by 3rd
party company
Change of Vehicle Including Plate/Card
New Licensed Driver/Renewal: Including
Knowledge Test and Resit, Safeguarding
Training & Driver Badge (The fee includes 10%
for enforcement duties)

Private Hire Operators Licence (The fee
includes 10% for enforcement duties)
Private Hire Operators Licence (The fee
includes 10% for enforcement duties)
Document Identification Check (Fee set by
Crown Post Office

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

DBS Check by 3rd Party Company
Re-Sit Knowledge Test

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

Taxi Test (Paid Directly to Garage)

£20.00

£20.00

Price on
Application

Price on
Application

£245.00

£245.00

0.00%

Scrap Metal Dealers
Collectors Licence

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Page 138

0.00%

Licensing

Variation to Collectors Licence
Site Licence
Variation to Site Licence
Variation to licence Change of Name or
Address
Copy of Licence

Unit

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

Statutory

£95.00

£95.00

0.00%

Statutory

£390.00

£390.00

0.00%

£115.00

£115.00

0.00%

Statutory

£32.00

£32.00

0.00%

Statutory

£15.00

£15.00

0.00%

Charging
Category

VAT

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licences and Club Premises
Certificates - First Year Fee:
Band A

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Band B

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£190.00

£190.00

0.00%

Band C

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£315.00

£315.00

0.00%

Band D

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£450.00

£450.00

0.00%

Band E

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£635.00

£635.00

0.00%

Band A

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£70.00

£70.00

0.00%

Band B

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£180.00

£180.00

0.00%

Band C

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£295.00

£295.00

0.00%

Band D

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£320.00

£320.00

0.00%

Band E

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£350.00

£350.00

0.00%

Personal Licence (Application or Renewal)

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£37.00

£37.00

0.00%

Temporary Event Notice

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£21.00

£21.00

0.00%

Permitted Temporary Activities, Personal
Licences and Miscellaneous:
Theft/ Loss, etc. of Premises Licence or
Summary
Application for a Provisional Statement where
premises being built etc.

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£315.00

£315.00

0.00%

Notification of change of name or address

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Application to vary licence to specify individual
as premises supervisor

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£23.00

£23.00

0.00%

Application for transfer of premises licence

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£23.00

£23.00

0.00%

Interim authority notice following death etc. of
licence holder

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£23.00

£23.00

0.00%

Theft, loss etc. of certificate or summary

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Notification of change of name or alteration of
rules of club

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Change of relevant registered address of club

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Theft, loss etc. of temporary event notice

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Theft, loss etc. of personal licence

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Duty to notify change of name or address

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Right of freeholder etc. to be notified of
licensing matters

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£21.00

£21.00

0.00%

Minor Variation

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£89.00

£89.00

0.00%

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

Premises Licences and Club Premises
Certificates Annual Fee:

Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permit
Grant

Page 139

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Transfer

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Annual Fee

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Change of Name

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Grant

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

Grant (Club Premises Certificate Holder)

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Existing Operator Grant

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Variation

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Renewal

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

Renewal (Club Premise Certificate Holder)

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Annual Fee

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Grant

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

Grant (Club Premises Certificate Holder)

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Existing Operator Grant

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Variation

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Renewal

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

Renewal (Club Premise Certificate Holder)

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Annual Fee

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Grant

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£300.00

£300.00

0.00%

Existing Operator Grant

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Renewal

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£300.00

£300.00

0.00%

Change of Name

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Free

No Cost

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

Appropriate Fee Structure

£55.00

£55.00

0.00%

VAT

Charging
Category

Existing Operator Grant

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Variation

Licensing

Unit

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

Club Gaming Permits

Club Machine Permits

Family Entertainment Centre Gaming
Permits

Copies of all Permits

Each

Other Licences
Street Collection Licence

Registrations
Statement of Officers Opinion

Page 140

Land Charges

Unit

LLC1

Residential

LLC1 Additional Parcels

Residential

Con 29R

Residential
(plus SCC fee incurred)

Con 29R Additional Parcels

Residential

Full Standard Search (LLC1 + Con 29R) Part
Con 29 (Inc. Vat)

Residential
(plus SCC fee incurred)

Full Standard Search Additional Parcels Part
Con 29 (Inc. Vat)

Residential

Con 29O - Each

Residential

Each Additional Enquiry

Residential

Personal Search of the Land Charges
Register

Residential

VAT

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Charging
Category

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

%
increase

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£27.80

£27.80

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£10.00

£10.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£39.60

£39.60

0.00%

Cost recovery

(plus recovery of SCC fee)

TBC

TBC

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£26.00

£26.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£67.40

£67.40

0.00%

Cost recovery

(plus recovery of SCC fee)

TBC

TBC

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£36.00

£36.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£9.00

£9.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£18.00

£18.00

0.00%

Statutory

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Free

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

A search on each individual part of the Local
Land Charges Register:
Parts 5, 7, 8 & 12

Residential - each

Parts 1, 2, 6, 9, & 11

Residential - each

Parts 4 & 10

Residential - each

Part 3

Residential - each

LLC1

Commercial

LLC1 Additional Parcels

Commercial

Con 29R

Commercial
(plus SCC fee incurred)

Con 29R Additional Parcels

Commercial

Full Standard Search (LLC1 + Con 29R) Part
Con29 (Inc. Vat)

Commercial
(plus SCC fee incurred)

Full Standard Search Additional Parcels Part
Con29 (Inc. Vat)

Commercial

Con 29O - Each

Commercial

Each Additional Enquiry

Commercial

Personal Search of the Land Charges
Register

Commercial

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£4.00

£4.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£12.00

£12.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£40.00

£40.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£24.00

£24.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£82.80

£82.80

0.00%

Cost recovery

(plus recovery of SCC fee)

TBC

TBC

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£42.00

£42.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£122.80

£122.80

0.00%

Cost recovery

(plus recovery of SCC fee)

TBC

TBC

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£66.00

£66.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£9.00

£9.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£18.00

£18.00

0.00%

Statutory

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Free

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

A search on each individual part of the Local
Land Charges Register:
Parts 5, 7, 8 & 12

Commercial - each

Parts 1, 2, 6, 9, & 11

Commercial - each

Parts 4 & 10

Commercial - each

Part 3

Commercial - each

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£4.50

£4.50

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£18.50

£18.50

0.00%

Fees for access to individual Con 29R
questions:
Con 29R Q1.1 a-j

Residential Block

Con 29R Q1.1 j-l

Residential Block

Con 29R Q1.2
Con 29R Q2

Residential Block

Con 29R Q3.1

Residential
Residential - request direct
to SCC

Con 29R Q3.4

Cost recovery

£4.80

£4.80

0.00%

Cost recovery

£4.80

£4.80

0.00%

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

SCC

SCC

£1.20

£1.20

SCC

SCC

£1.20

£1.20

SCC

SCC

Residential - request direct
to SCC

Con 29R Q3.2
Con 29R Q3.3 a-c

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Residentail Block

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

Cost recovery

Residential - request direct
to SCC

Page 141

0.00%

0.00%

Land Charges

Con 29R Q3.5 a & b
Con 29R Q3.6
Con 29R Q3.7 (a-d, f)
Con 29R Q 3.7 e

SCC

SCC

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

SCC

SCC

Residential request direct
to Staffordshire County

Residential Block
Residential Block

Con 29R Q3.12

Residential Block

Con 29R Q3.13 a-c

Residential Block

Con 29R Q3.14

Residential Block

Con 29R Q3.15 a & b

Residential Block

Con 29R Q1.1 a-l

Commercial Block

Con 29R Q1.1 j-l

Commercial Block

Con 29R Q1.2

Commericla Block

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Commerical Block

Con 29R Q3.2

Commercial - request direct
to SCC
Commercial Block

£1.20

£1.20

0.00%

£10.80

£10.80

0.00%

Cost recovery

£1.20

£1.20

0.00%

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Cost recovery

£1.20

£1.20

0.00%

Cost recovery

£1.20

£1.20

0.00%

Cost recovery

£1.20

£1.20

0.00%

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Cost recovery

£12.00

£12.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

£12.00

£12.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

£5.40

£5.40

0.00%

SCC

SCC
£2.40

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

£2.40
SCC

SCC

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

SCC

SCC

£2.40

£2.40

SCC

SCC

£5.40

£5.40

SCC

SCC

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Cost recovery

£18.00

£18.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Cost recovery

£5.40

£5.40

0.00%

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

Commercial - request direct
to SCC
Commercial Block

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

Commercial Request direct
to SCC

Con 29R Q3.8

Commercial Block

Con 29R Q3.9 a-n

Commercial Block

Con 29R Q3.10 a-h

Commercial Block

Con 29R Q3.11 a & b

Commercial Block

Con 29R Q3.12

Commercial Block

Con 29R Q3.13 a-c

Commercial Block

Con 29R Q3.14

Commercial Block

Con 29R Q3.15 a & b

Commercial Block

0.00%

Cost recovery

Commercial - request direct
to SCC
Commercial Block

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

Cost recovery

Commercial - request direct
to SCC

Con 29R Q3.1

Con 29 R Q 3.7 e

0.00%

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Residential Block

Con 29R Q3.10 a-h

Con 29R Q3.7 a-d, f

£1.20

Residential - request direct
to SCC

Con 29R Q3.11 a & b

Con 29R Q3.5 a & b

£1.20

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Residential Block

Con 29R Q3.6

Cost recovery

Residential Block

Residential Block

Con 29R Q3.4

%
increase

Charging
Category

Con 29R Q3.8

Con 29R Q3.3 a-c

2021/22
Charge

VAT

Con 29R Q3.9 a-n

Con 29R Q2

2020/21
Current
Charge

Unit

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Cost recovery

£5.40

£5.40

0.00%

Page 142

Planning Enforcement

Unit

Charging
Category

VAT

Justification for Charging Category

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

£40.00

£40.00

0.00%

£80.00

£80.00

0.00%

Charges do not apply to alleged breaches of planning
regulations which are provided free of charge
Desk-based history check requested by
member of the public
Site visit requested by member of the public

Per check
Per visit

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery
Service benefits applicant
Cost recovery

Page 143

Planning

Unit

Charging
Category

VAT

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Householder PD check
Listed Building enforcement check

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

%
increase

Fair charging

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£67.00

£67.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£47.00

£47.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£31.00

£31.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£7.00

£7.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£18.50

£18.50

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£13.50

£13.50

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£8.25

£8.25

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£370.00

£370.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£51.25

£51.25

0.00%

£32.00

£32.00

0.00%

COPYING
Decision Notice

Per notice

A4 OS maps

4 Copies

Planning Applications (Current & Historic):

First page
Additional
pages

Planning Applications Plans - AO size

Per copy

Planning Applications Plans - A3 size

Per copy

Planning Applications Plans - A4 size

Per copy

Weekly Planning List

Per year

Informal or history Searches:

First hour
Additionals

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

Cost of
Postage

Charge not VAT-able

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

Admin Charge

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£8.25

£8.25

0.00%

Strategic major applications

Over 50
dwellings or
10,000sqm
commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

Freeze - Fees currently make profit ; do
not want to deter applications

£1,130.00

£1,130.00

0.00%

Major proposals

Between 10
and 50
dwellings or
1,00010,000sqm
commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

Freeze - Fees currently make profit ; do
not want to deter applications

£845.00

£845.00

0.00%

Between 1 and
9 dwellings or
under
1,000sqm
commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

Freeze - Fees currently make profit ; do
not want to deter applications

£570.00

£570.00

0.00%

Strategic major applications

Over 50
dwellings or
10,000sqm
commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

Freeze - Fees currently make profit ; do
not want to deter applications

£565.00

£565.00

0.00%

Major proposals

Between 10
and 50
dwellings or
1,00010,000sqm
commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

Freeze - Fees currently make profit ; do
not want to deter applications

£425.00

£425.00

0.00%

Minor proposals

Between 1 and
9 dwellings or
under
1,000sqm
commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

Freeze - Fees currently make profit ; do
not want to deter applications

£285.00

£285.00

0.00%

Postage:

Postage Cost Postage Cost

PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE
Meetings

Minor proposals and other
structures/developments not in the above
categories

Written Advice

Statutory Planning Fees

Statutory

Page 144

See Planning See Planning
Portal
Portal

Building Control

Unit

Justification for Charging
Category

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

£117.00

0.00%

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

Discretionary Charge
If works are complete and all
information is to hand then
£117.00
charge discounted to £65.00 surveyors call

For
regularisation

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

£41.00

£41.00

0.00%

Not for
regularisation

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

For the first issue of a Completion Certificate
where work has been completed/ occupied
without notice to the council.

Copies of completion certificates, approvals,
where an application number is quoted and
assessment for redaction applied:

Charging
Category

VAT

Written response to an enquiry on works not
requiring an application (e.g. confirmation of
information available on the internet or provided
over the telephone). Includes a search on the
presence of public sewers in relation to the
development where applicable.
Written response to a query. (Charges will
therefore vary dependent on length of time
taken to collate information).

Per hour or part
thereof

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

£65.00

£65.00

0.00%

Written response to a query requiring a search
for information that needs input of senior staff.
(Charges will therefore vary dependent on
length of time taken to collate information).

Per hour or part
thereof

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

£65.00

£65.00

0.00%

Making available drawings for viewing subject to Per hour or part
redaction and permission of copyright ownership
thereof

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

£55.00

£55.00

0.00%

Returning of stamped approved copy plans to
applicant following scanning of the original file

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

£40.00

£40.00

0.00%

Administration fee for withdrawal of an
application where registered but not assessed

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

£40.00

£40.00

0.00%

Administrative fee for the return of invalid
applications where the applicant does not
respond within 10 days (including weekends)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

£40.00

£40.00

0.00%

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

£40.00

£40.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

£65.00

£65.00

0.00%

Normal: Per
hour - minimum
charge

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

£56.00

£56.00

0.00%

Out of Hours:
Per hour minimum
charge

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

£82.00

£82.00

0.00%

Consultation Advice (in excess of 1 hour) Discounted by 100% on the submission of a
Building Regulations Application

Per half hour

Dealing with the Notification of Demolition
Notices under Section 80 of the Building Act.
Further charges may be incurred if a complex
demolition is proposed. These charges will be
based on an hourly rate of £56
Recovery of costs associated with dealing with
reports of dangerous structures, where
investigation or action taken:

Page 145

Discretionary Charge

Street Naming

New Properties, small developments
New Properties, large developments
New Street Name
Renaming Existing Properties
Confirmation of Postal Address

Unit

VAT

1-5 Properties
(each)
6+ Properties
(each)

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

-Rationale
2020/21
-Benchmarking
Current
-Reason for changes/ freezes Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

£72.00

£72.00

0.00%

£42.00

£42.00

0.00%

£215.00

£215.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£72.00

£72.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£46.00

£46.00

0.00%

Charging
Category

Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging

Page 146

Benchmarked against other
LAs and service providers

Waste

Unit

Charging
Category

VAT

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

£31.00

£31.00

0.00%

Trade Waste & Recycling
To ensure that the Council remains competitive and is
commercially focused, rates levied for trade waste and trade
recycling collections will be calculated based upon volumes and
demand ensuring at all times that they do not fall below the cost
of service provision to the authority.

Domestic Waste

All benchmarked to other LAs

Charge for supply & delivery of new or
replacement waste or recycling bin of any size
or colour for use at a single domestic dwelling.

per bin

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Cost recovery

Charge for supply & delivery of new or
replacement 140l, 180l or 240l bin for use by
multiple domestic dwellings or for a trade
premise to replace a bin damaged by the
customer.

per bin

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Cost recovery

£43.50

£43.50

0.00%

Charge for supply & delivery of new or
replacement 360l bin for use by multiple
domestic dwellings or for a trade premise to
replace a bin damaged by the customer.

per bin

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Cost recovery

£69.00

£69.00

0.00%

Charge for supply & delivery of new or
replacement 660l bin for use by multiple
domestic dwellings or for a trade premise to
replace a bin damaged by the customer.

per bin

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Cost recovery

£280.00

£280.00

0.00%

Charge for supply & delivery of new or
replacement 1100l bin for use by multiple
domestic dwellings or for a trade premise to
replace a bin damaged by the customer.

per bin

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Cost recovery

£315.00

£315.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£3.95

£3.95

0.00%

service charge is over and
Full commercial
above cost to authority

£0.70

£0.70

0.00%

Full commercial

£75.00

£75.00

0.00%

Purchase of one roll of blue sacks

roll of 16

Purchase of a paper garden waste sack

Each

Supply and delivery of additional Garden Waste
Bin and ongoing collection

Each

Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)

to recover cost of service

Page 147

Cemeteries

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

Burial Plots Exclusive right of burial &
issue of certificate

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/
freezes

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

All benchmarked to other
LAs

Purchase Fee
New Coffin Grave - Leek parish resident

per grave

New Coffin Grave (all other SMDC residents)

per grave

New Coffin Grave (residents from outside
SMDC area)
New Cremated remains Grave - Leek parish
resident
New Cremated remains Grave (all other
SMDC residents)
New Cremated remains Grave (residents from
outside SMDC area)

per grave
per grave
per grave
per grave

Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)

Fair charging

Single fees

£700.00

£700.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Double fees

£1,400.00

£1,400.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Triple fees

£2,100.00

£2,100.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Single fees

£350.00

£350.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Double fees

£700.00

£700.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Triple fees

£1,050.00

£1,050.00

0.00%

Pre-purchased new coffin grave

per grave

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Fair charging

10% uplift on costs to
discourage pre purchases
which are using up valuable
grave space

£770.00

£770.00

0.00%

Pre-purchased cremated remains grave

per grave

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Fair charging

10% uplift on costs to
discourage pre purchases
which are using up valuable
grave space

£385.00

£385.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£954.00

£954.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£822.00

£822.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£734.00

£734.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£241.00

£241.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£154.00

£154.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£180.00

£180.00

0.00%

Interment/burial Fees
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)

Coffin grave for three (Leek Cemetery only)

per grave

Coffin grave for two

per grave

Coffin grave for one

per grave

Cremated remains casket burial

per grave

Lawn burial of ashes

per grave

Cremation Casket in Garden of Remembrance

per grave

Out of area fees:

per grave

Leek Parish residents only

per grave

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Fair charging

Single fees

Single fees

per grave

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Fair charging

Double fees

Double fees

per grave

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Fair charging

Triple fees

Triple fees

Free

Free

Re-opened graves for those not residing in the
Leek Parish and
New graves for SMDC residents not residing in
Leek Parish
Outside Staffs. Moorlands (newly dug graves
only)

Interment/burial of a child (aged 0-15 years)
Child's grave or ashes grave

per grave

Child's new full size grave

per grave

Child's reopened Grave

per grave

Out of SMDC area child's interment fee

per grave

Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)

Free
Subsidised

Half fee

£411.00

£411.00

0.00%

Subsidised

Half fee

£367.00

£367.00

0.00%

£241.00

£241.00

0.00%

Full commercial This is a permit

£165.00

£165.00

0.00%

Full commercial This is a permit

£117.00

£117.00

0.00%

Full commercial This is a permit

£117.00

£117.00

0.00%

Full commercial This is a permit

£70.00

£70.00

0.00%

Free

Free

0.00%

Nominal

We have separated out
permits from memorials to

Memorial permits
Permit for a new upright memorial including 1st
inscription
Permit for a memorial desk tablet/ vase
including 1st inscription
Permit for a replacement memorial
Permit for an additional inscription on memorial/
tablet/ vase etc.
Permit for a child's "single use" memorial on
any grave type

Policy

per permit
per permit
per permit
per permit
per permit

Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)

Free

Page 148

Policy

Cemeteries

Unit

Memorial items
Cast Bronze/ Granite memorial plaque (up to
75 letters)
Cast bronze sponsored tree plaque (existing
tree only)
Sponsored memorial bench & bronze plaque

per plaque
per plaque

Charging
Category

VAT

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/
freezes

We have separated out
permits from memorials to
Standard Rated
This is for a memorial
Full commercial
plaque
VAT (20%)
Standard Rated
This is for a memorial
Full commercial
plaque
VAT (20%)

50% deposit
Standard Rated
This is for a memorial
required before
Full commercial
VAT (20%)
plaque and bench
order

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

£390.00

£390.00

0.00%

£390.00

£390.00

0.00%

£1,356.00

£1,356.00

0.00%

£49.00

£49.00

0.00%

£27.00

£27.00

0.00%

£27.00

£27.00

0.00%

£72.00

£72.00

0.00%

£72.00

£72.00

0.00%

£72.00

£72.00

0.00%

£72.00

£72.00

0.00%

£72.00

£72.00

0.00%

£72.00

£72.00

0.00%

Other Charges
Replacement or transfer of grave deed
Search fee
Grave selection requiring Cemetery Officer
attendance
Large coffin (both dimensions over 6' 5" and
25")
Cancellation of funeral within 72 hours of burial
Coffin size not confirmed within 48 hours of
burial
Headstone not removed from grave when
requested
Paperwork not received in cemetery office
before burial
Late arrival of funeral at cemetery (>30
minutes)

Per half hour

Non Business
VAT (--%)
Standard Rated
VAT (20%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)

Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging

min increase proposed due
to lack of demand
min increase proposed due
to lack of demand
min increase proposed due
to lack of demand
min increase proposed due
to lack of demand
min increase proposed due
to lack of demand
min increase proposed due
to lack of demand
min increase proposed due
to lack of demand
min increase proposed due
to lack of demand
min increase proposed due
to lack of demand

Page 149

Horticulture

Copy of Tree Preservation Order

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

Per hard copy

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

Standard Rated
VAT (20%)

Fair charging

Fishing Tickets (Biddulph Grange Country
Park)

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

Changed from 25 to 0.Have not supplied
a charged for copy for a couple of years

£41.00

£41.00

0.00%

Benchmarked to compare prices at
neighbouring fishing locations

£7.00

£7.00

0.00%

Memorial Bench in a countryside park

Purchase &
Installation

Standard Rated
VAT (20%)

costs should be comparative with bench
Full commercial
in open space

£1,050.00

£1,050.00

0.00%

Memorial bench purchase and installation in a
public open space

Purchase &
Installation

Standard Rated
VAT (20%)

min increase proposed due to lack of
Full commercial
demand

£1,050.00

£1,050.00

0.00%

Adoption of an existing memorial bench located
in a public open space

Purchase &
Installation

Standard Rated
VAT (20%)

Fair charging

£550.00

£550.00

0.00%

Per complaint

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£510.00

£510.00

0.00%

Per session

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Fair charging

min increase proposed due to lack of
demand

£6.90

£6.90

0.00%

Admin Fee

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£56.50

£56.50

0.00%

Commercial Fairs - Small (< 10 items)

Day Rate

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£225.50

£225.50

0.00%

Commercial Fairs - Large (> 10 Items)

Admin Fee

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£115.00

£115.00

0.00%

Day Rate

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£430.00

£430.00

0.00%

Commercial Circus - Small (1- 300)

Admin Fee

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£56.50

£56.50

0.00%

Commercial Circus - Small (1- 300)

Day Rate

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£137.50

£137.50

0.00%

Admin Fee

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£112.50

£112.50

0.00%

Commercial Circus - Large (300 +)

Day Rate

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£370.00

£370.00

0.00%

Commercial Event - Small (1-500)

Admin Fee

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£57.00

£57.00

0.00%

Day Rate

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£132.50

£132.50

0.00%

Commercial Event - Medium (A) (500 - 1000)

Admin Fee

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£85.00

£85.00

0.00%

Commercial Event - Medium (A) (500 - 1000)

Day Rate

Exempt from VAT
min increase proposed due to lack of
Full commercial
(--%)
demand

£260.00

£260.00

0.00%

Admin Fee

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£110.00

£110.00

0.00%

Day Rate

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£385.00

£385.00

0.00%

Admin Fee

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£220.00

£220.00

0.00%

Day Rate

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£520.00

£520.00

0.00%

Commercial Event - Very Large (5000 - 10,000)

Admin Fee

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£272.50

£272.50

0.00%

Commercial Event - Very Large (5000 - 10,000)

Day Rate

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£670.00

£670.00

0.00%

Commercial Event - Major (+ 10,000)

Admin Fee

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£545.00

£545.00

0.00%

Commercial Event - Major (+ 10,000)

Day Rate

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£980.00

£980.00

0.00%

min increase proposed due to lack of
demand

High Hedges
High Hedge Complaints
Parks & Open Space Concession
Sport / Fitness Classes
Park /Open Space Event Charges
Commercial Fairs - Small (< 10 items)

Commercial Fairs - Large (> 10 Items)

Commercial Circus - Large (300 +)

Commercial Event - Small (1-500)

Commercial Event - Medium (B) (1000 - 2000)
Commercial Event - Medium (B) (1000 - 2000)
Commercial Event - Large (2000 - 5000)
Commercial Event - Large (2000 - 5000)

Admin Fee

Exempt from VAT
(--%)

Subsidised

min increase proposed due to lack of
demand

£28.50

£28.50

0.00%

Charitable Event - Some Commercial
Activity>1500

Admin Fee

Exempt from VAT
(--%)

Subsidised

min increase proposed due to lack of
demand

£82.50

£82.50

0.00%

Community Event -Some Commercial Activity
<1500

Admin Fee

Exempt from VAT
(--%)

Subsidised

min increase proposed due to lack of
demand

£28.50

£28.50

0.00%

Admin Fee

Exempt from VAT
(--%)

Subsidised

min increase proposed due to lack of
demand

£82.50

£82.50

0.00%

Charitable Event - No commercial activity

Admin Fee

Exempt from VAT
(--%)

Free

min increase proposed due to lack of
demand

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Community Event -No Commercial Activity

Admin Fee

Exempt from VAT
(--%)

Free

min increase proposed due to lack of
demand

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Admin Fee

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£57.50

£57.50

0.00%

Charitable Event - Some Commercial
Activity<1500

Community Event - Some Commercial Activity
>1500

Commercial Filming

Page 150

Horticulture

NEW - Commercial Filming
Commercial Filming
Commercial photo shoot
Commercial photo shoot

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

Hour rate

New fee created as a result of demand
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
for shorter filming
(--%)

n/a

£80.50

Day Rate

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£645.00

£645.00

0.00%

Admin Fee

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£57.50

£57.50

0.00%

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
Half Day Rate
demand
(--%)

£325.00

£325.00

0.00%

£57.50

£57.50

0.00%

Fair charging

min increase proposed due to lack of
demand

Fair charging

min increase proposed due to lack of
demand

£66.00

£66.00

0.00%

Free

min increase proposed due to lack of
demand

Discretionary Commercial Event

Admin Fee

Exempt from VAT
(--%)

Discretionary Commercial Event

Day Rate

Exempt from VAT
(--%)

Admin Fee

Exempt from VAT
(--%)

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Catering concessions - leisure sites

Admin Fee

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£57.50

£57.50

0.00%

Catering concessions - leisure sites

Day Rate

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£26.00

£26.00

0.00%

Admin Fee

min increase proposed due to lack of
Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
(--%)

£57.50

£57.50

0.00%

min increase proposed due to lack of
Day Rate / Per Exempt from VAT
Full commercial
demand
Item
(--%)

£36.00

£36.00

0.00%

Educational Establishments

New sites for concessions - amusements
New sites for concessions - amusements

Page 151

Car Parks

Unit

VAT

21/22 Charges are
subject to a
Parking Strategy
Review

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

Fair charging

£370.00

£370.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£190.00

£190.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£320.00

£320.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£170.00

£170.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£90.00

£90.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£250.00

£250.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£130.00

£130.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£70.00

£70.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£350.00

£350.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£55.00

£55.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£220.00

£220.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£10.00

£10.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.90

£1.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.90

£1.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.90

£1.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.90

£1.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.90

£1.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

Charging
Category

Season tickets (long stay car parks)
Leek:

Per annum
Half yearly
Quarterly

Cheadle:

Per annum
Half yearly
Quarterly

Biddulph:

Per annum
Half yearly
Quarterly

Smithfield Centre
California Car Park (proven Leek workers &
Residents)
Buxton Road Car Park (proven Leek workers
only)

Per annum
Per annum
Per annum

Replacement Passes

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Pay and Display
Leek: Brook Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: Buxton Road

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 10 hours

Leek: High Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 10 hours

Leek: Joliffe Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 10 hours

Leek: Market Place

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: Market Street East

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Page 152

Car Parks

Leek: Market Street West

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: Regent Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: Silk Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: Smithfield South

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: Stockwell Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: St Edward Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: Vicarage Road/ California

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 10 hours

Leek: West Street

Fair charging

£1.90

£1.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.90

£1.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.90

£1.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.90

£1.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.90

£1.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.90

£1.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.90

£1.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.90

£1.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.90

£1.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.90

£1.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Up to 3 hours

Leek: Queen Street

% increase

Up to 3 hours

Up to 2 hours

Leek: Moorlands House

2021/22
Charge

VAT

Up to 1 hour

Up to 1 hour

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

21/22 Charges are
subject to a
Parking Strategy
Review

2020/21
Current
Charge

Unit

Charging
Category

Page 153

Car Parks

Unit

Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 10 hours

Cheadle:Tape Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Cheadle:Well Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 10 hours

Biddulph: Wharf Road

Up to 1 Hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 10 hours

VAT

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

21/22 Charges are
subject to a
Parking Strategy
Review

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.90

£1.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Fair charging

£0.90

£0.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.40

£1.40

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.80

£1.80

0.00%

Fair charging

£0.90

£0.90

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.40

£1.40

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.80

£1.80

0.00%

Fair charging

£2.20

£2.20

0.00%

Fair charging

£0.60

£0.60

0.00%

Fair charging

£0.80

£0.80

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.80

£1.80

0.00%

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Statutory

£70.00

£70.00

0.00%

Statutory

£35.00

£35.00

0.00%

Statutory

£15.00

£15.00

0.00%

Statutory

£15.00

£15.00

0.00%

Charging
Category

Penalty Charge Notices Off Street: Two tier
system depending on the seriousness of the
offence
Tier one:

Per fine
If paid within 14
days

Tier two:

Per fine
If paid within 14
days

Charge levied for grant of parking waiver

Vehicle per day

Charge levied for grant of parking waiver

Bay per day

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Page 154

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

%
increase

Fair charging

£20.00

£20.00

0.00%

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£10.00

£10.00

0.00%

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£23.50

£23.50

0.00%

- Regular Traders

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£21.50

£21.50

0.00%

- Regulars - non attendance

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£10.75

£10.75

0.00%

- Casual Traders

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£23.50

£23.50

0.00%

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£16.00

£16.00

0.00%

- Regular Traders

Per quarter

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£192.00

£192.00

0.00%

- Casual Traders

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£20.00

£20.00

0.00%

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£17.50

£17.50

0.00%

- Per Stall

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£26.00

£26.00

0.00%

- Per Stall

Per day
(payment in
advance)

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£21.00

£21.00

0.00%

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£20.00

£20.00

0.00%

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

- Regular Traders

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

- Regulars - non attendance

Per day

- Casual Traders

Markets

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

LEEK RETAIL MARKETS
Wednesday Outdoor (General Retail):

Wednesday Trestle (General Retail):

Friday Trestle (Franchised Archer Fairs)
- Per Stall
Saturday Trestle (General Retail)

Saturday Outdoor Craft (Franchised Archer
Fairs)
- Per Pitch
Festival of Fine Food

CHEADLE MARKETS
Cheadle Outdoor Market - Friday

Page 155

Lettings

Unit

VAT

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

Fair charging

£121.00

£121.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£175.00

£175.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£189.00

£189.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£278.00

£278.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£62.00

£62.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£89.00

£89.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£109.00

£109.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£124.00

£124.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£174.00

£174.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£97.00

£97.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£122.00

£122.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£151.00

£151.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£196.00

£196.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£49.00

£49.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£62.00

£62.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£109.00

£109.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£99.00

£99.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£122.00

£122.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£109.00

£109.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£157.00

£157.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£170.00

£170.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£251.00

£251.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£57.00

£57.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£81.00

£81.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£109.00

£109.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£111.00

£111.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£157.00

£157.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£47.00

£47.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£27.00

£27.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£23.00

£23.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£18.00

£18.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£35.00

£35.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£35.00

£35.00

0.00%

Charging
Category

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

All Room Booking fees exclude optional extra Facilities (Bar,
Kitchen etc) - Charitable and Non Profit Making organisations
subject to 20% discount - Bookings outside hours stated and
commercial events by special arrangement

Moorlands House Leek
Churnet Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) - MondayFriday
Churnet Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) Saturday
Churnet Room Full Day + Evening (9am 10pm) - Monday-Friday
Churnet Room Full Day + Evening (9am 10pm) - Saturday
Churnet Room Monday - Friday half day
charge
Churnet Room Saturday (9am-12noon)
Churnet Room Saturday (1pm-5pm)
Churnet Room Evening (6pm - 10pm) Monday-Friday
Churnet Room Evening (6pm - 10pm) Saturday
Trent Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) - MondayFriday
Trent Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) - Saturday
Trent Room Full Day + Evening (9am - 10pm) Monday-Friday
Trent Room Full Day + Evening (9am - 10pm) Saturday
Trent Room Monday - Friday half day charge
Trent Room Saturday (9am-12noon)
Trent Room Saturday (1pm-5pm)
Trent Room Evening (6pm - 10pm) - MondayFriday
Trent Room Evening (6pm - 10pm) - Saturday
Dove Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) - MondayFriday
Dove Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) - Saturday
Dove Room Full Day + Evening (9am - 10pm) Monday-Friday
Dove Room Full Day + Evening (9am - 10pm) Saturday
Dove Room Monday - Friday half day charge
Dove Room Saturday (9am-12noon)
Dove Room Saturday (1pm-5pm)
Dove Room Evening (6pm - 10pm) - MondayFriday
Dove Room Evening (6pm - 10pm) - Saturday
Dove Room Excess Hours - 10pm - Midnight

Per hour

Rooms in the One Stop Shop: Tean,
Rudyard, etc
Monday-Friday (Half day) between 9am and
5pm

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Monday-Friday (Full day) 9am-5pm
Moorlands House Other Facilities for Hire:
Kitchen

Per booking

Piano

Per booking

Bar

Per booking

Portable Drinks Machine:

Per session

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Page 156

Lettings

Unit

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

Fair charging

£23.00

£23.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£16.00

£16.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£16.00

£16.00

0.00%

Charging
Category

VAT

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

Audio Visual Equipment: NB All prices are per
booking/ session - am or pm. Whole day usage
will be 2 x per item hired.
- Overhead Projector
- OHP Screen
- Nobo Flipchart Easel with Paper (provide own
markers)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Page 157

Finance

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

Cost recovery

no subsidy as document
available on line

£21.60

£21.60

0.00%

Cost recovery

no subsidy as document
available on line

£10.00

£10.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£60.00

£60.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£65.00

£65.00

0.00%

£35.00

£35.00

0.00%

£35.00

£35.00

0.00%

£310.00

£310.00

0.00%
0.00%

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

Per copy (plus
postage)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Per copy (plus
postage)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Financial Services
Statement of Accounts

Committee Services
Agenda

Recovery Services - Summons costs
recharged
Application for summons re Liability Order:

Council Tax
Non-Domestic
Rates

Issue of Liability Orders:

Council Tax
Non-Domestic
Rates

Committal summons
Arrest warrants
Committal to prison

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging

Fee charged as a preventative
measure for non-payment of
CTAX/NNDR. Income should
cover costs of Recovery team

Fair charging

£150.00

£150.00

Fair charging

Reasonable
charge

Reasonable
charge

Page 158

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

Nominal

£140.00

£138.50

-1.07%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Nominal

£193.50

£193.50

0.00%

1.00

Non Business VAT (-%)

Nominal

£26.00

£23.00

-11.54%

Purchase of Full Register (Paper)

1.00

Non Business VAT (-%)

Nominal

£410.00

£405.00

-1.22%

Purchase of Rolling Register Alterations
(Paper)

1.00

Non Business VAT (-%)

Nominal

£135.00

£135.00

0.00%

Purchase of list of overseas voters (Paper)

1.00

Non Business VAT (-%)

Nominal

£30.00

£20.00

-33.33%

Elections

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

Purchase of Full Register (Data)

1.00

Non Business VAT (-%)

Purchase of Rolling register Alterations (Data)

1.00

Purchase of list of overseas voters (Data)

Page 159

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

Environmental Crime
(statutory charges correct at time of budget
setting)

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/
freezes

20120/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

Full FPN

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Amounts set by statute

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

If paid within 10 Non Business VAT (-working days
%)

Statutory

Discount to encourage early
payment

£60.00

£60.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Amounts set by statute

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

If paid within 10 Non Business VAT (-working days
%)

Statutory

Discount to encourage early
payment

£120.00

£120.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Amounts set by statute

£120.00

£120.00

0.00%

If paid within 10 Non Business VAT (-working days
%)

Statutory

Discount to encourage early
payment

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Amounts set by statute

£120.00

£120.00

0.00%

If paid within 10 Non Business VAT (-working days
%)

Statutory

Discount to encourage early
payment

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Amounts set by statute

£120.00

£120.00

0.00%

If paid within 10 Non Business VAT (-working days
%)

Statutory

Discount to encourage early
payment

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Statutory

Amounts set by statute

£300.00

£300.00

0.00%

Statutory

Amounts set by statute

£300.00

£300.00

0.00%

Statutory

Amounts set by statute

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

If paid within 10 Non Business VAT (-working days
%)

Statutory

Discount to encourage early
payment

£75.00

£75.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Amounts set by statute

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

If paid within 10 Non Business VAT (-working days
%)

Statutory

Discount to encourage early
payment

£75.00

£75.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Amounts set by statute

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

If paid within 10 Non Business VAT (-working days
%)

Statutory

Discount to encourage early
payment

£75.00

£75.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Amounts set by statute

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

If paid within 10 Non Business VAT (-working days
%)

Statutory

Discount to encourage early
payment

£75.00

£75.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

£5,000.00

£5,000.00

0.00%

If paid within 14 Non Business VAT (-working days
%)

Statutory

£2,500.00

£2,500.00

0.00%

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Statutory

£30.00

£30.00

0.00%

Statutory

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN)
Unlawful repairs / sale of vehicle on roads:

Abandoning a vehicle:

Depositing litter:

Unauthorised distribution of free printed matter:

Criminal Damage and fly-posting:

Failure to produce authority (waste carrier’s
licence)
Failure to furnish documentation (waste
transfer notes)
Failure to remove dog faeces from land
forthwith:

Not putting, and keeping, a dog on a lead when
directed to do so by an authorised officer:

Permitting a dog to enter land from which dogs
are excluded:

Not keeping a dog on a lead in a designated
area:

Smoke & Carbon Monoxide Alarm (England)
Regulations 2015:

Health Act 2006 Smoking in a smoke free
designated vehicle or area:

Health Act 2006 Failure to Display appropriate
smoke free signage as dictated by law:

Fly-tipping

Household Waste Receptacles

Full FPN

Full FPN

Full FPN

Full FPN

Full FPN
Full FPN
Full FPN

Full FPN

Full FPN

Full FPN

Full FPN

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Non Business VAT (-%)
if Paid within 15 Non Business VAT (-Days
%)
Full FPN

Full FPN

Non Business VAT (-%)

if Paid within 15 Non Business VAT (-Days
%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
If Paid within 10 Non Business VAT (-Days
%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
If Paid within 10 Non Business VAT (-Days
%)

Statutory

Amounts set by statute

£400.00

£400.00

0.00%

Statutory

Discount to encourage early
payment

£300.00

£300.00

0.00%

Statutory

Amounts set by statute

£60.00

£60.00

0.00%

Statutory

Discount to encourage early
payment

£40.00

£40.00

0.00%

Page 160

Community
(statutory charges correct at time of budget
setting)

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

2020/21
Current
Charge

2021/22
Charge

% increase

Full FPN

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Set by statute

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

If paid within 10
working days

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Set by statute

£75.00

£75.00

0.00%

Full FPN

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Set by statute

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

If paid within 10
working days

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Set by statute

£75.00

£75.00

0.00%

Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime & Policing Act 2014
Failure to comply with a Community Protection
Notice:

Failure to comply with a Public Spaces
Protection Order:

Page 161

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX D

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

PROCUREMENT FORWARD
PLAN 2021/22

Page 163

1.

Introduction

1.1

The Procurement Procedure Rules, which support the Joint Procurement
Strategy (to be updated and presented for approval shortly), are essential to
the achievement of the Alliance Procurement Objectives and set out the
processes that must be followed.

1.2

A revised version of the Procurement Procedure Rules were presented and
approved by full Council on 11th October 2017. The Rules were updated to
reflect recent changes for example:
the service review process has resulted in a fully resourced central
procurement unit incorporating the whole purchase to pay stream
(procurement activity through to the payment of supplier invoices)

Processes have been reviewed and electronic systems implemented with
the procurement process now utilising online procurement web-forms and
an e-tendering system, removing paper records and improving efficiency.

1.3

The opportunity was also taken to review the Rules as a whole, with specific
amendments made to:
Sourcing thresholds – advertising periods updated

Process for applying Performance Bonds / Parent Company Guarantees

Applying extensions/variations to contracts

Updated processes to include technology now utilised (for example, ewebform platform and e-tendering system)

Additional references where necessary – for example, the requirements
of the Transparency Code

Expansion of Contract Management responsibilities / processes

1.4

In addition, consideration was given to how the authority to procure and award
procurement activities is undertaken - with the aim of simplifying and ensuring
the process is as efficient as possible.

2.

Authorisation to Procure and Award

2.1

It was proposed within the Rules that the Procurement Forward Plan would be
reported as part of the Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan in February
each year.

2.2

This would identify all potential procurement activity to be completed in the
following financial year (subject to business case), with approval sought to
commence procurement of all activity listed. Performance and activity
(including confirmation of award) against the forward plan would then be
monitored and reported within the Quarterly Procurement Report to Committee.

2.3

The approval limits to be applied to then authorise the award of contracts and
apply exemptions are detailed below, the thresholds are in line with Public
Contract regulations supplies and service thresholds refreshed every two
years:-

2.4

Award and Exemptions Authorisation Limits:

Page 164

Total Contract Value
(£)
<25,000

Authorisation

Authorisation By

Head of Service / Executive
Director

Procurement Web-form

>25,000 - <189,330
(EU Service
Threshold)

Executive Director / Chief
Executive

Procurement Web-form

>189,330 (EU
Service Threshold) <1,000,000

Delegated Member Decision

>1,000,000*

Cabinet SMDC
Executive HPBC
(with prior Scrutiny Committee)

Delegated Member
Report (Portfolio Holder
for Procurement and the
relevant service area)
Committee Report

* Committee reports may be presented where the total contract value is less than £1,000,000 - where considered appropriate due to the
nature of the procurement or where it relates to a key decision

2.5

Any procurement activity undertaken during the year which was not included on
the forward plan will also follow the authorisation rules (to procure/award) as
detailed above - and detail will be included within the Quarterly Procurement
Report.

2.6

Irrespective of the total contract value, Committee reports may be presented to
Executive/Cabinet to obtain authority to procure and award where considered
appropriate due to the nature of the procurement or where it relates to a key
decision.

3.

Procurement Forward Plan 2021/22

3.1

The Procurement Forward Plan, detailing all anticipated procurement activity
during 2021/22, is detailed at ANNEX A. This includes activity specific to
Staffordshire Moorlands D.C. and also any joint procurement activity with
Alliance partner High Peak B.C. Procurements which have already had
approval in 2020/21 but not yet completed, will be progressed in addition to the
programmed 2021/22 schedules.

4.

Procurement undertaken by Agent

4.1

In addition to procurement activity commissioned by the Council, there may also
be procurement activity commissioned via an agent on behalf of the Council
where appropriate to do so. For example, the new Leisure Centre contract will
allow provision for capital works required on the leisure centres to be
commissioned by the Contractor, but funded by the Council. In this case, the
Council would complete due diligence to ensure compliancy and value for
money has been achieved.

Page 165

4.2

Similarly, ANSA on behalf of Alliance Environmental Services will be procuring
fleet required by specific services, but this will be funded by the Council and
appropriate due diligence undertaken.

4.3

An estimated £1.7m in fleet purchases and £0.22m spend on Leisure Centres
has been included in the Council’s capital programme in 2021/22.

4.3

Agents delegated to procure contracts on behalf of the Council, where the
Council is the Contracting Authority, will be required to procure in
compliance to Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCRs15) for above
threshold contracts and for contracts for lower values demonstrate that their
procurement practice is as robust and transparent as that the Council would
apply.

Page 166

ANNEX A
PROCUREMENT FORWARD PLAN 2021/22 – SMDC
Ref

Auth

967

SMDC

Contract Title

Brief contract description

Single Persons Housing Project
and TIS support

Strategic Housing support for
housing support needs in private
sector housing

Fixed Term Contract (Recurring)

Term 2 + 1 yr

Capital /
Revenue

Service Area

Revenue

Customer
Services –
Housing
support

Total est.
value of
contract [£]
£164,400

Page 167

Ref

Auth

Contract Title

Brief contract description

Capital /
Revenue

Service Area

Total est.
value of
contract [£]

825

SMDC

Blythe Bridge strategic investment
site masterplan & phase 2 delivery
plan

Multidisciplinary team of
consultants (architects/commercial
advisors/surveyors) - to prepare a
Masterplan & provide advice on
infrastructure requirements, design,
development and management
options for a mixed use
development site

Revenue

Regeneration

£100,000 (est)

Consultancy Appointment

Revenue

Regeneration

£30,000 (est)

Consultancy Appointment

Revenue

Regeneration

£10,000 (est)

(One Off – Consultancy support)

JOINT Commission with SCC
1219

SMDC

Wharf Road Biddulph
(One Off – Consultancy support)

1213

SMDC

Cheadle High Street
(One Off – Consultancy support)

5

Ref

Auth

1225
1232

SMDC

Contract Title

Play Area Improvements Cheadle
and Pennine Road*

Brief contract description

Capital /
Revenue

Service Area

Total est.
value of
contract [£]

Facilities improvements to play
areas

Capital

Service
Commissioning

£40,000 (est)

Gardens access Improvement
works

Capital

Service
Commissioning

£50,000 (est)

Community based sports lead
activity programmes
Sports England supported

Revenue (+
external
funding)

Service
Commissioning

£10,000
per area

(*subject to approval)
(One Off – supply and installation)
1233

SMDC

John Hall Gardens – Brough Park
(One off – minor works)

Page 168

1234
1235
1236

SMDC

Placed based community Activity
programmes
Cheadle, Haregate, Biddulph
(Subject to external funding)

6

PROCUREMENT FORWARD PLAN 21/22 – JOINT (HPBC/SMDC)
Ref

Auth

523

JOINT

Contract Title

Architectural Lead Construction
Design Services
Professional Consultancy
Framework

Brief contract description

Lead Design services for Capital
construction and general fund
projects inc eg CDM, M&E,
Contract Administrator disciplines.

Capital /
Revenue

Service Area

Total est.
value of
contract [£]

Capital /
Revenue

Assets

£500,000 £750,000
(Variable)

Revenue

Assets

TBC – scope
to be agreed

Revenue

Assets

TBC – scope
to be agreed

Revenue

Assets

£77,000
(HP p/a)

Framework contract (max 5
appointed firms)

803

JOINT

Page 169
207

120

JOINT

JOINT

Fixed Term contract (Recurring)

Term 2 (1+1) yrs

Professional services Waterways
and Watercourse Improvements
Consultancy Appointment

Engineering Consultancy Services
waterways and watercourses –
programme of review of several
watercourses across HP and SM

Fixed Term Contract (One Off)

Term 1yr

Energy and Carbon reduction
Sustainability Consultancy

Specialist consultancy to support
Assets in developing environmental
action plan for our buildings

Fixed Term Contract (One Off)

Term 1yr

Mains Water Supply for Council
Buildings and premises

Review water supply arrangements
– options for wider market review

Fixed Term Contract (Recurring)

Fixed Term (TBC)

£63,000
(SM p/a)

7

Ref

Auth

1132

JOINT

Contract Title

Repairs and Maintenance
multiskilled Sub contractor
framework (Multi-lot)

Brief contract description

General building services ad-hoc
work for public buildings (HP and
SM)

Capital /
Revenue

Service Area

Total est.
value of
contract [£]

Revenue /
Capital

Customer
Services
Housing
Repairs [+]
Assets

£150,00 p/a
(70% HP /
30% SM Est)

Revenue /
Capital

Customer
Services
Housing
Repairs [+]
Assets

£150,00 p/a
(80% HP /
20% SM Est)

Revenue

Customer
Services
Housing
Repairs
(lead)

£12,000 p/a

Revenue

Customer
Services

£10,000 p/a
(HP est)

Term 1 + 1 yrs
Fixed Term Contract (Recurring)
239

Page 170

958

JOINT

JOINT

Civils Work (Groundworks,
Drainage, Tarmac & Fencing)

Contracting works framework
External groundworks (resurfacing
/ Drainage and replacement
Fencing) and adhoc work for HP
and SM wider services

Fixed Term Contract (Recurring)

Term 1 + 1 yrs

Jetting and Drainage Clearance
Services and works

Contractor drainage clearances,
surveys and remedial works
contract
HP and SM general call off
Term 1 + 1 yrs

Fixed Term Contract (Recurring)
230

JOINT

Provision of Stationery and
associated Office items

Supply of Stationery and
associated office resources and
equipment

Fixed Term Contract (Recurring)

Term 2 + (1+1) yrs

£4,500 p/a
(SM est)

8

Ref

Auth

255

JOINT

975

JOINT

Contract Title
E-tendering IT Web Portal

Brief contract description

Licence and support

Web-based system for Electronic
tendering, sourcing activity and
contract management

Fixed Term contract (Recurring)

Term 3 yrs

Committee Management and
Reporting System (Modern Gov)

Software system for Agendas
Reports Committees

Capital /
Revenue

Service Area

Revenue

Transformation

Revenue

Transformation

Total est.
value of
contract [£]
£2,000
(HP p/a)
£2,000
(SM p/a)
£40,000
(50/50%)

Licence and support
Fixed Term contract (Recurring)

Term 2 yrs

Page 171
9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9.1
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Cabinet
9 February 2021

TITLE:

Disabled Facilities Grant Update - Including
Proposals for the Expansion of the Grant
Offer

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

Councillor Bowen – Portfolio Holder for
Communities

CONTACT OFFICER:

Alicia Patterson, Head of Environmental
Health

WARDS INVOLVED:

All Wards

Appendices attached:
Appendix 1 – The Adapted Home Grant
Appendix 2 – The Relocation Grant
Appendix 3 – The Adaptation Grant
Appendix 4 – The Community Adaptation Grant
Appendix 5 – 2020-21 Q3 DFG Report – Millbrook Healthcare
1.

Reason for the Report: To outline proposals for the expansion of the
Council’s current Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) offer as part of the wider
review of the Council’s Housing Renewal Assistance Policy.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That Cabinet approves the revised Grant criteria as attached at appendices 1
to 4 for inclusion in the Council’s Housing Renewal Assistance Policy.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The Council has a Private Sector Housing Renewal Assistance Policy made
under the provisions of the Regulatory Reform (Housing Assistance) (England
and Wales) Order 2002. This Policy sets out the Council’s approach to the
delivery of private sector housing services and funding and includes the

Page 173

provision for mandatory and discretionary services and funding associated
with the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) programme.
3.2

The current Housing Renewal Assistance Policy was reviewed in 2016 and
lasts for 5 years. The Policy is set for review in 2021 and this presents an
opportunity to review the service provision for DFGs alongside the other
private sector housing functions, such as empty properties, housing standards
enforcement, area renewal and Houses in Multiple Occupation, amongst other
things.

3.3

Over the last 3 years, the Council has seen a significant increase in the level
of DFG funding provided in order to meet its statutory obligations, alongside a
wider remit to look at funding opportunities for other, non-statutory projects,
that aim to improve accessibility and also benefit the wider disabled
community as part of discretionary capital funding schemes. The Council
currently receives approximately £1.2m as the DFG funding element from the
Better Care Fund, a joint health and social care fund provided by Government
to the County Council. DFG funding is currently ring-fenced within the Better
Care Fund allocation for the use of District and Borough Councils in two-tier
authorities.

3.4

Many local authorities have taken the opportunity to review their Housing
Assistance Policies in order to make the best use of the available funding and
to seek out new ways of improving their DFG offer for the maximum benefit of
their communities, and in particular the disabled community. The Council
currently has that same opportunity, and so this report identifies some of the
ways in which the Council can upgrade their mandatory and discretionary DFG
offer.

3.5

The various proposals are laid out in the appendices to this report, so that
each can be considered on their merits and a determination can be made on
each individual proposal. It is suggested that the proposals would be a
valuable addition to the options available to the Council and it is recommended
that these be included in the Council’s Housing Renewal Assistance Policy.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

This report supports the Council’s Corporate Priorities as follows:


To help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to
live and work;



To help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of
towns and villages:
(i) Opportunities for vulnerable, disabled local residents to obtain
access to community facilities on an equitable basis and participate
fully in local community events.
(ii) Assists in the improvement of community facilities across the District
and aids the provision of adaptations to benefit not just individuals in

Page 174

their own homes, but from access to and involvement in a wider
range of community premises and activities.
5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

Cabinet may determine whether to approve some, all or none of the proposals
to go forward to inform the Housing Renewal Assistance Policy review.

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
No impact.

6.2

Workforce
No impact at the present time.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's
Diversity and Equality Policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
These proposals impact directly on the level of DFG funding
available. It is envisaged that offers of additional mandatory and
discretionary funding schemes will only be viable based on the
maintenance of a suitable and sufficient level of funding year on
year. In the event that DFG funding allocations are cut or reduced,
the funding of additional or discretionary schemes will have to be
reviewed so that there is no negative impact on our provision of
core mandatory assistance to eligible clients.

6.5

Legal
All proposals agreed will need to be included in the Private Sector
Housing Renewal Assistance Policy as part of the current review,
so that the offer is supported by the provisions of the Regulatory
Reform (Housing Assistance) (England and Wales) Order 2002 on
approval of the new Policy.

6.6

Climate Change
Sustainable on the proviso that current or similar levels of DFG
Funding continue to be allocated as part of the Better Care Fund.

Page 175

6.7

Consultation
The Private Sector Housing Renewal Assistance Policy is subject
to internal and external consultation on review, and any agreed
proposals will be subject to this consultation as part of the wider
review.

6.8

Risk Assessment
Risk is based on the availability of funding for additional and
discretionary schemes. The Policy review will make it clear that all
such funding over and above our core mandatory funding
obligation to eligible clients is subject to review in the event that
overall funding levels are reduced to a level that impacts on our
ability to deliver our mandatory duties.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer
Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details
Alicia Patterson
Head of Environmental
Health
alicia.patterson@staffsmoorl
ands.gov.uk

7.

Detail

7.1

The Council’s Housing Renewal Assistance Policy outlines the principles by
which Staffordshire Moorlands District Council will assist owner-occupiers,
tenants and landlords in the private sector with housing renewal in compliance
with the Regulatory Reform (Housing Assistance) (England and Wales) Order
2002, which came into force on 18 July 2002 and the changes introduced by
the Housing Act 2004 in April 2006.

7.2

The Regulatory Reform Order repealed much of the previous prescriptive
range of home improvement grants, together with the associated detailed
rules, procedures and conditions. The exception to this is the system of
Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs).

7.3

DFGs are mandatory grants and when an eligible person applies the authority
has a statutory duty to award a DFG where the qualifying criteria are met. The
legislative changes identified in the National Strategy for Housing in an Ageing
Society and subsequent publications, notably the ‘Home Adaptations for
Disabled People-Good Practice Guide’, have allowed the Council to introduce
a degree of policy flexibility in relation to the provision of disabled facilities.

Page 176

7.4

Instead of the previous prescriptive grant system, the Council has a general
power to provide grants, loans, advice, and materials or to directly carry out
works, for the purpose of repairing, improving, extending, converting or
adapting housing accommodation. The Council has discretion to decide on
the availability and rates of grant, grant conditions and all other such issues. In
order to make use of this flexibility, the Council must publish a Housing
Assistance Policy and must review this Policy at appropriate intervals in order
to ensure that the Council is making the best, most effective use of public
funds.

7.5

Over the last 3 years, the Council has seen a significant increase in the level
of DFG Funding provided in order to meet its statutory obligations, alongside a
wider remit to look at funding opportunities for other, non-statutory projects
that aim to improve accessibility to the mandatory grant and also benefit the
wider disabled community as part of discretionary capital funding schemes.
The Council currently receives approximately £1.2m as the DFG Funding
element from the Better Care Fund, a joint health and social care fund
provided by Government to the County Council. DFG funding is currently ringfenced within the Better Care Fund allocation for the use of District and
Borough Councils in two-tier authorities and the Grant Determination Letter
that accompanies the annual allocation states that:
Grant paid under this determination must be spent in accordance with a Better
Care Fund (BCF) spending plan jointly agreed between the relevant local
authority or local authorities and the relevant Clinical Commissioning Groups.
Any money paid under this grant determination must only be used for the
specific purpose of funding adaptations for disabled people who qualify for a
Disabled Facilities Grant made under the Housing Grants, Construction and
Regeneration Act 1996 or under the Regulatory Reform (Housing Assistance)
Order 2002 (or any other social care capital projects where agreed as above).

7.6

During consideration of a report regarding DFGs at the Resources Overview
and Scrutiny Panel on 3rd October 2018, the Panel’s view was sought for the
Head of Environmental Health to take a report to the Strategic Partnership
Board that oversees the DFG Programme across Staffordshire requesting that
the surplus DFG Funding over and above the mandatory demand be used for
discretionary cases as well i.e. those cases that traditionally sit outside the
mandatory criteria but nevertheless are deserving of assistance that if not
provided, would undoubtedly lead to isolation at home and a lack of
participation in community life. The Panel agreed to support this proposal.

7.7

A report was subsequently presented to the Support for Independent Living in
Staffordshire (SILIS) Strategic Partnership Board on 8th November 2018. The
Partnership Board is made up of all the Chief Executive Officers from the
participating Staffordshire Councils and also includes representatives from the
County Council and the Public Health/NHS partners that set the agenda for
Better Care Fund use. The report outlined the principles under which
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council would seek to utilise the nonmandatory funding stream, and sought the agreement of the Steering Group
for using the Better Care Fund programme for discretionary and communitybased projects in the District. The recommendations in the report were agreed.

Page 177

7.8

The Discretionary DFG Funding has subsequently been used for a number of
projects – to provide top-up funding for DFG applicants who do not have
sufficient funds to contribute to large projects that cost more than the £35K
mandatory grant maximum; to help people to move house where their existing
property cannot be adapted to suit their needs; and to contribute to two
community projects in Werrington that have provided access to existing and
purpose-built community facilities. The community projects were managed by
Millbrook Healthcare on the Council’s behalf and have proved hugely
successful.

7.9

Given the level of funding that the Council has available, and bearing in mind
that our current level of spend on the statutory mandatory grant is about 50%
of the annual allocation year on year, the opportunity now exists to expand our
DFG offer both in terms of the promotion and expansion of the mandatory
grant and building on the successful discretionary community-based projects
without detriment to our statutory provision.

7.10

Accordingly, the appendices to this report outline a number of ways in which
we can expand our current DFG service provision, based on local discussions
and national good practice. It is important that local authorities respond
positively to opportunities to improve their services to the disabled community
and these proposals reflect the practical ways in which this might be achieved
in Staffordshire Moorlands. The Cabinet is requested to consider the various
options and determine which, if any, should be incorporated into the new
Housing Renewal Assistance Policy.

7.11

It is also important to bear in mind that the Council delivers its DFG services in
partnership with 5 other Staffordshire District and Borough Councils under a
contract with Millbrook Healthcare Ltd administered by Staffordshire County
Council. The DFG funding allocation across the 6 districts is not uniform, and
some authorities receive a much lower annual allocation. As a result,
expansion of the DFG offer across the whole partnership is not practical given
that some authorities do not have enough funding to cover their statutory
mandatory grant obligations. Whilst this has led to some comments from other
partners about creating an uneven level of service provision across the
County, this is in effect already happening simply by virtue of the variable level
of funding each Council receives and is not in itself a reason for any individual
authority to withhold potential service improvements from their local
community. Partners within Staffordshire that receive a similar level of funding
to this Council are also now looking at reviewing their Housing Policies
accordingly.

7.12

In order to provide some clarity on the current position regarding the core
provision of mandatory DFGs, Appendix 5 shows the Quarter 3 outturn report
on our delivery programme in association with Millbrook Healthcare Ltd. The
report focuses on cases completed (spend), cases approved and in progress
(committed funds) and pipeline cases (projected commitment for the reminder
of the financial year), along with some performance data.

Page 178

7.13

The report shows that the spend and likely commitment of funding for this
financial year is such that there will be a significant remaining balance on our
budget to use for discretionary funding without detriment to our mandatory
programme. There is no waiting list for clients applying for assistance, so the
data is based on real-time approvals and spend. There are indicators in the
report that show that performance in the Staffordshire Moorlands area on
bringing cases to completion is significantly higher than in other districts for the
last quarter, which gives some confidence as to the recovery post-lockdowns
in the last year. There is concern, however, at the relatively low level of
referrals for new cases.

7.14

One point of interest is that Staffordshire Moorlands cases have a higher
proportionate number of drop-outs than the other districts – that is, cases
where the client has applied for assistance but then withdraws their application
for one reason or another. The principal reasons for clients dropping out are:
the test of financial resources; that they no longer want or require the
adaptation that is offered; or simply that the client does not engage with the
service provider when trying to progress their case. Staffordshire Moorlands
has recently appointed a DFG Officer to work closely with Millbrook on
exploring the reasons behind our local drop-out rates and to use the tools
outlined in the appendices to this report to stabilise the take-up rate, expand
our publicity and promotion of the mandatory DFG to increase the number of
new referrals, and to explore the opportunities for discretionary funding for
community-based projects.

Page 179

APPENDIX 1
THE ADAPTED HOME GRANT
CONSIDERATION OF CASES TO BE EXCLUDED FROM THE STATUTORY TEST
OF RESOURCES – THE ‘MEANS TEST’
The provisions governing mandatory Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) are principally
laid out in the Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration Act 1996 (“the 1996
Act”), as amended by the Regulatory Reform (Housing Assistance) (England and
Wales) Order 2002 (“the RRO”).
The RRO made three principal changes to the DFG legislative provisions in the 1996
Act: the provision of an enabling framework for discretionary assistance beyond
mandatory DFG alongside the removal of the power to give discretionary DFG and
extension of the mandatory DFG to those occupying park homes and houseboats
and subsequently to occupiers of caravans under the Housing Act 2004.
The Housing Renewal Grants Regulations 1996 set out the basis for the DFG test of
resources but the details of allowances, premiums and other factors are updated
periodically by Statutory Instrument. The test parameters are set by central
government and are essentially applied to the disabled occupant, their spouse or
partner. Where the disabled occupant is a child or qualifying young person there is
no means test.
The flexibility of the powers of the RRO has allowed the creation of adaptations
policies that best meet local needs and priorities and to be more responsive to the
needs of individuals. These have included funding arrangements in excess of the
mandatory grant limit, and funding adaptations outside of the DFG system.
One of the ways to consider adaptation funding outside the traditional mandatory
grant is to offer a separate grant to those persons who meet the eligibility criteria for
a mandatory grant but who have been assessed as having a contribution to make to
the cost of the adaptation under the mandatory scheme test of resources. In many
cases, the assessment of resources is arbitrary and often identifies a contribution
significantly at odds with the client’s ability to pay simply by virtue of the assets that
are taken into account during the assessment process. The vast majority of cases
that do not proceed to approval are those where the client has an assessed
contribution but cannot practically pay it. Similarly, a number of drop-outs occur when
clients faced with a contribution decide that they would rather use the money they do
have to pay for essential care or services now rather than invest in an adaptation for
their future needs.
By introducing an Adapted Homes Grant, the Council could effectively offer to pay for
adaptations up to a defined level without a means test so that the adaptation could
go ahead where it might otherwise fail.
There are two ways in which this might be achieved:
1. Defining the type of adaptation that the Council would fund without a means
test. The Council could determine, for example, that it would pay for the

Page 180

installation of a stairlift or a Level Access Shower without the need for a client
contribution. This would not set a financial level on the cost of the adaptation,
but it would instead be restricted to type. Stairlifts and level access showers
account for over 80% of adaptations in any one year, so this would be a good
way to fast-track these applications and satisfy demand. Typically, Stairlifts
cost around £3-5k depending on the level of customisation required and the
stairway layout; level access showers can cost between £5-6k on average but
costs can vary outside of this range for specific property layouts.
2. Defining the amount of funding that the Council will contribute to an adaptation
without imposing a means test. The level of funding offered by Councils
varies, but the majority have settled for a maximum of £5,000. This fits in with
the Council’s ability to recover the costs of adaptations if the property is
subsequently sold – currently, the Council can only register a local land
charge on DFGs of over £5k, so there are no recovery implications for grants
up to this value. A discretionary grant of up to £5k would pay for a stairlift or an
average basic level access shower.
It should be borne in mind that in both these scenarios, there is the issue of agency
fees and VAT consider. Most adaptation work is VAT exempt, but not all. In providing
the adaptation, our service provider will charge a fee for managing the project on the
part of the client from application to conclusion, and this could take the total cost of
the grant above £5k even though the work itself is less than £5k. it might be a
consideration to state that the level of funding is set at a maximum of £5k for the
works themselves, exclusive of fees.
Grant criteria
Any person over the age of 18 who is registered or registerable as disabled (i.e. the
person is eligible under the definition of disabled as defined in section 6(1) of the
Equality Act) would be eligible for the Adapted Homes Grant in the same way as they
would have an entitlement to the mandatory DFG. The grant will not be restricted by
tenure.
Only 1 application per year per person can be made for the Adapted Homes Grant.
Owner applicants will need to complete a certificate stating that they intend to occupy
the premises as their main residence for at least the next 5 years. Joint owners will
need to obtain the written consent of the other owners for the adaptation work to be
carried out. Tenant applicants will need the written consent of their landlord for the
adaptation work to be carried out.
Any grant eligible works (within the meaning of the Housing Grants, Construction and
Regeneration Act 1996) paid for under this grant will not be subject to a ‘means test’
of the financial resources of the disabled client. The disabled client will be entitled to
receive a full Adapted Homes Grant to cover the costs of the eligible works.
In the event that it is determined that the grant will be paid by type of adaptation
rather than a monetary ceiling, then the eligible works are defined as a stairlift or
level access shower. In the event that a maximum level of funding is the preferred

Page 181

option, then the client’s entitlement will be to receive a full grant to cover the costs of
the eligible works up to £5,000.
When considering the eligible works, the Council will seek the advice of a suitably
qualified professional. The works must be necessary and appropriate to meet the
needs of the client and it must be reasonable and practicable to carry out the eligible
works having regard to the age and condition of the dwelling.
This Grant will be re-payable in full in the event that the property is sold on the open
market within 10 years of the grant completion date.

Page 182

APPENDIX 2
THE RELOCATION GRANT
ASSISTANCE FOR ELIGBLE APPLICANTS TO MOVE HOME
There are numerous cases where on assessment, the applicant’s existing premises
cannot be adequately adapted to meet their needs, or where the level of cost of
carrying out the necessary adaptations at their current premises is unreasonable
and/or impractical. In these circumstances, the Local Authority can offer a
discretionary grant to help eligible applicants move to a more suitable home that is
already adapted or which can be more easily adapted to meet their needs at a much
more reasonable cost.
In the event that the applicant identified a suitable property outside the area in which
they currently live, the discretionary assistance would still be of benefit to them and
should still be available in these cases.
To qualify for relocation assistance, a person must be:



Someone who would otherwise qualify for a mandatory DFG were it possible
to carry out the works, and whose contribution towards the cost of the works
would, using the standard test of resources, be less than £5,000.00.
An owner/occupier whose main or only residence is within the Staffordshire
Moorlands area.
The Council must be satisfied that:






It is not practicable to carry out necessary, appropriate or reasonable works at
the client’s current property; or
The new property shall provide a long term sustainable home for the eligible
person in that either further adaptation is not necessary or any new adaptation
is significantly smaller than the original DFG assessment. The total cost
incurred in the eligible relocation expenses at the ‘new’ property should not be
greater than the estimated cost of adapting the applicant’s current property.
The Council will pay any reasonable costs, subject to satisfactory evidence
that the expenditure has been incurred including:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o



Stamp Duty;
Mortgage arrangement fees;
Estate Agents fees;
Furniture removal costs;
Utility connection costs;
Conveyancing costs; and
Any other costs deemed by the Council to be essential to effect the
move.

Subject to a maximum total level of assistance of £15,000 per applicant, made
as a single payment upon completion of the move and upon receipt of suitable
evidence of expenditure.

Page 183

The Council has made successful use of this discretionary assistance in the recent
past and the addition of this funding option to the Housing Renewal Policy would be
welcomed.

Page 184

APPENDIX 3
THE ADAPTATION GRANT
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING FOR EXEPTIONAL CASES
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council will give such discretionary assistance in the
form of grants according to the financial resources available to the Council at the time
of the application. Works that may qualify for discretionary Adaptation Grants
include:
(1) Adaptation Grant:








Particularly expensive works costing above the normal maximum of £30,000,
where the applicant cannot fund the additional costs by any other reasonable
means. The Council will consider additional funding to facilitate the works.
Providing a safe play area for a disabled child.
Adapting or providing a room or space to allow disabled occupants to receive
specialised care or medical treatment in their own homes.
Adapting or providing a room to be used by a disabled person who is
housebound but is able to work from home.
Providing more satisfactory internal living arrangements for a disabled
occupant where the works are of direct benefit to the disabled occupant but
also will be of benefit to other members of the household who provide care for
the occupant. Such works might include extending or enlarging a dwelling that
is already suitable for the disabled person in all other respects. It could include
cases where the care of the disabled applicant is provided across more than
one property – current mandatory assistance will only allow the main
residence to be adapted.
Other exceptional or unique works to provide a solution for vulnerable and
disabled applicant’s needs that are not currently covered in the statutory
criteria for eligible DFG works. This would include, for example, work to assist
dementia clients to remain active in their own homes.

This grant will be subject to the client having a ‘nil contribution’ from the mandatory
DFG Test of Resources and will be subject to a maximum of £10,000 per application.
This grant is available as a stand-alone grant or as a supplement to a Mandatory
DFG.
(2) Safe and Secure Grant:







Where additional work is necessary that is not currently grant eligible but
would provide a safe and secure home. This might include re-wiring of the
property, replacement of an unsafe appliance, replacing lead water pipes or
works to eliminate dampness and excess cold, or any other minor adaptations
or small repairs to;
Reduce trips, slips, falls and accidents around the home;
Promote independent living;
Assist with hospital discharge or prevent hospital admission;
Improve security (e.g. replacement of insecure windows and doors);

Page 185







Breakdown of primary sources of heating or hot water;
Protect public safety (e.g. an unsafe chimney or roof slates);
Reduce internal risks to health and safety (e.g. rotten flooring or dangerous
staircase);
Remedy a structural element that is so defective that further significant
damage may be caused to the property or a neighbouring property if not dealt
with (e.g. a leaking roof or defective guttering or downspout);
Improve the thermal and energy efficiency of properties with a low Standard
Assessment Procedure (SAP) Rating.

This grant will be subject to the client having a ‘nil contribution’ from the mandatory
DFG Test of Resources and will be subject to a maximum of £5,000 per application.
Any number of applications per client to a cumulative value of £5,000 in any three
year period may be made. This grant is available as a stand-alone grant or as a
supplement to a Mandatory DFG.
This Grant will be re-payable in full in the event that the property is sold on the open
market within 10 years of the grant completion date.

Page 186

APPENDIX 4
COMMUNITY ADAPTATION GRANT
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING FOR COMMUNITY-BASED ADAPTATION
PROJECTS
The Better Care Fund guidance specifically encourages projects which address the
Social Model of Disability, and the terms of the DFG Determination for 2020/21 state
that any money paid under the grant determination must only be used for the specific
purpose of providing adaptations for disabled people who qualify under the scheme
or any other social care capital projects in accordance with a Better Care Fund (BCF)
joint spending plan agreed between the grant authority and the fund holder.
In Staffordshire Moorlands, the level of the DFG settlement over the last 3 years
provides an excellent opportunity to consider options for the wider use of the DFG
funding beyond the mandatory regime, with a particular focus on supporting
community projects, community groups and other facilities or providers who are able
to demonstrate that investment of discretionary funding will have a positive impact on
improving access and facilities for the disabled community residing in or visiting their
area.
There are a number of avenues that Staffordshire Moorlands District Council would
like to explore in identifying and developing creative and innovative use of the DFG
Allocation, and we would want to work in partnership with the Staffordshire SILIS
Partnership provider, Millbrook Healthcare Ltd, in promoting access to discretionary
funding and assessing the value to the local community of any proposals that come
forward, whether that be along traditional lines that deal with physical disability or
more innovative, unique projects around mental health, with a particular focus on
dementia and autism.
Some basic considerations for the funding might include:
1. Provide funding for existing or new projects to include disabled facilities that
would otherwise not progress or would fall short of meeting a disability standard
or assessed need.
2. Benefit as wide an area of the disabled community as possible, and as many
people as possible.
3. Afford access to facilities, or encourage use of facilities or services that disabled
people might not otherwise consider using.
This is based on the premise that whilst providing assistance to disabled residents to
enable them to remain living independently in their own homes is essential, it is
equally important to enable people with physical or mental disabilities to access
community facilities and services.
Potential opportunities might include:
-

The provision of ‘Changing Places’ facility within the district that are accessible
to residents and visitors to the area.

Page 187

-

-

-

Upgrading of facilities at local leisure centres, swimming pools and other
leisure facilities to include adapted toilet, bathing, washing and changing
facilities.
Working with property developers to look at building in adapted facilities at the
start of housing projects so that properties that are provided for affordable rent
as part of development schemes are prepared for disabled access during the
build.
Discussions with local schools with disabled students about ensuring that the
facilities are suitable for their needs.
Support for local community groups and partnerships who are striving to
provide equality of access to services and the premises that they are provided
in for the benefit of the wider community. Many community groups do
excellent work in fund raising and seeking funds from other sources like the
National Lottery, but often there is a shortfall between the funds raised and the
delivery of the project and it is this gap that better use of the DFG funding can
bridge in order to make the proposal a reality.
Exploring the opportunity for funding dementia-friendly schemes for
community buildings or care homes that will help residents to recognise their
surroundings and engage with local services.

This is not an exhaustive list by any means, but hopefully it gives an indication of how
we might engage more widely with the local community in providing better access to
facilities and services in their local area. The funding would not be available for
commercial or retail outlets, or for public buildings where the authority have their own
obligations under equalities legislation. It may be available, however, for public
buildings where the management and maintenance of the building is contracted out
to a third party provider or is provided by a community or voluntary group.
Clearly there will need to be some criteria set for such schemes, and as a general
principle the proposals must:
-

Relate to a capital project that adapts, upgrades or improves access to
a premises that serves the local community;
Be made by a community or voluntary group, a community facility service
provider, a care provider, or a charitable, philanthropical or not-for-profit
organisation;
Address either a physical disability or a defined mental health disability;
Be built on a sound business case;
Ideally complement existing fund-raising, grant applications or capital
investment by the applicant;
Be limited to a level of contribution commensurate with the expected local
impact – a ‘value for money’ assessment, in other words.

In looking at offering wider funding opportunities, the Council will of course ensure
that there is always sufficient funding to meet its statutory obligations to mandatory
applicants. Discretionary funding will only be available as and when the Better Care
Fund allocation for the District affords it, and no commitment to provide ongoing
funding year on year can be provided.

Page 188

APPENDIX 5
2020-21 QUARTER 3 DFG REPORT MILLBROOK HEALTHCARE
Synopsis of the 3 quarters 2020/21
Invoiced amounts per LA along with the Committed Spend.

District DFG SPEND 2020/2021 DFG COMMITTED SPEND
Q1 Invoiced

Q2 Invoiced

Lichfield District Council HIA

£ 6,678.00

£ 105,045.09 £ 192,621.29 £ 304,344.38 £

170,255.18

Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council HIA

£ 23,015.00

£ 161,256.46 £ 193,801.19 £ 378,072.65 £

226,584.91

South Staffordshire Council HIA

£ 83,647.00

£ 245,732.43 £ 157,358.79 £ 486,738.22 £

253,426.63

Stafford Borough Council HIA

£ 75,616.00

£ 139,630.09 £ 268,305.30 £ 483,551.39 £

204,921.53

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council HIA

£ 65,225.00

£ 211,241.37 £ 199,589.59 £ 476,055.96 £

311,856.17

Tamworth Borough Council HIA

£ 18,578.00

£ 43,453.52

TOTAL £ 272,759.00

Q3 Invoiced

Total invoiced 2020/2021

Committed Spend

£ 162,240.96 £ 224,272.48 £

67,442.56

£ 906,358.96 £ 1,173,917.12 £ 2,353,035.08 £

1,234,486.98

Page 189

Page 190

Page 191

Page 192

Page 193

Page 194

Page 195

Page 196

Page 197

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9.2
STAFFORDHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Cabinet
9 February 2021

TITLE:

Public Spaces Protection Order

EXECUTIVE
COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Mike Bowen – Cabinet Member for
Communities

CONTACT OFFICER:

Mark Hitchen – Community Protection
Officer.

WARDS INVOLVED:

Biddulph, Cheadle and Leek Town Centres

Appendices Attached –
A - Draft Public Spaces Protection Order
B - Biddulph Town Centre PSPO Map
C - Cheadle Town Centre PSPO Map
D - Leek Town Centre PSPO Map
1.

Reason for the Report
To introduce measures to improve community safety by restricting on-street
drinking in Biddulph, Cheadle and Leek

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the Cabinet agrees to carry out the necessary consultation, publication
and notification in relation to the draft Order appended to this report.

2.2

That the Cabinet subsequently approves the draft Order by Delegated
Decision unless the responses from the consultation necessitate material
changes to the draft Order.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 gives local authorities
the power to introduce a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) to control
behaviours in a public place, which have caused or may cause a detrimental
effect on the quality of life of those in the locality and are likely to be of a
continuing or persistent nature and are therefore unreasonable.

Page 199

3.2

The consumption of alcohol in Leek, Biddulph and Cheadle town centres can
result in increased anti-social behaviour and may lead to other more serious
criminal offences. This, in turn, places an increased demand on police
resources, promotes a fear of crime and has negative economic and
reputational consequences for the locations. Cans and bottles associated with
on-street drinking are often discarded on streets and footpaths resulting in an
increase in litter. This has a negative impact on the appearance of the town
centres, attracts a clean-up cost and can encourage further littering.

3.3

Prior to 2017, Leek and Cheadle town centres were covered by Designated
Public Places Orders (DPPOs) which were introduced by the District Council
to tackle anti-social behaviour associated with alcohol consumption in the town
centres. Under the orders, a police officer had the power to require a person to
stop drinking alcohol or confiscate their alcohol if they were behaving (or were
likely to behave) anti-socially. If the person refused to hand over the alcohol
the Police officer could issue them with a fixed penalty notice (FPN).

3.4

The DPPOs automatically converted to Public Spaces Protection Orders
(PSPOs) by operation of law in 2017. A PSPO lasts for a maximum of 3 years
and thus the Orders expired in October 2020.

3.5

A dedicated PSPO was implemented in Biddulph in 2017 in response to an
increase in anti-social behaviour in the town. This Order, amongst other
things, empowered a constable or authorised person to require a person to
stop drinking alcohol or confiscate their alcohol, or anything they believe to be
alcohol, or a containing for alcohol. If the person refused to surrender the
alcohol the authorised person can issue them with a fixed penalty notice
(FPN). This Order expired in November 2020.

3.6

The introduction of a PSPO by the District Council could help to reduce the
occurrence of anti-social behaviour, criminal behaviour and littering by
prohibiting the consumption of alcohol in non-designated places in the town
centres. The previous DPPOs and PSPOs acted as a deterrent to problematic
drinking but historically very few fixed penalties were issued for such offences.
Following informal consultation, it was initially decided not to extend the
previous orders. However, the Coronavirus pandemic has highlighted their
usefulness to the police and they have therefore asked the Council to consider
introducing new Orders.

3.7

The Council’s Licensing Team are supportive of the recommendations and do
not see any conflict with the lawful operation of licensed premises in the
affected areas.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

Aim 1: Supporting our communities to create a healthier, safer, cleaner
Staffordshire Moorlands

5.

Alternative Options

Page 200

5.1

To decide not to introduce a Public Spaces Protection Order in the designated
areas (not recommended).

Page 201

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
The introduction of the Order would assist in preventing nuisance and alcohol
related anti-social behaviour.

6.2

Workforce
None

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
The proposed Order will apply equally to all groups.

6.4

Financial Considerations
The Council will be required to erect an adequate signage at each location. The
cost of producing the signs, and fitting them to street furniture, will incur a cost.
This is not expected to exceed £500 per town centre.

6.5

Legal
The draft Order has been reviewed by Legal Services.

6.6

Sustainability
None.

6.7

Consultation
Under section 72 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, the
Council is required to carry out “necessary” consultation, publicity and
notification prior to introducing (or extending) an Order.
Necessary consultation means consulting with:
(a) the chief officer of police, and the local policing body, for the police area that
includes the restricted area;
(b) whatever community representatives the local authority thinks it appropriate
to consult; and
(c) the owner or occupier of land within the restricted area.
Necessary publicity means publishing the text of the proposed Order.
Necessary notification means notifying any parish or community councils, and
the County Council.
The requirement to consult with the owner or occupier of land within the
restricted area does not apply to land that is owned and occupied by the local
authority; and applies only to the extent that it is reasonably practicable to
consult the owner or occupier of the land.

Page 202

6.8

Risk Assessment
None

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer
Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details
Mark Hitchen
Community Protection Officer
mark.hitchen@highpeak.gov.uk

Page 203

7.

Detail

7.1

The Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 gives local authorities
the power to introduce a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) to control
behaviours in a public place, which have caused or may cause a detrimental
effect on the quality of life of those in the locality and are likely to be of a
continuing or persistent nature and are therefore unreasonable.

7.2

The consumption of alcohol in Leek, Biddulph and Cheadle town centres can
contribute to increased levels of anti-social behaviour and can lead to other
more serious criminal offences. This, in turn, places an increased demand on
police resources, promotes a fear of crime in the town Centres and has
negative economic and reputational consequences for the locations. Cans and
bottles are often discarded streets, footpaths and other public areas following
on-street drinking resulting in an increase in litter. This has a negative impact
on the appearance of the town centres, attracts a clean-up cost and can
encourage further littering.

7.3

Prior to 2017, Leek and Cheadle town centres were covered by Designated
Public Places Orders (DPPOs) which were introduced by the district to tackle
anti-social behaviour associated with alcohol consumption in the town centres.
Under the order, a police officer had the power to require a person to stop
drinking alcohol or confiscate their alcohol if they were behaving (or were likely
to behave) anti socially. If the person refused to hand over the alcohol the
Police officer could issue them with a fixed penalty notice (FPN).

7.4

The DPPOs automatically converted to Public Spaces Protection Orders
(PSPOs) by operation of law in 2017. A PSPO lasts for a maximum of 3 years
and thus the Orders expired in October 2020.

7.5

A dedicated PSPO was implemented in Biddulph in 2017 in response to an
increase in anti-social behaviour in the town. This Order, amongst other
things, empowered a constable or authorised person to require a person to
stop drinking alcohol or confiscate their alcohol, or anything they believe to be
alcohol, or a containing for alcohol. If the person refused to surrender the
alcohol the authorised person can issue them with a fixed penalty notice
(FPN). This Order expired in November 2020.

7.6

The recorded prevalence of alcohol related crime in 2019–2020 in Leek,
Biddulph and Cheadle town centres is as follows:


Leek Town Centre – 35 total alcohol related offences, 9 Violence with
injury and 10 violence without injury.



Cheadle Town Centre – 20 total alcohol related offences, 7 Violence with
injury and 9 violence without injury



Biddulph Town Centre – 43 total alcohol related offences, 8 violence with
injury and 17 violence without injury.

Page 204

7.7

The introduction of a PSPO by the District Council could help to reduce the
occurrence of anti-social behaviour, criminal behaviour and littering by
prohibiting the consumption of alcohol in non-designated places in the town
centres. The previous DPPOs and PSPOs acted as a deterrent to problematic
drinking but historically very few fixed penalties were issued for such offences.
Following informal consultation, it was initially decided not to extend the
previous orders. However, the Coronavirus pandemic has highlighted their
usefulness to the police and they have therefore asked the Council to consider
introducing new Orders.

7.8

The Council’s Licensing Team are supportive of the recommendations and do
not see any conflict with the lawful operation of licensed premises in the
affected areas.

Page 205

This page is intentionally left blank

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council
NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPLY A PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER
Section 59 Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014
The Staffordshire Moorlands District Council hereby makes the following Order:
1. This Order comes into force on ************ and will last for a period of three years.
2. This Order applies to the land specified in the Schedule.
Purpose
3. The Order is intended to help to stop or reduce activities that have a detrimental
effect on the quality of life of those in the locality, including noise nuisance, shouting
and swearing, criminal damage, alcohol and substance misuse, abuse and
intimidation, and other forms of rowdy and inconsiderate behaviour.
Definitions
4. “Council” means Staffordshire Moorlands District Council.
5. “Restricted Area” means the land specified in the Schedule.
6. “Authorised Person” means a person authorised for the purposes of this section by
the local authority that made the public spaces protection order (or authorised by
virtue of section 69(1) of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014).
7. “Club Premises Certificate” has the meaning given by section 60 of the Licensing
Act 2003.
8. “Premises Licence” has the meaning given by section 11 of the Licensing Act 2003.
9. “Supply of Alcohol” has the meaning given by section 14 of the Licensing Act 2003.
10. “Council-operated Licensed Premises” means premises authorised by a premises
licence to be used for the supply of alcohol where—
(a) the licence is held by a local authority in whose area the premises (or part of the
premises) are situated, or

Page 207

(b) the licence is held by another person but the premises are occupied by a local
authority or are managed by or on behalf of a local authority.
Offence
11. The following are prohibited under this Order:


Consuming or intending to consume alcohol or anything a constable or an
Authorised Person reasonably believes to be alcohol in a Restricted Area.



Having an unsealed container of alcohol or anything a constable or an
Authorised Person reasonably believes to be alcohol in a Restricted Area.

12. Where a constable or an Authorised Person reasonably believes that a person is
or has been consuming alcohol in breach of this Order, or intends to consume
alcohol in circumstances in which doing so would be a breach of this Order. The
constable or authorised person may require that person—
(i) not to consume, in breach of the order, alcohol or anything which the constable or
Authorised Person reasonably believes to be alcohol;
(ii) to surrender anything in their possession which is, or which the constable or
Authorised Person reasonably believes to be, alcohol or a container for alcohol.
Exemptions
13. The prohibition on consuming alcohol does not apply to—
(a) premises (other than Council-operated licensed premises) authorised by a
Premises Licence to be used for the Supply of Alcohol;
(b) premises authorised by a Club Premises Certificate to be used by the club for the
Supply of Alcohol;
(c) a place within the curtilage of premises within paragraph (a) or (b);
(d) premises which by virtue of Part 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 may at the relevant
time be used for the Supply of Alcohol or which, by virtue of that Part, could have
been so used within the 30 minutes before that time;
(e) a place where facilities or activities relating to the sale or consumption of alcohol
are at the relevant time permitted by virtue of a permission granted under section
115E of the Highways Act 1980 (highway-related uses).

Page 208

14. A prohibition in a public spaces protection order on consuming alcohol does not
apply to Council-operated Licensed Premises—
(a) when the premises are being used for the supply of alcohol, or
(b) within 30 minutes after the end of a period during which the premises have been
used for the supply of alcohol.
Penalty
15. A person who fails without reasonable excuse to comply with a requirement
imposed on him or her under this Order commits an offence and is liable on summary
conviction to a fine not exceeding level 2 on the standard scale.
16. A constable or Authorised Person who imposes a requirement under this Order
must tell the person that failing without reasonable excuse to comply with the
requirement is an offence.
17. A requirement imposed by an Authorised Person under this Order is not valid if the
Authorised Person is asked to show evidence of his or her authorisation and fails to do
so.
Challenging the Validity of the Order
18. If any interested person desires to question the validity of this Order on the grounds
that the Council has no power to make it or that any requirement of the Act has not
been complied with in relation to this Order, he or she may apply to the High Court
within six weeks from the date on which this Order is made.
IN WITNESS whereof the COMMON SEAL
of the STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
was hereunto affixed this

day of

two thousand and twenty one in the

presence of
Chairman

Chief Executive

Page 209

Schedule
The Order applies to the areas of Leek, Biddulph and Cheadle town centres edged
red on the accompanying maps.

Page 210

Biddulph Town Centre

Page 211
06 January 2021

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100018384.

Scale: 1:2500 @A4

This page is intentionally left blank

Cheadle Town Centre

Scale: 1:5000 @A4
© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100018384.

Page 213

Date: 07 January 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Leek Town Centre

Page 215
© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100018384.

Date: 06 January 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

